COMMISSION OF THE EUROPEAN COMMUNITIES



Brussels, 15.11.2006 SEC(2006) 1450

COMMISSION STAFF WORKING DOCUMENT

Accompanying the

REPORT FROM THE COMMISSION

Annual Report on Research and technological development activities of the European Union in 2005

[COM(2006) 685 final]

TABLE OF CONTENTS

1.	European Support to Research: Activities and Results in 2005	4
1.1.	Policy Strategy and coordination	4
1.2.	Indirect support actions	7
1.2.1.	Life sciences, genomics and biotechnology for health	7
1.2.2.	Information society technologies	9
1.2.3.	Nanosciences, nanotechnologies, intelligent materials, new production processes	10
1.2.4.	Aeronautics and space	11
1.2.5.	Food quality and safety	13
1.2.6.	Sustainable development, global change and ecosystems	14
1.2.7.	Citizens and governance in a knowledge-based society	16
1.2.8.	Specific measures covering a wider field of research	17
1.2.9.	Strengthening the foundations of the European research area	19
1.2.10.	Structuring the European research area	21
1.3.	Direct actions by the Joint Research Centre (JRC)	25
1.4.	Achievements of previous framework programmes and other activities, including tresearch fund for coal and steel	he 26
1.4.1.	Framework programmes	26
1.4.2.	Research fund for coal and steel	30
1.5.	Research and training actions under the Euratom Treaty	31
2.	Developments in Member States and application of the Open Method Coordination	n . 32
2.1.	The Open Method of Coordination in Support of Reaching the Barcelona Objectiv	es . 32
2.2.	Trends in Research Policies	34
2.2.1.	Trends in Policy and Governance	34
2.2.2.	Trends in the development of the supply of HR for research.	35
2.2.3.	Trends in the research function of Universities	36
2.3.	Trends in public and private research investments	38
2.3.1.	Progress towards the 3% objective	38
2.3.2.	Trends in public funding	41

2.3.3.	Trends in private R&D	. 41
3.	International Cooperation Agreements	. 44
4.	Consultation and Monitoring Procedures	. 44
4.1.	Scientific and Technical Research Committee (CREST)	. 44
4.2.	Programme Committees	. 45
4.3.	External Advisory Groups	. 45
4.4.	European Research Advisory Board (EURAB)	. 46
4.5.	Monitoring and evaluation	. 46
5.	Statistical tables on the implementation of the 6 th framework programme	. 47
5.1.	Explanatory notes	. 48
5.2.	List of tables in the statistical annex	. 48

1. EUROPEAN SUPPORT TO RESEARCH: ACTIVITIES AND RESULTS IN 2005

1.1. Policy Strategy and coordination

The year 2005 was marked by major research policy initiatives needed to implement the **Lisbon strategy** including in particular preparatory measures to orchestrate a timely presentation by the Commission of its Seven Framework Programme (FP7) proposals and an integrated action plan for research and innovation.

Substantial input was provided for raising the profile of research in the Lisbon strategy and in the preparation of the set of documents ahead of the 2006 Spring European Council, namely the Lisbon Annual Progress Report, including the Commission's assessment of National Reform Programmes (NRP) and micro-economic policies, and the Aho report which proposed a four pronged strategy focusing on creating innovation friendly markets, strengthening R&D resources, increasing structural mobility as well as fostering a culture which celebrates innovation. This contribution was instrumental in raising the quality of the analysis of the research aspects of the individual National Reform Programmes and of the global EU position.

With the publication of a Common Approach for More Research and Innovation¹, the Commission focuses on improving the framework conditions for private sector investment in research and innovation, particularly through European guidelines or guidance on key issues such as tax incentives for research, the use of public procurement for innovative products and services and cooperation and technology transfer between universities and business. This Common Approach follows the second year of implementation of the Action Plan 'Investing in Research'² which included preparatory work for new policy initiatives in 2006 and beyond, as well as the further application of the two open method of co-ordination processes set up to increase R&D investment and reinforce human resources in science and technology.

Furthermore, work has been initiated on the development of a proposal for the establishment of an European Institute of Technology (EIT).

The proposals for the **Seventh Framework Programme** (EC and Euratom FP7) were adopted on 6 April 2005, accompanied by an in depth *ex ante* impact assessment and a Staff Working Paper on simplification. The proposals for the corresponding Specific Programmes (EC and Euratom), on respectively 'Cooperation', 'Ideas', 'People', 'Capacities' and the Joint Research Centre, were adopted on 21 September and the proposal for the Rules for Participation and Dissemination of Results (EC) on 23 December 2005, followed by the Euratom Rules in early 2006.

Following their adoption, the proposals were subject to intense inter-institutional negotiations as part of the co-decision process of the European Parliament and the Council, involving on the part of the Commission a continuous input of information and contribution to the discussions in order to enhance the timely adoption of the Framework Programme (FP), including trilogues among the Institutions. As a first step, the Partial General Agreement was

¹ COM(2005)488, SEC(2005)1253 and SEC(2005)1289 of 12.10.2005

Adopted in April 2003

achieved in Council³ on 28 November 2005. Very supportive opinions on the FP7 proposals were adopted in 2005 by the Committee of the Regions and by the European Economic and Social Committee.

The proposed 'Ideas' specific programme allows the creation of a scientific autonomous **European Research Council (ERC)** to support basic research at the frontier of knowledge thus promoting researchers whose excellence, creativity and intellectual curiosity will lead to major new discoveries. The ERC is supposed to be highly innovative:

- in its concept of European added value: competition between teams across the European continent as a whole;
- in its scope: covering all areas of research in an 'investigator-driven' approach;
- in its governance structure: scientific strategy and implementation methodology determined by an independent Scientific Council; and
- in its autonomous implementation: by a dedicated implementation structure, expected to be an Executive Agency.

Intensive preparatory work included in 2005 the establishment of an Identification Committee of top-level research leaders under the chairmanship of Lord Patten of Barnes, which identified the eventual founding members of the ERC Scientific Council⁴. Development work included a cost-benefit analysis for the establishment of FP7 executive agencies, further assessment of needs and options, including organisational requirements, personnel, infrastructure and IT, as well as detailed analysis of options for the frontier research grant⁵. In addition, a European Basic Research website⁶ was launched.

In order to foster **Public-Private Partnerships**, 28 European Technology Platforms are now in progress. The Technology Platforms aim at bringing together the main stakeholders in order to define a medium to long term strategic research agenda fostering the potential for the development, the deployment and the use of key technologies. Six areas⁷ have been identified in which a Joint Technology Initiative – a long-term public-private partnership – could potentially be set up to implement all or part of the strategic research agenda: aeronautics and air transport, hydrogen and fuel cells, innovative medicines, nanoelectronics, embedded computing systems and global monitoring for environment and security.

Several activities have been developed to enhance the participation of SMEs. The sounding board established by Commissioner Potočnik made up of small players (typically SMEs,

³ A partial general approach is a way of fixing Council discussions on non-budgetary elements which are linked to the pending negotiation on the financial perspective for the period 2007-2013. It leaves open the possibility of adjusting agreed parts of a proposal should that be necessary following agreement on budgetary amounts.' Competitiveness Council conclusions (11.10.05)

⁴ Dr. Bordignon (IT), Prof. Castells (ES), Prof. Dr. Crutzen (NL), Prof. Dewatripont (BE), Dr. Esteve (FR), Prof. Exner (CZ), Prof. Dr. Freund (DE), Prof. Hall (UK), Prof. Dr. Heldin (SE), Prof. Dr. Kafatos (EL), Prof. Dr. Kleiber (PL), Prof. Kroo (HU), Prof. V.T. Lago (PT), Dr. Marín Parra (ES), Prof. May (UK), Prof. Nowotny (AT), Prof. Nusslein-Volhard (DE); Dr. Peltonen-Palotie (FI), Prof. Peyraube (FR), Dr. Rostrup-Nielsen (DK), Prof. Settis (IT) and Prof. Dr.med. Zinkernagel (CH)

⁵ The report 'Frontier Research: the European Challenge' published by the High-Level Expert Group set up in 2004, analyses the benefits that are likely to accrue to the establishment of the ERC and the ways in which these benefits may be maximised.

⁶ <u>http://ec.europa.eu./comm/research/future/basic_research/index_en.html</u>

⁷ Process for identification in the Commission's 'Report on European Technology Platforms and Joint Technology Initiatives: fostering Public-Private Rand D Partnerships to Boost Europe's Industrial Competitiveness', <u>SEC(2005) 800</u>

smaller research centres and institutions) continues to incorporate the views of experienced stakeholders in the development of improved procedures for the implementation of the FP. The High Level Group for SMEs continues to provide input on the implementation of the horizontal research activities involving SMEs and on the preparation of the 'Capacities' Specific Programme for FP7.

Operational directorates in charge of FP6 thematic priorities have updated and implemented action plans to ensure an optimal and effective participation of SMEs. The following actions were in particular achieved:

- Identification in the calls for proposals of topics which are of particular relevance to SMEs;
- Publication of calls for proposals dedicated to SMEs;
- Increase of the share of traditional instruments especially STREPs in certain thematic priorities.

Further progress towards the 15% target⁸ for SMEs was achieved as documented by the work of the interservice SME Task Force. To date the SMEs share of the budget is estimated to be in excess of 13% on the basis of main-listed proposals.

In addition, SMEs participating in FP6 have especially taken advantage of the implementation of the action plan on rationalisation and acceleration. The action plan has embraced aspects of the whole project cycle from proposal submission, evaluation and negotiation to contract management.

Concerning the **international dimension of ERA**, emphasis was given to enhancing the existing instruments and established partnerships, based on equitable access to knowledge and know-how and sharing of the risks and benefits of joint high level research. The main goal is to prepare the ground for the development of an ambitious international scientific cooperation strategy that provides additional impetus for the EU to be a key partner in the global scene of Research cooperation. In the Conference 'The international dimension of the Europe of knowledge – A common interest to Europe and the world'⁹ Commissioner Potočnik and international participants discussed the challenges of a Europe of knowledge open to the world and recommended the elaboration of a comprehensive international S&T strategy for Europe. Such a strategy paper should ensure synergies between framework programmes and external policies and Member States' activities.

The implementation of the 2003 Pilot Action '**Regions of Knowledge'** made significant progress in 2005. The projects provided new insights on the questions raised by the pilot action, namely to which extent investment in knowledge and knowledge endowments can become a factor for regional development. Both Pilot Action projects and projects within the FP6 call 'Regions of Knowledge 2', offered ideas on the future activities on 'Regions of Knowledge' inside FP7.

The close collaboration between research and cohesion policies was reflected in the Community Strategic Guidelines on Cohesion which stressed the importance and set out concrete guidelines for increased and better targeted investment in RTD.¹⁰ Further

⁸ Budget grants within the thematic priorities

⁹ Brussels, 6-7 October 2005, upon the initiatives of leading French and other European research organisations

¹⁰ Communication from the Commission: 'Cohesion Policy in support of Growth and Jobs: community Strategic Guidelines, 2007-2013 (SEC/2005/904) – COM(2005)299

collaboration on developing regional research strategies was fostered by the activities of the Mutual Learning Platform for research and innovation which was launched in 2005 as a joint initiative of the Commission's Enterprise and Industry, Research, Regional Policy and Information Society Directorates-General, with the active involvement of the Committee of the Regions.

The **Science and Society Forum**¹¹ represented a major stock-taking moment for Science and Society in the process towards more ambitious activities in FP7, with the participation of more than 800 policy-makers, members of civil society organisations and scientists.

The European Research Advisory Board¹² (EURAB) delivered recommendations to the Commission on financial instruments, financial perspectives, on the idea of a European Institute for Technology, International Cooperation, regional innovation capabilities, industrial participation, social sciences and humanities, European Research Organisations and science in society.

The **implementation of FP6** for 2005 was completed close to 100 % in terms of implementation of the specific programmes' work programmes and budget execution. The planning of calls for proposals and proposals evaluation allowed proposals submission to be achieved without any problems, with a particularly high proportion of electronic submissions. Enhancements to the technical capacities of the evaluation service provider (ESP) hardware allowed large 'remote' evaluations to be carried out without any technical problems, even though the number of evaluators supported on the system was well above the system's contractual specification. Following the introduction of fully electronic submission for all new calls during the second half of 2004, this proposal submission system has continued to gain the approval of proposers; a majority of calls now have 100% electronic proposal submission.

1.2. Indirect support actions

1.2.1. Life sciences, genomics and biotechnology for health

Implement the work programme: A last modification of the work programme in June 2005 enabled the publication of the two last calls for proposals of FP6. One was specially intended to stimulate SMEs participation. In addition, a specific call for proposals on influenza was launched in the light of the spread of avian influenza and the potential emergence of pandemic influenza in humans.

The total number of FP6-funded projects in the area of stem cells is growing compared to FP5. The inventory of FP6 financed projects involving stem cells from all origins (adult, foetal and embryonic) has been updated in the frame of the collection of stem cell information.

European research's reply to world's health challenges: The European and Developing Countries Clinical Trials Partnership (EDCTP)¹³ platform on the poverty related diseases

¹¹ Brussels, 9-11 March 2005

¹² A high-level, independent, advisory committee created by the Commission to provide advice on the design and implementation of EU research policy. EURAB is made up of 45 top experts from EU countries and beyond. Its members are nominated in a personal capacity and come from a wide range of academic and industrial backgrounds, as well as representing other societal interests.

¹³ Sustainable partnership (pilot programme) between the EU and developing countries set up on basis of Article 169 of the Treaty. Switzerland associated end 2005, thus becoming the16th participating country.

progressed with the second call for proposals, covering clinical trials, strengthening of the capacities of the selected sites networking, and training. Furthermore, several participating countries contributed financially as announced and the negotiations with the Gates Foundation in the frame of the 'Global HIV Vaccine Enterprise¹⁴, progressed well. Collaboration with the pharmaceutical industry continued as well on the development of new medical products, microbicides and vaccines.

Promote and reinforce international cooperation: DG Research participates in the definition of the world's policy orientations through its participation in the Steering Committee of the 'Global HIV Vaccine Enterprise' and through its membership of the 'Human Frontier Science Program'¹⁵. It participated as well in numerous thematic workshops and technical meetings with the aim to develop opportunities for partnerships with scientific communities around the world and to strengthen participation from third countries in European proposals. EU's participation in the Heads of International Research Organisations¹⁶ represents the acknowledgment of its place among the main R&D financing agencies in the world. Thus, the EU contributes to the international reflections on major public health themes such as avian influenza or HIV/AIDS and contributes this way to strengthening the coherence of the initiatives and methods in these subjects.

Better communicate: The establishment of a structured dialogue between the European Institutions and the main participants in health research continued as shown with the large European representation to the annual major event for the European biotechnology industry 'BIO 2005' convention (June) and with the first Conference on Stem Cells and their Therapeutic Applications, co-organised with the European Federation of Neurological Associations (December).

Adapt themes and means of action: Building the 'Joint Technology Initiative on Innovative Medicines' advanced notably through communication actions and meetings with the main stakeholders: universities, pharmaceutical industry, regulation agencies, patient's associations, Biotech SMEs and Member States. An updated Strategic Research Agenda taking into account the input from the open consultation with the Member and Associated States that took place during the second semester 2005 will be published in 2006. It is foreseen to be implemented under the Health Research Theme as a Joint Undertaking via Article 171 in the frame of FP7. The initiative that aims to increase the competitiveness of the European pharmaceutical sector by increased research efforts by private and public partners addressing the main bottlenecks in the medicines development processes focussing on four key areas: improved prediction of Safety, Efficacy, Knowledge Management, and Education and Training.

¹⁴ An international alliance of independent organizations dedicated to accelerating the development of an HIV/AIDS vaccine through collaborative research efforts in pursuit of a common scientific agenda, by building consensus in the HIV vaccine field on scientific priorities, mobilizing new resources to implement these priorities, and facilitating the rapid sharing of information that can advance the field as a whole.

¹⁵ G8 initiative, aimed at promoting, through international cooperation, basic research on biological functions.

¹⁶ HIRO is an informal forum encompassing the major funders of biomedical scientific research across the globe, including the US, China, Australia, Japan and Canada.

FP7 proposal defines in the thematic area 'Health' include activities such as generic tools and human health technologies, research for health, and optimising health care for European citizens.

1.2.2. Information society technologies

The 2005 objectives for 'Information and Communication Technologies' (ICT) research actions emphasised three key aspects: mastering complexity by pioneering new approaches to cope with the infinitely small as well as the very larger; exploring multidisciplinary fields combining ICT with other science and technology fields; promoting innovation from ICT use by bringing services and technology developments closer together.

2005 research projects aimed in particular to achieve industrial and societal breakthroughs in research fields such as micro- and nano-electronics, mobile communications, broadband technology for accessing the internet, biomedical informatics and eGovernment and to address technological as well as societal ICT challenges. In addition, under the Research Infrastructure Programme, *e*Infrastructures (high-capacity and high-performance communication and grid infrastructures and high-end computing capabilities) were consolidated in Europe, including reinforcement of user communities' engagement, stimulation of *e*Infrastructure policies for science and engineering, and support to international collaboration in the area of advanced communication technologies.

To build the European Research Area in ICT and to improve the effectiveness of investments in ICT R&D, a series of meetings with key policy makers in the Member States was organised in 2005 to discuss and prepare better coordination and synergy of public R&D funding. This work was complemented by several thematic workshops and consultations that were organised to address key technology areas. The bedrock of ERA was further strengthened by the official launch of the GÉANT2 research network which provides a high-capacity and high-speed communications network interconnecting the European National Research and Education Networks. Actions have also been undertaken to facilitate cooperation and coordination between stakeholders. Five Technology Platforms were launched in 2005: Mobile and Wireless Communications Technology (eMobility), European Robotics Platform (EUROP), Networked and Electronic Media Platform (NEM), Networked European Software Services Initiative (NESSI) and European Photonics Research Initiative and (PHOTONICS21).

To look at the *impact of funded projects*, studies were launched in 2005 and showed that selected areas of the FP5 'Information Society Technologies' Programme and its predecessors have contributed substantially to the increase of the knowledge base, standardisation, the skills of researchers and the development of research and knowledge networks, leading to enhanced competitiveness for most participant organisations. These benefits are considered by the participants to be of high strategic relevance, and in turn lead to innovation impacts for user communities, both for project participants themselves and for industry and service sectors using ICT.

The FP7 proposal covers strategic research priorities in areas of European industrial and technological leadership such as communication networks, embedded computing, technologies for audiovisual content, car electronics, electronic health records and data networks. It also targets emerging areas such as multi-dimensional visualisation and interfacing, topics emerging from the convergence of ICT and biology such as bio-inspired artificial systems and simulations of living systems, and new forms of non-linear and self-

adapting digital content. At almost 30% of the proposed budget for the thematic priorities, ICT is proposed to receive the largest single share of collaborative research funding in FP7. Further support to computing and communication based *e*Infrastructures is also part of the proposal, enhancing their global relevance and increasing the level of trust and confidence, building on the achievements of GÉANT and Grid infrastructures.

1.2.3. Nanosciences, nanotechnologies, intelligent materials, new production processes

Nanotechnology is anticipated to be one of the key technologies of the twenty first century. Research actions in nanosciences and nanotechnologies are providing a considerable impact in terms of new products which make life easier and can solve the problems of health, security and the environment. In 2005, funding was granted to projects on understanding fundamental mechanisms, engineering of nano-components, instruments and devices, nanobiotechnology and applications particularly in nanomedicine and optics.

Following the endorsement by the Council of its proposed approach, the Commission adopted in June an 'Action Plan for Europe (2005-2009)' defining actions for the implementation of a safe, integrated and responsible European strategy for the development of nanosciences and nanotechnologies. The aim is to increase and co-ordinate research and initiatives in this area in order to contribute to the Union's competitiveness and many of its policies, in particular establishing synergy with education and innovation.

Good progress was made with the ambitious European Technology Platforms on nanoelectronics, nanomedicine and manufacturing ('Manufuture'). They have the overarching objective of proposing a strategy based on research and innovation, capable of speeding up the rate of industrial transformation in Europe. In this context, DG Research has been actively engaged in the development of common vision and Strategic Research Agendas of several European Technology Platforms

Materials, the transition lynchpin towards high value added products: Policy actions during 2005 continue to reinforce Europe's strong knowledge base in Materials Science. Research actions are aimed at developing new advanced materials with a high knowledge-content and improved performance benefiting sustainable development and competitiveness in sectors such as transport, energy, medicine, electronics, and construction. Research on knowledge-based materials has a generic nature, offering potential for applications in all sectors, and is essential for developing new markets and emerging technologies, as well as for contributing to raise the competitiveness of the European 'traditionally less knowledge intensive' sectors.

Production, the mainstay of the European economy and employment: Policy actions have been aimed at ensuring that industrial capacities, knowledge generation and research skills remain in Europe since these are key determinants of prosperity, quality of life and employment prospects. Research actions within, for example, the continuing framework of the Environment Technology Action Plan (ETAP) have been aimed towards the development of sustainable and intelligent production technologies, products and industrial organisation in all sectors of industrial activity such as advanced engineering and services, construction, textile and clothing, forest-based products, chemistry, biotechnology, safety using the full range of collaborative research instruments.

An integrated approach encouraging breakthroughs: In an integrated approach, research projects, networks of excellence and support measures were financed with the aim of stimulating the new technologies in existing industries and/or making new breakthroughs

which may lead to new industries. These research actions which integrate advances in nanotechnology, advanced materials, components, systems, intelligent and sustainable production technologies and high-quality products will have a major impact on industry and society.

An *international dialogue* on responsible research involving many countries on a voluntary basis has been promoted in view to defining a code of good conduct in carrying out nanotechnology research and promoting cooperation in fields of common interest. Also, the renewal of the Intelligent Manufacturing Systems agreement was high on the agenda. The mandate for negotiating a new agreement was adopted by the Commission in August and the mandate to negotiate this renewal was given by the Council in November 2005.

In FP7 on Industrial Technologies, there is strong continuity with FP6 in the thematic themes proposed: Nanosciences, Nanotechnologies, Materials and New Production Technologies. The main objective is to create conditions and assets for knowledge-intensive production, to validate new paradigms responding to emerging industrial needs and to expand basic knowledge in order to develop innovative instruments and applications for very different industrial sectors. The proposals in the area of industrial technologies to contribute to the preparation of FP7 have been well received.

1.2.4. Aeronautics and space

Carrying out FP6 through Aeronautics and Space work programme: The work programme for 2005 has been fully implemented and dedicated to strengthening competitiveness, improving environmental impact with regard to emissions and noise, improving aircraft safety and security and increasing the operational capacity and safety of the air transport system, to hydrogen technology, to strengthening the 'Global Monitoring for Environment and Security' (GMES) and Satcom end-to end service development.

Integrate European research: The integration of research at a European level towards genuine and productive synergies among research policies and projects, and the emergence of new forms of partnerships are progressing. ACARE, the Advisory Council for Aeronautics Research in Europe presented the 2nd edition of its Strategic Research Agenda. Four years after the launch of this technology platform for the aeronautics sector, its scope and ambition has now been refined and expanded to address different future air transport scenarios.

Several workshops have been arranged with the aim of raising awareness on Community research activities, including one with the participation of Member States to discuss, in particular, the involvement of New Member States in the aeronautics research.

Activities in the Space sector have focussed on complementing efforts by Member States and by other key players, including the European Space Agency. In May 2005 the Commission adopted a Communication on 'European Space Policy – Preliminary Elements¹⁷' which sets out the overall strategy and priorities. Therein, the Global Monitoring for Environment and Security (GMES) initiative is identified as the second EU flagship after Galileo.

¹⁷ Communication from the Commission to the Council and the European Parliament : 'European Space Policy - Preliminary Elements '{SEC/2005/664} – COM(2005)208

Subsequently in November 2005, the Commission adopted a Communication on GMES¹⁸, with the objective to provide, on a sustained basis, reliable and timely services related to environmental and security issues in support of public policy makers' needs. It sets out a strategy for delivering GMES, beginning with the pilot phase of three first operational GMES services by 2008. Following extensive consultation with GMES Member States stakeholders at the level of 'Space Council', as well as the GMES Advisory Council, remaining FP6 resources, yet to be committed, will be focused, as far as possible, on these fast track services.

Contribute to other Community policies: The content of the Aeronautics and Space work programme itself was thought to contributing to other Community policies, particularly those related to competitiveness and innovation, transport, infrastructures, environment, safety and security, employment and education. Also, in connection with the trade dispute between US and EU, statistics and other information on the support for research attributed to major European companies since the 2nd Framework Programme has been produced. The activities in projects on achieving data harmonisation for geo-information are in direct support of the implementation of the INSPIRE Directive currently in preparation.

Promote and reinforce international cooperation: In the area of aeronautics, the promotion and reinforcement of international cooperation to achieve critical mass in domains of common importance has been encouraged. Russia is the first INCO country participating in FP6 projects in the aeronautics sector. It has a great potential in the aeronautical sector due to its long history and capacities in this field. A workshop is being prepared for 2006, which should allow general discussions on possible future collaboration under FP7. China could become a big player. A significant event took place recently: the EU-China Workshop on Aeronautics Research and Technological Development. The aim was to discuss possibilities for cooperation with Chinese aeronautics researchers under European programmes and to identify wider possibilities for collaboration.

In the area of Space, international cooperation has been a specific research action in developing activities to disseminate and implement GMES products and services outside the European Union (and especially in developing countries). Of particular interest were activities linked to on-going initiatives at international levels such as, for example, GEO, GCOS, PUMA/AMESD, UNEP/MAP.

For the **preparation of FP7**, intensive work has been carried out and the 'Transport' theme (Aeronautics and Surface Transport) of the specific programme for 'Cooperation' has been drafted. Based on technological advances, the objective is to develop integrated, 'greener, smarter and safer' pan-European transport systems for the benefit of the citizen and society, respecting the environment and natural resources, and securing and further developing the competitiveness and leading role attained by the European industries in the global market.

In the area of Space, supporting a European Space Programme has been the key point during the preparation of FP7. Extensive consultation has led to focusing on applications such as GMES with benefits for citizens and for the competitiveness of the European space industry. This will contribute to the development of a European Space Policy, complementing efforts by Member States and by other key players, including the European Space Agency.

¹⁸ Communication de la Commission au Conseil et au Parlement européen : « La surveillance mondiale pour l'environnement et la sécurité (GMES): du concept à la réalité » {SEC/2005/1432} – COM(2005)565

1.2.5. Food quality and safety

Implement FP6 - Contribute to several policy initiatives: The implementation of the European Strategy on Life Sciences and Biotechnology continued, including the stimulation of exchange of information and best practice regarding quality assurance of genetic testing (research, legislation, networking, etc) through the informal network with Member States.

DG Research cooperated in linking the output of research to the European Platform on 'Diet, Physical Activity and Health' and contributed significantly to the EU Environment and Health Strategy (SCALE initiative) and subsequent Action Plan, with food related topics supporting this action included in both the 3rd and 4th call work programmes. DG Research contributed to policy initiatives:

- A dedicated call for research proposals on avian and pandemic influenza, building on the recommendations from EFSA, FAO, WHO and OIE¹⁹;
- On agricultural research, closer cooperation of national agricultural policy research departments has been achieved in the frame of the Standing Committee on Agricultural Research (SCAR), notably by setting the priority topics for a Common Research Agenda, mapping infrastructures/institutions/activities, establishing a permanent SCAR Working Group and developing a prototype SCAR web portal. Initiatives were also taken to set up thematic 'collaborative working groups' among the Member States.
- Projects in support to the Animal Welfare Action Plan, the European Action Plan for Organic Food and Farming and the preparation of guidelines for co-existence between Genetically Modified and non-Genetically Modified crops; the implementation of the zoonoses²⁰ directive, the implementation of the REACH proposal and Food Contamination Legislation, the development and implementation of DG SANCO's Transmissible Spongiform Encephalopathies Roadmap, the implementation of the Environment and Health Action Plan, the EU directive on the implementation of the Bonn 'Guidelines on access and benefit sharing' and the negotiating positions of the EU within the International Biodiversity Convention (CBD);
- Ongoing reviews of legislation on food contaminants, air pollutants and chemicals as well as risk assessments undertaken by EFSA and DG SANCO committees.

Promote and reinforce international cooperation: The promotion of international cooperation (INCO) was fostered through a considerably improved participation of third countries, and notably of INCO target countries, in view of meeting the goal of allocating to them the 15.9M€ earmarked for the latter countries. A specific call to promote the participation of partners from Targeted Third Countries has been prepared.

A series of workshops on plant-based bioproducts organised under the EC-US Task-Force for Biotechnology Research has identified the potential for several flagship research projects.

In view of **the preparation of FP7**, the concept of a *European Knowledge-Based Bio-Economy (KBBE)* has been launched and actively promoted through the organisation, in collaboration with the UK Presidency, of an international conference on 'New perspectives on the KBBE' and through discussions and presentations at international fora such as OECD, international conferences such as the 'International High Level Forum on Bio- economy ' in

¹⁹ European Food Safety Authority, Food and Agriculture Organization of the United Nations, World Health organization and World organisation for animal health

²⁰ A disease of animals that can be transmitted to humans

Beijing as well as at a large number of bilateral meetings with major international partners such as USA, Russia, Brazil, China, India.

A significant contribution was made to the launch/advancement of a number of European *Technology Platforms*, ensuring the involvement of the industry in the Strategic Research Agendas of the areas covered. Most remarkable are the technology platforms on 'Plant Genomics and Biotechnology', 'Global Animal Health' and the 'Industrial Biotechnology' pillar of the Sustainable Chemistry platform; the 'Food for Life' technology platform²¹ and finally the technology platform on the Forestry-based Sector. Furthermore, first steps have been taken towards the establishment of a new technology platform on Sustainable Farm Animal Breeding and Reproduction.

1.2.6. Sustainable development, global change and ecosystems

Research Strategies for the environment and Sustainable Development: Contribution to the further implementation of the EU Strategy of Sustainable Development was provided through the provision of concepts, scientific references, methods and technologies. Implementation of both the Environmental Technology Action Plan (ETAP) and the Environment and Health Action Plan has been supported by launching more than 20 technological projects namely in the area of water and soil.

In context of research in support to policies, several projects funded have a clear impact on policies such as for example those supporting the elaboration and implementation of the Thematic Strategy on the Urban Environment.

In addition, Technology Platforms on Sustainable Chemistry and on Water Supply and Sanitation were established within the ETAP and have produced vision documents and drafting strategic research agendas. Participation of DG Research in the preparation of the inter-governmental *ad hoc* Group on Earth Observations (GEO) contributed to the elaboration of the Commission Communication of May 2005 on 'European Space Policy - Preliminary Elements' which includes a description of the GEO initiative and its relationship to the activities of the European initiative on Global Monitoring for Environment and Security (GMES).

FP6 implementation and contribution to policy objectives:

Sustainable surface transport: Research activities in the area of sustainable surface transport continued to support the European transport policy objectives as set out in the White Paper "European transport policy for 2010: time to decide" (such as revitalising rail transport, promoting transport by sea and inland waterways, developing intermodal and interoperable transport systems, improving road safety, encouraging the take up of alternative fuels and cleaner vehicles) by contributing to the development of new European standards, the preparation and implementation of new legal initiatives and other policy measures in the field of surface transport. Moreover, they facilitate the introduction of innovative, efficient and cost-competitive technologies and applications into the market and provide assessment in economic and policy terms.

²¹

Initiated by the Confederation of the food and drink industries of the EU (CIAA)

In the CIVITAS initiative 36 cities all over Europe are developing, testing and demonstrating innovative urban transport policy tools and technological solutions. CIVITAS supports EU policies related to air quality and urban environment by encouraging the take up of alternative fuels and cleaner vehicles, increasing use of alternative modes, developing noise abatement plans and promoting higher quality public transport that is accessible and safe.

The ERRAC technology platform (rail) embarked further on the implementation of its Strategic Research Agenda, among others through some far-reaching research projects with railway undertakings and industries working together. Research results on railway safety can be integrated into new EU directives on 'Technical Specifications for Interoperability.' Economically and environmentally more efficient and innovative construction technologies for road and rail infrastructure can also be incorporated in investments in the Trans European Transport Networks.

The new EU-supported 'Waterborne Technology Platform' (shipping) aims to show the way to more effective waterborne transport research. It intends to publish its vision for 2020 and the supportive Strategic Research Agenda in early 2006.

The participation in the Maritime Policy Task Force deserved particular attention, with the paper 'Towards a European Maritime Policy' outlining the contribution of Research. There has also been active contribution to the preparation of a Green Paper on an all embracing Maritime Policy²² and the Framework Directive on the EU marine environmental policy, and participation in the European Maritime Policy Conference²³.

Sustainable Energy Systems: Research activities contribute to the European energy policy objectives as set out in the Green Paper "Towards a European strategy for the security of energy supply" by developing and demonstrating innovative technologies and concepts for improving energy efficiency, increasing the use of renewable energy, enhancing the competitiveness of European industry and improving quality of life. The FP6 Energy projects continue to pave the way for the introduction of innovative and cost competitive renewable and energy efficiency technologies into the market and thus support the future development and implementation of EU Directives such as on electricity from renewable energy sources and on the energy performance of buildings, as well as the proposed Directives on cogeneration and the establishment of technical, regulatory and fiscal measures for the promotion of biofuels.

These activities include the CONCERTO initiative which supports integrated strategies for urban energy concepts including renewables and energy efficiency.

Integrate European research: Further integration of research activities at a European level and synergies among research policies and projects was sought, through a variety of means such as:

The launch of a cooperation platform between three large-scale biodiversity Networks of Excellence²⁴ has been initiated to underpin the preparation of a European biodiversity infrastructure.

²² 'A European vision for the oceans and seas'

The New European Maritime Policy conference attempts to articulate the views of the representative European maritime organisations as a contribution to the consultation process of the European Commission for its Green Paper on maritime policy.

²⁴ MARBEF, ALTER-NET and EDIT

The launch of the integrated project DAMOCLES in the field of climate changes in the Arctic brings together efforts of 45 European research institutions and will be part of the European contribution to the International Polar Year 2007.

The Commission has been assisting the various deep-sea research groups in the creation of a joint 'Deep Sea Floor Frontier' research programme to promote the common use of infrastructure in international, national and European initiatives.

The Advisory Group on Energy (AGE) regroups the three fields of energy research (fusion, fission and non-nuclear.

The European Technology Platforms on Hydrogen & Fuel cells and Photovoltaics have been set up and have developed their Strategic Research Agendas. The Hydrogen & Fuel cells Platform is working towards the creation of a Joint Technology Initiative in FP 7.

International cooperation: Further consultation with the international programmes in the field of Earth Sciences and Global Change²⁵ have been carried out to improve international cooperation in FP6. As a result, the target for third country participation is very satisfactory, around 4.2% of our total budget. In the framework of the EU-South Africa S&T agreement, DG Research encouraged the South African participation in various water related research activities. In the energy research area, international cooperation activities at bilateral level were carried out notably with the United States, Russia, China, Japan and Australia. Joint initiatives were launched to take shape at short, medium and long term in priority areas such as renewable energy, CO_2 sequestration, hydrogen, and biomass. A memorandum of understanding with China on clean coal technologies and zero emission power generation has also been adopted and is ready for signature.

Communication: The Commission together with the European Space Agency prepared the 'Earth and Space Week', aimed at showing how Earth Observation (EO) and Space improve quality of life on our planet. The Week included cultural, recreational and educational activities, a major public exhibition, and high-level policy-related events.

1.2.7. Citizens and governance in a knowledge-based society

Implement a new work programme: The implementation of the work programme covering the years 2004 to 2006 advanced in an impressive way through a series of three calls launched in December 2004. Following evaluations and negotiations in 2005, more than 80 new projects were or will be launched. In particular, 20 projects came to light under the 'new instruments', i.e. networks of excellence and integrated projects. Such larger projects, between 3 to 5 Millions Euros, should help structure the European Research Area in the field of Social Sciences and Humanities (SSH) through the 600 research organisations and thousands of researchers they involve.

The new projects will not only strengthen European research activities in fields of continued Community interest (such as governance and social cohesion), but will also cover a number of topics which will be addressed for the first time within the framework of this programme (such as global security and multilingualism). At the same time, the international dimension of this portfolio of projects has been reinforced.

²⁵ Through the Earth System Science Partnership (<u>ESSP</u>), a joint initiative of four global change programmes: DIVERSITAS (an integrated programme of biodiversity science), IGBP (International Geosphere-Biosphere Programme), IHDP (International Human Dimensions Programme on Global Environmental Change) and WCRP (World Climate Research Programme)

This was also the first time that the programme applied a two-step evaluation system and made use of remote reading by the evaluators in order to improve the selection of projects.

Reinforcing the role and visibility of the social sciences and humanities: The work programme for 2005 included activities aiming at promoting the European Research Area in the SSH, including means to enhance the coherence of policies for SSH, to assist the development of European infrastructures for comparative research, and to improve the communication and dissemination of research results.

In the perspective of furthering communication on the results of the programme, a special effort was made in 2005 to promote the results of the research, in particular by systematic publication of reports on the projects funded and updating of the websites (CORDIS and EUROPA). About 100 final reports were made available to the scientific community. In addition, a quarterly newsletter on European research in the SSH was widely distributed in Europe and beyond to inform readers about the European research results, the available sources of information and the future activities of the programme.

Towards FP7: In December a major conference on 'Social Sciences and Humanities in Europe: New Challenges, New Opportunities' brought together 440 delegates (researchers, experts and policy-makers) to discuss the state of SSH in Europe, and the strategic challenges and opportunities for FP7. This event thus marked the launch of a broad consultation process on the development of the content of the collaboration programme in the area of SSH in FP7.

1.2.8. Specific measures covering a wider field of research

Demonstrate the Commission's capacity to efficiently implement frontier research

Increasingly the New and Emerging Science and Technology (NEST) activity has come to be seen as a successful model for 'investigator-driven' frontier research funding, and as a demonstration of the Commission's capacity to efficiently implement frontier research. A conference under the UK Presidency structured to examine and assess the NEST philosophy and operational experience confirmed this perspective, drawing lessons for the ERC.

The successful operational experience of NEST is being taken up both in the development work for the ERC and in preparing the 'NEST-like' (emerging research) activities embedded in the thematic priorities of FP7.

The NEST activity supports three complementary action lines which operate in parallel. ADVENTURE activities have generated a portfolio of high-quality research projects with excellent participation in key emerging scientific areas, INSIGHT projects cover potentially important risks to society, the PATHFINDER activity is at the forefront of a policy to better exploit European potential and creating communities of knowledge in new multidisciplinary research areas with very high forward strategic interest for competitiveness and social welfare.

Promote synergies with other Community policies

Recognising the power of science to serve the decision-making process, including in case of emergencies, the 'Scientific Support to Policies' initiative has been developed in several fields such as health, agriculture, crime, fisheries, environment, energy, transport etc, through calls for proposals (including a call related to an unforeseen need: avian influenza and human pandemic influenza) and through the promotion of selected projects. An 'SSP awareness raising and exploitation of results' Action plan drawn up in 2004 is being implemented jointly

with other Directorates-General. An information folder and some information sheets were prepared with the aim of informing policy-makers and are accessible through the Europa web site²⁶. The SINAPSE e-network²⁷, with a main objective to offer a set of essential tools to promote and encourage the effective exchange of information between all stakeholders, is used also to disseminate scientific results towards policy makers.

Address Small and Medium Enterprises (SMEs)

The updated work programme was fully implemented and takes account of the new SME definition²⁸. Widespread interest in the horizontal research activities for SME and SME associations continues. The last call for Economic Technological Intelligence (ETI) focused on encouraging SME participation in FP6 and also on preparing SMEs for FP7.

A large portfolio of selected and ongoing projects in co-operative research addresses technological problems of direct interest to the SMEs involved. To date more than 4500 SMEs across the entire field of science and technology are benefiting directly or indirectly from their involvement with SME specific actions in FP6. Selected and ongoing collective research projects will have a positive and valuable impact on the competitiveness of large communities of SMEs and will also contribute to the dissemination of knowledge.

Other activities in this area included an 'Impact assessment for improving the SME specific research schemes and measures to promote SME participation in FP7' and, SME specific stakeholder consultation.

Consolidate the efforts in international scientific cooperation

The last research calls showed a massive oversubscription compared to resource allocation. An additional 3 million Euros was channelled into the budget for Mediterranean Partner Countries allowing for the funding of high quality projects on the reserve lists in order to further boost the research potential in this region.

The elaboration of the 2006 INCO Work Programme was finalised, the novelty consisting in a specific call for Western Balkan countries, initiated following the conclusions of a Ministerial conference in February 2005 where it was agreed to reinforce the capacity in these countries allowing for a better integration of these countries to the Framework Programme.

Among the greatest challenges to meet was the opening of the thematic priorities to international partners. A working group of the horizontal Programme Committee reviewed the progress in allocating a budget of 285 M \in to the thematic programme priorities to international scientific cooperation with third countries and formulated relevant proposals. Following the suggestions of the working group, a specific horizontal call opening existing FP6 projects to targeted third country participants was defined and will be published in early 2006.

²⁶ <u>http://ec.europa.eu/research/fp6/ssp/index_en.htm</u>

http://ec.europa.eu/sinapse

²⁸ The category of micro, small and medium-sized enterprises (SMEs) is made up of enterprises which employ fewer than 250 persons and which have an annual turnover not exceeding 50 million euro, and/or an annual balance sheet total not exceeding 43 million euro.' (*Extract of Article 2 of the Annex of Recommendation 2003/361/EC*)

A group of international experts reviewed 67 international S&T projects with a bearing on integrated water resources management, a key concept of the European Water Framework Directive and the EU Water Initiative. The review lead to a technical report, general public brochure and a policy brief to be launched at the 4th World Water Forum in Mexico in 2006.

Specific International Cooperation actions, thematically based, realised by mutual interest in co-operating on particular topics, will be undertaken within the 'Cooperation', 'Capacities' and 'People' Specific Programmes in FP7. These actions would cover 'Opening of calls for participants from third countries', 'Opening of calls dedicated to a particular country/region for participants from third countries'. Such actions include, in particular: actions aiming at reinforcing the research capacities of candidate countries as well as neighbourhood countries; cooperative activities targeted at developing and emerging countries, focusing on their particular needs in fields such as health, food and agriculture, fisheries, management of natural resources and renewable energies, and implemented in financial conditions adapted to their capacities.

1.2.9. Strengthening the foundations of the European research area

Co-ordinate national and regional research programmes

A total of 68 ERA-NET projects were selected, aiming at coordinating national and regional research programmes in fields such as bilateral cooperation with third countries, metrology, agriculture and fisheries, plant and human health, energy, transport or environment. The first results of the current ERA-NET projects in intensifying co-ordination and cooperation include a wealth of information about national research programmes (contents, set-up and management). Several ERA-NETs have published joint calls for proposals and some support other policies such as SEE-ERA-NET, contributing as well to international cooperation research policy. In order to take stock of the ERA-NET scheme, including the more strategic and policy related aspects, an in depth analysis will be undertaken in 2006. The major analysis work will be done by an external expert group. In preparation of this expert group DG RTD has organised a few workshops with participants in ERA-NET projects. These workshops have gathered some input as preparation of the work of the expert panel. It is planned that the report of this group - at least in draft format- shall be ready by the end of 2006.

ERA-NET PLUS, a new module to incite Member States to pool resources for common calls for proposals in well identified cases has also been included in the FP7 specific programmes proposals.

Based on the experience of the pilot initiative to combat poverty related diseases, four joint initiatives under Article 169 of the Treaty have been included as well in the proposals for FP7 Specific Programmes, thus bringing programme co-ordination another step further: Baltic Sea research, ambient assisted living, metrology and research performing SMEs (the latter in cooperation with Eureka).

Enhance the relations with intergovernmental frameworks

In line with the strategic partnership between the Commission and COST²⁹, specific actions have been launched to enhance the complementarities and synergies with the Framework Programme. The satisfactory implementation and good progress in the reforms of COST were acknowledged in the mid-term review of the contract to support COST. The work programme has subsequently been revised to extend the contract and increase the maximum EU contribution.

There has been an exchange of expertise between the Commission and EUREKA³⁰ on evaluation practice. Further, enhanced cooperation between the Commission and EUREKA has been pursued in view of a potential initiative under article 169 concerning research performing SMEs. In addition, EUREKA Clusters, notably in the area of ICT, are now directly involved in European Technology Platforms.

The grant contract supporting the EUROCORES³¹ scheme has been extended to 3 years: 16 EUROCORES are now at the implementation stage and 4 at the Programme design phase.

Share foresight knowledge

The science and technology foresight activities of the Commission were carried out by several forward looking study activities as well as by the exchange of foresight knowledge between policy-makers and research and innovation policy specialists of the Member States and associated countries. The aim of the foresight activities is to provide interested parties with a service of permanent collection of results and the analyses and syntheses of ongoing science and technology development and its prospective policy impact.

A newsletter 'Foresighting Europe' and a website supported the exchange of information. Several key seminars and conferences took place like 'FOR-LEARN' in Bucharest, Brussels and Seville, as well as the conferences on 'Key Technologies for Europe', 'The Millennium Foresight Conference' and 'The future of key research actors in the European Research Area'.

Stimulate Research and Innovation through public procurement and through foundations

The report of the expert group on Public Procurement to Stimulate Research and Innovation adopted in September explored options and good practices at national level and offered broad recommendations for further policy action. The results were presented at the European conference on procurement for innovation in December.

The report of the expert group on Foundations and Research adopted in December reviewed and assessed the current European landscape of foundations funding research, challenges and trends, proposing a series of measures at national and European level to help promote the role of foundations in funding research.

²⁹ Founded in 1971, COST is an intergovernmental framework for *European Cooperation in the field of Scientific and Technical Research*, allowing the co-ordination of nationally funded research on a European level. COST Actions cover basic and pre-competitive research as well as activities of public utility.

³⁰ Created as an intergovernmental Initiative in 1985, EUREKA aims to enhance European competitiveness through its support to businesses, research centres and universities who carry out pan-European projects to develop innovative products, processes and services.

³¹ European Science Foundation's, scheme promoting the coordination of national funding to support trans-national research projects.

Monitor the EU research and innovation systems

ERAWATCH, the prototype phase of the integrated information and intelligence service on national and regional research policies, was completed and its production phase launched.

The 2005 edition of the 3% Key Figures on the performance of the EU research system, and the 2005 edition of the European Innovation Scoreboard on the innovation performance of the EU were prepared and published. The second EU industrial R&D investment scoreboard was published in December 2005.

Benchmarking of innovation policies in Europe were pursued, relying on the TrendChart on Innovation in Europe. The TrendChart progressively incorporated information and analysis of the innovation policies in the Associated and new Member States. It also extended its scope to take account of the global context, notably on the policies and performance of the USA, Japan, Asia, NAFTA.

1.2.10. Structuring the European research area

Research and Innovation

Several calls for proposals were launched and implemented in 2005:

- 'Entrepreneurial innovation: Networking the players and users': Its objectives were to identify sector-specific leverages to innovation, to activate cooperation between business clusters in Europe and to tackle sector-specific innovation finance issues. 22 projects have been selected for funding and started their activities in autumn 2005. Together with high level innovation panels looking at sectoral innovation issues and two projects dealing with the identification and analysis of clusters in EU25 and associated and candidate countries, they form the Europe INNOVA initiative (<u>www.europe-innova.org</u>) that brings together more than 300 partners from 23 Member States.
- 'Standards in support of innovative business solution': The call aimed at facilitating the integration of open standards into the design of new products and series, the integration of open standards into business practises and the stimulation of innovation through reference to standards in procurement.
- 'Support to innovation policy learning and development'; Launch of the PRO INNO initiative composed of three strands: the INNO-Nets to mobilise, network and support subnational or national innovation policy programmes to carry out cooperation activities; the INNO-Actions to promote new forms of actions helping enterprises to innovate; and the INNO-Net Learning Platform to identify examples of good practice in innovation policy-making, to assess the transferability and adaptability of good practise examples and to identify cases for cross border policy co-operation.
- 'Identification of new methods promoting and encouraging Trans-national Technology transfer'.
- 'Economic and Technological Intelligence', this aimed at examining the impact of measures taken to facilitate the participation of SMEs and SME groupings in the Priority Thematic Areas.

Several calls for tenders were launched in 2005:

• On 'Information Service / Innovation Newsletters', which led to contracts for the editorial work of 'European Innovation' (formerly 'Innovation and Technology Transfer') and 'Euro abstracts' reviews. A series of conferences were organised, and a documentary on the IRC network was produced.

- "Analyse and evaluate innovation in Community Research projects (FP5 and FP6 projects)".
- "Assessment of the impact of off-shoring on the innovation potential of EU companies"
- "Impact of free/open source software on innovation and the competitiveness of the ICT sector in the EU"
- "Entrepreneurial innovation in the future Member States: challenges and issues at stake for the development of clusters of innovative firms"
- "Innovation and public procurement. Review of issues at stake"
- "On-line self assessment tool (SAT) for SMEs and best practices in innovation management
- Europe INNOVA Communication platform
- Patterns of organisational change in European industry (a study on organisational innovation in different manufacturing sectors)

The European 'Innobarometer', an annual survey analysing how managers perceive innovation challenges and barriers across Member States was extended by one year.

Develop a European strategy for Research Infrastructures

The debate in the framework of the Inter-Services Task Force on Research Infrastructures helped in developing a coherent approach for the preparation of FP7. In particular, new operational mechanisms for the development of new research infrastructures have been investigated.

The role of the European Strategy Forum for Research Infrastructures (ESFRI) in supporting a coherent and strategic approach to policy-making has been consolidated:

- A 'List of opportunities' presented concrete examples of new research infrastructures the scientific community will need in the coming decade.
- ESFRI started the preparation of a Roadmap for new research infrastructures of pan-European interest with the setting up of 15 expert groups. The first European Roadmap is expected by autumn 2006.
- A third European Conference on Research Infrastructures has been organised under the UK Presidency, in Nottingham, with the aim of clarifying the long-term scientific needs in relation to European research infrastructures. The Conference also addressed the possible international dimension of the new generation of research infrastructures, as well as their regional or trans-regional impact.

Human resources

Marie Curie outputs and outcomes: In 2005, there were 5233 eligible proposals in response to calls for proposals for 13 different Marie Curie actions. Of these, 960 proposals were selected for funding, which represents an average success rate of 18% (compared to 16% in 2004 and 20% in 2003). In 2005, 1425 participant institutions were supported within 960 selected projects, bringing the total to 4500 for the three first years of the FP6 (2003-2006). The Marie Curie activities in 2005 resulted in about 89,000 researchers-months.

Create a single European labour market for researchers: The Mobility Strategy for the ERA and the Researchers' career Development Policy continued to serve as a coherent frame for the Member States and Commission to minimise obstacles to mobility and to ameliorate researchers' career prospects, with the ultimate aim to create a single, open and competitive European labour market for researchers. Work continued along the principles of the Open

Method of coordination, with seven meetings of the Steering Group on Human resources in the ERA (SGHRM), in 2005.

Enhance inter-sectoral mobility of researchers: On inter-sectoral mobility, and based on an inventory and evaluation of strengths, weaknesses and impact of national schemes, expert groups identified recommendations for action on four areas: knowledge and skills development; career appraisal; remaining legal and administrative obstacles to mobility; and structuring initiatives. A synthesis report will serve as a practical manual in various initiatives in 2006.

Progress reducing mobility obstacles:

- Proposals for a Directive and two Recommendations to substantially facilitate the admission of third-country nationals to carry out research in the European Community were adopted in autumn 2005. A plan to foster and monitor the uptake has been put into place, in close cooperation with the Steering Group of Human Resources and Mobility (SGHRM).
- In the area of social security and taxation, training and information sessions on rules and procedures, as well as on major problems encountered by researchers were organised by DG Research and several Member States.
- DG Research has been involved, as concerns mobility of researchers, in the preparation of the 'European Year of Mobility for workers (2006)' as well as in legislative proposals on portability of pension rights, issued by the Commission in October 2005.
- As concerns information to mobile researchers, the Researcher's Mobility Portal 'ERACAREERS' consolidated notably through new dedicated Portal sections on the European Researchers Charter and Code, the newsletter 'Europe4Researchers', the integration of the 'international dimension' and a more user-friendly section on the ERA-MORE network³².
- Contacts have been established between this network and more general networks on employment and mobility.
- Collaboration has been established with leading European and national research organisations³³ to intensify posting and exchanges of job vacancies.
- After its launch in June 2004, the ERA-MORE network was consolidated in the course of 2005, both at national and at European level. Significant progress can be reported in terms of operability of the 200 Mobility Centres in 32 countries, and of the networking between ERA-MORE members.
- A pilot phase of the instrument ERA-LINK (a network of European researchers abroad aiming at meeting researchers' needs and expectations) was set up based on a 2004 survey involving EU researchers working in USA.

Improve researchers' status, profession and career development: An upturn in researchers' status, profession and career development was boosted with the Recommendations on the European Charter for Researchers and on the Code of Conduct for the Recruitment of Researchers³⁴ in March. Its uptake, for which responsibility lies in Member States, employers and funding-providers of research, developed very positively, supported by an action-based strategy. Most Member States have engaged actively in awareness raising activities and/or screening of legislation and regulations. By the end of 2005 a considerable number of national

³² ERA-MORE is a European network of researchers' mobility centres

³³ e.g. jobs.ac.uk, EIROforum, SINAPSE

³⁴ http://ec.europa.eu./eracareers/pdf/am509774CEE_EN_E4.pdf

research organisations, including in particular university rectors' conferences had formally adopted the Charter and Code. The principles of the Charter/Code are addressed as well in the Proposals for the Specific Programmes of FP7 and in its proposal for the Rules of Participation.

Considerable and wide ranging activities were executed under the 'Researchers in Europe 2005 Initiative': with around 100 events organised such as science weeks, festivals and 'Researchers' nights' through Europe.

Challenge Universities in high-level Research

As a follow-up of the Liège Conference 2004 and the report 'European Universities: Enhancing Europe's Research Base' presented in May by the Forum on University-based research, preparatory work for a document to be presented to the European Council was undertaken. It addressed in particular the challenges faced by universities in performing more efficiently high-level research and in responding better to social and industrial needs.

Science and Society

In the course of the mid-term assessment of the Science and Society Action Plan, a total of 271 activities were examined, including links between these and EU and national policies. Four case studies³⁵ provided more qualitative information. Of the 38 actions of the Action Plan, the Commission's input has been either fully or partly achieved.

In 2005, the implementation of the *Science and Society Action Plan* progressed concerning 'Science education and careers', 'Monitoring of progress towards gender equality in science' and 'Promoting gender equality in science in the wider Europe', 'Facilitating exchange between Ethics Committees', 'Improving the delivery of scientific support to policy makers': The SINAPSE e-Network (Scientific INformAtion for Policy Support in Europe) has been launched³⁶, with the aim of offering a web-based communication channel between the scientific/expert community and public authorities (in particular the European institutions) and decision-makers.

Specific events for the European Research Area were launched in 2005: 'Meeting of Minds', it is the first European Convention gathering 126 citizens from 9 European countries; An expert group on science and governance was set up, which is invited to analyse the growing uneasiness of relations between science and society and to explore ways for constructive interactions between techno-scientific expertise and public concerns.

In order to intensify links and mutual respect between science and society, DG Research implements reviews of research proposals with ethically sensitive content. The proposals evaluated through an ethical review continued to increase in 2005 and related mainly to life sciences, genomics and biotechnology for health, IST, nanotechnologies, food quality and health, and mobility.

³⁵ In Denmark, Finland, Italy and Poland.

³⁶ During the Science and Society Forum in Brussels (9 March 2005)

Following the Commission's document on 'Gender Equality' in Science³⁷, the Council reflected in its Conclusions most of the issues addressed by the Commission: In addition, a guide for good practices for Gender Action Plans was published in autumn 2005³⁸.

Communication of Science is developed essentially through the Research web-site on EUROPA³⁹, the main communication channel for Science, RTD info magazines, media briefings and press releases. AthenaWeb, an innovative professional portal for the localisation, exchange and distribution of scientific audiovisual material in Europe was launched during the First European Research and Innovation Exhibition. Furthermore, to stimulate researchers to communicate better the results of Community funded research, a Science Communication event was organised in November 2005 with practical workshops bringing together Communication professionals, scientists and policy-makers.

1.3. Direct actions by the Joint Research Centre (JRC)

The mission of the JRC is to provide customer-driven scientific and technical support for the conception, development, implementation and monitoring of EU policies. As a service of the European Commission, the JRC functions as a reference centre of science and technology for the Union. Close to the policy-making process, it serves the common interest of the Member States, while being independent of special interests, whether private or national.

Throughout 2005, DG JRC affirmed its position as an independent provider of scientific and technical support to EU policies. This is evidenced by increasing requests for support and positive feedback both from customer DGs of the Commission, Member States and European Parliament. For example, DG JRC has received requests from the European Parliament to further strengthen its scientific-technical support role – a request which falls squarely into DG JRC's mission.

In 2005, DG JRC's role as a scientific-technical reference centre expanded with two new Community Reference Laboratories (CRL) established for GMOs in food and feed and for the authorisation of feed additives. Proposals for the seventh Framework Programme (FP7) were prepared with increased impetus on areas such as sustainable agriculture, support to the Lisbon agenda, environment and health and security.

DG JRC's Annual Report⁴⁰, published in April 2005, gives examples of support to Community policies, documents highlights from the seven Institutes as well as DG JRC's contribution to enlargement, the integration of new Member States, technology transfer, press and media actions and the European Research Area (ERA). DG JRC's role in the development of ERA is exemplified not only through its extensive collaboration networks but also through its recruitment and exchange programmes for Europe's best scientists, its training programmes and use of DG JRC facilities. In line with this theme, a section of the report has been dedicated to young scientists' awards and their innovative achievements in 2005.

³⁷ Staff Working Document 'Women and Science: Excellence and Innovation - Gender Equality in Science' (COM(370) 2005, March 11, 2005)

³⁸ <u>http://europa.esn.be/comm/research/science-society/page_en.cfm?id=3177</u>

³⁹ <u>http://ec.europa.eu/comm/research/index_en.cfm</u>

⁴⁰ EUR 22254 EN, ISBN-10 92-79-01568-0, ISSN 0376-5482

To quote some examples, last April DG JRC launched the first Soil Atlas of Europe. Tools such as this are an invaluable aid for policy-makers when considering measures to protect our soil. In July, the New Hydrogen and Fuel Cell Test Facilities were opened. These facilities will provide governments and industry with an independent evaluation of hydrogen and fuel cell technologies performance in terms of efficiency, safety, environmental friendliness and reliability. In October, DG JRC opened one of the world's largest storage buildings for reference materials. Reference materials are the cornerstones for reliable, comparable and traceable measurements and are imperative for sound scientific and technical support to the EU legislative process and the functioning of the Common Market. DG JRC intensified its support to European engagement in Africa by launching the Africa Observatory for Sustainable Development. Using its longstanding experience on remote sensing, the interpretation of satellite imagery, mapping, statistics and computer models, DG JRC provides support to a range of European Commission DGs in their policy-making, operations and identifies priorities for EU intervention in Africa. Turning to natural disasters, DG JRC provided alerts as well as information products for emergency response, humanitarian relief and reconstruction during and after the Indian Ocean Tsunami in December, 2004 and South Asia Earthquake in October, 2005. In nuclear safeguards, a sample of nuclear material seized in Poland was subject to nuclear forensic analysis by DG JRC and Polish experts. At the DG JRC operated European Centre for the Validation of Alternative Methods (ECVAM) and European Chemicals Bureau (ECB), methods that reduce acute fish toxicity testing by 60% have been validated. The lives of many hundreds of thousands of fish will thereby be saved in the implementation of REACH (Registration, Evaluation and Autorisation of Chemicals). ECVAM is currently in the process of validating some 40 different tests and continues to work closely with the ECB with the goal of reducing the number of animal tests needed in the assessment of chemicals.

In close co-operation with the Research DG, the 2005 EU Industrial R&D Investment Scoreboard was produced. This reports on the worldwide research and development (R&D) of 1 400 companies - the top 700 R&D investors with registered offices in the EU and the top 700 registered elsewhere. This work feeds into the Commission's industrial R&D and innovation monitoring activities which is implemented in support of the 3% Investment in Research Action Plan, requested by the Barcelona European Council in 2002.

1.4. Achievements of previous framework programmes and other activities, including the research fund for coal and steel

1.4.1. Framework programmes

The scientific and administrative management of projects under previous framework programmes continued without hindrance, as well as the assessment of the results and impacts of EU-funded research.

Assessments and impact studies

Impact studies were completed or ongoing during 2005 in several areas:

• In Competitive and sustainable growth on industrial technologies the evaluation of the results and of the anticipated socio-economic impact of completed FP5 Growth projects is on-going. The evaluations for the first batch of projects for the Key Actions Land Transport and Marine Technologies, New Perspectives in Aeronautics, Measurements and Testing, and Support for Research Infrastructures have been finished and reports are

prepared. The assessment should give information about success and failure factors and identify success stories which will be published. The evaluation of the second batch of projects has been started by the end of 2005.

- The INCO Impact assessment focussed on FP5 and compared the evolving European context for International cooperation with approaches by other OECD countries and organisations. The desk based analysis was complemented with stakeholder interviews inside and outside DG Research and an open online survey. Recommendations were formulated for consideration in FP7.
- The study on the impact of Marie Curie fellowships of FP4 and FP5 with more than 2900 respondents highlighted that the these European schemes are considered as having prestigious reputation and best practice for the quality of the international peer review evaluation as well as for the level of remuneration.
- In the area of Information Society Technologies, a series of studies was launched in 2005 to look at the impact of funded projects so far. To get consistent information on impact it was paramount to first put in place a systematic methodology as the real impacts of the research projects are backed by evidence only several years after the end of the projects concerned. According to these studies selected areas of the FP5 IST Programme and its predecessors have contributed substantially to the increase of the knowledge base, standardisation, the skills of researchers and the development of research and knowledge networks, leading to enhanced competitiveness for most participant organisations. These benefits are considered by the participants to be of high strategic relevance, and in turn lead to innovation impacts for user communities, both for project participants themselves and for industry and service sectors using ICT.

Publicise major achievements

Of the major achievements which have been publicised, mention should be made of the following points:

- The assessment of the results and anticipated socio-economic impact of projects under the Competitive and sustainable growth programme for industrial technologies in FP5, whose first report has been produced. A major published report summarises the results of the large scale study 'Evaluation and Impact assessment of projects completed between 1996 and 2001' under FP3 and FP4 in the field of industrial and materials technologies and standards, measurements and testing.
- The above-mentioned study on the impact of the Marie Curie fellowships showed that the schemes have contributed to raising quality in Europe; increasing new skills: both scientific and complementary skills especially in the academic environment; combining fruitfully different backgrounds and knowledge exchange not only international but also intergenerational; encouraging mobility, (for instance the majority of the postgraduate fellows would have not moved without this funding); retaining researchers in Europe that otherwise would have been gone to third countries; improving networking both in creating new links and developing existing connexions; providing full time dedication to research and therefore capacity to explore new areas; increasing productivity in number of publications, conference participation, patents, etc; developing research careers in Europe through keeping researchers in research, increasing their professional status and creating a scientific European identity; and is considered as a best practice scheme for offering conditions that allowed equal opportunities for researchers with families. On the other hand in the case of the Industry hosts scheme fellows were exposed to commercial environments.

- 'Information Society Technology (IST) Results', the online editorial service aimed at raising the visibility of IST-funded research results and to encourage the take-up of innovations, continued throughout 2005. The service produced articles and news items on results emerging from the IST programme. Also the 'Information Society (IS) Policy Link', that links Information Society projects with relevant European policies as varied as environmental protection, security and health, continued in 2005. IS Policy Link assists cutting-edge IST projects to connect better to the relevant policies. The initiative helps Europe to implement today's policies better and ensures that policy development takes into account the possibilities offered by ICTs. Activities carried out so far under the initiative include the publication of thematic brochures covering 14 policy areas with fact sheets about IST (FP5 and FP6), eTen projects (the EU Programme to help the deployment of telecommunication networks-based services with a trans-European dimension) and eContent projects (the EU Programme to make digital content in Europe more accessible, usable and exploitable), and the organisation of two policy workshops.
- CORDIS, the official Community R&D Information System, saw a constant rise in information submitted with some 18 000 additional records added in 2005. The number of registered users rose by 25% to over 120 000 and some 250 000 unique users visited the site monthly, accessing 7 million pages per month. About 400 000 documents were downloaded. CORDIS has become the main source of information for participants of the framework programme and for industrial intelligence gathering searching for relevant outcomes. The demand for information is closely allied to the cycle of calls for proposals. Equally the demand for printed publications has not diminished, with a CORDIS Focus Newsletter circulation to 35 000 addresses in over 90 countries.

Capitalise on research results

The research results of FP5 projects provided a clear support to transport, industry, health and environment policies. Among the many examples, it is worth mentioning:

- Many examples of projects in the field of industrial technologies have been adjudged 'success stories', the expected impact of which cover improvements in quality of life and employment prospects, health, safety and protection of the environment. In particular, research in the field of industrial safety has improved working conditions for workers and the general public, thanks to technological progress and innovation. Moreover, in the field of health the ARPAC project has produced a brochure of recommendations to be implemented in European hospitals and entitled: 'How to make our hospitals a safer place'. In the field of rail transport, the European Rail Traffic Management System, has been validated ensuring interoperable solutions for railway across Europe.
- The EEFAE41 platform (FP5 Growth) with the EEFAE's larger engine (ANTLE) and the engine destined for regional jets (CLEAN) sub activities finished during the first half of 2005. Results are very promising as the completed tests indicate that there could be a 60% reduction of nitrogen oxides and 11% on carbon dioxide. Another technology platform, SILENCER (FP5 Growth), which aims at reducing external noise, is not yet finished but results are being tested encouragingly looking ahead to developing next-generation engines. The IMCAD project studied and validated the use of novel technologies that could considerably reduce development costs and time-to-market for cockpit application development process improvement in time and effort is between 35 and 40%. Knowledge and experience gained in IMCAD are being used in the development of future cockpit applications.

41

Efficient and environmentally friendly aircraft engine

- Many FP5 projects came to fruition in 2005 with very interesting results in terms of research and policy relevance in the field of Citizens and Governance in a knowledge-based society. Among them, the PILOT42 research project demonstrated in an impressive way the specific importance of an often neglected sector in our industrial tissue the low-tech industries and their important role in the innovation process. The DIALOG⁴³ project presented interesting new insights on the demographic change we are facing in Europe.
- Utilisation of expertise and results from INCO projects intensified in the framework of international fora and related frameworks such as Johannesburg plan of implementation, EU Water Initiative, poverty related infectious diseases, the European and Developing Countries Clinical Trials Partnership and the ministerial summit in Mexico on the policies and systems for health.
- Structuring training across Europe: the project European Network for Training in Economic Research (ENTER), a multi-partner Training site whose aim is to provide research and training through research in microeconomics and micro econometrics and applications, with special emphasis on network effects and market design, and the interaction of the public and private sectors. The ENTER network encourages mobility of economics PhD researchers, allowing them to specialise in their field of interest. The network diploma is a signal of quality, adding value in the professional market.
- Interactive directory of projects, an interactive table presenting the 'City of Tomorrow' projects grouped by clusters and providing access to project information and main deliverables.
- In the framework of the collaboration established with United Nations Human Settlements Programme, the development of a common database of tools and good practices emerging from research funded by both organisations is implemented.
- Successful mobilisation of several FP5 projects to organise exhibitions, round-tables and mini-workshops at the Communicating European Research 2005 event in November 2005
- Preparation of a 'projects success stories' brochure for a wide, non-specialist audience.
- A Workshop on Water Reuse was organised in collaboration with the AQUAREC partners '(Integrated concepts for upgraded waste water reuse)' as well as regional and national water companies with the aim to present and discuss preliminary results of the project.
- Projects concerning the Climate Change modelisation (PRUDENCE) and its impacts, and better knowledge of the Carbon Cycle (CARBOEUROPE1) were finalised and contributed to community policies.
- In 2005, there were several important and impressive breakthroughs announced by EUfunded projects under the Information Society Technologies (IST) Programme, for example:
 - Advanced ICT-based anti-collision radars and automatic braking systems were shown to have the potential to reduce rear-end collisions by up to 75%.
 - Prototypes were developed for clothing that can monitor vital signs, communicate with remote health centres and present data in a variety of formats for further analysis by doctors and researchers.
 - New architectures for highly reliable electronic systems were deployed in airplanes' cabin pressure system, in engine controls in cars, and in control systems of electrical power plants.

⁴² Policy and innovation in low-tech.

⁴³ An international comparative research project studying the attitudes of the population to demographic change and population-relevant policies.

- The roll-out of broadband data networks in Europe has been largely enhanced through the introduction of new optical wavelength division technology that increases bandwidth over existing fibre optic backbones.
- Miniaturisation technologies needed for the next generation of ICT products, such as memory cells and light sources for future lithography, were demonstrated.
- New developments in organic electronics has enabled opto-electronic devices such as flexible solar cells, flat display screens and low-cost 'intelligent' identification tags to take a step-change towards market introduction.
- CORDIS Technology Market Place receives over 100 results per week from research and technological development and innovation projects. Many of these are edited professionally, and the most relevant are highlighted in a printed publication with a circulation of approximately 35 000.
- Research on Galileo, under the 5th Framework Programme, allowed the definition, the development of the infrastructure and application of a European Satellite Navigation Programme. This Programme is creating an important market share for European industry and is expected to result in at least 100,000 new highly skilled jobs. Galileo will introduce the use of satellite navigation into several key sectors of modern economies and will ensure political and financial benefits for Europe.

1.4.2. Research fund for coal and steel

The Research Fund for Coal and Steel (RFCS) has an annual budget of 60 million Euros and aims to support research and pilot projects relating to the production and use of coal and steel in order to increase the competitiveness of the industry and contribute to sustainable development.

The work programme planned for 2005 was carried out successfully: operational and financial management of current 118 contracts, negotiation of 59 new contracts, evaluation of almost 200 proposals and management of the ESCS in liquidation. Enlargement has also had a major impact on the Fund, including efforts on communication and information in the new Member States. As result of a joint call with the third thematic priority of FP6, the ambitious strategic integrated project on ultra low CO2 steelmaking is progressing well. Involving 47 European partners, its objective is to explore how best to produce steel while reducing CO2 emissions.

The objectives set out for the Research Fund for Coal and Steel were achieved in 2005. A great deal of attention was paid to both improved competitiveness and sustainable development.

The launch of the Programme monitoring exercise in December 2005 is a crucial element which will pave the way for the revision of the RFCS Technical Guidelines to be launched in 2007.

The European Steel Technology Platform was set up to define a long-term vision with the view to ensuring global and sustainable leadership of the European steel Industry for the next 30 years. The strategic research agenda of this platform published in April 2005 bears witness to the fact that the sector is highly involved in this initiative, since it is the fruit of an intensive collaboration work carried out by the support group and its seven working groups involving more than 100 experts from the industry.

1.5. Research and training actions under the Euratom Treaty

Fusion

The action plan and the work programmes 'Fusion Technology' and 'Joint European Torus' $(JET)^{44}$ of the European Fusion Development Agreement $(EFDA)^{45}$ were approved in 2005. The functioning and successful exploitation of the JET installations progressed particularly well. A major meeting was organised (as a follow up to a similar meeting in 2004), to promote the integration of partners from the new Member States Association Contracts were signed for the participation of Poland and Slovenia in this programme and the duration of all 23 contracts was extended until the end of 2006.

Based upon the outcome of an extensive consultation with stakeholders, work started in October on the preparation of the proposals to establish a Joint Undertaking as the 'Domestic Agency' that will manage the European contribution to ITER⁴⁶ and the 'Broader Approach' activities and to be established end 2006 or early 2007.

At their Ministerial Meeting held in Moscow on 28 June, the international Parties to the ITER Negotiations eventually agreed in choosing Cadarache (France) as site for realising the international ITER project. Numerous multilateral meetings followed - which resulted also in India acceding to the negotiations - completing the negotiations in view of the signing of the ITER Agreement in early 2007. Developments in parallel to ITER will be needed to accelerate the development of fusion as a commercially viable energy source for the future. The 'Broader Approach' will therefore ensure that other supporting research is carried out. In this context, the conditions for joint activities were negotiated with Japan.

Public information activities were conducted with the aim of communicating progress in fusion research to the general public, in particular by showing the Fusion Expo in a number of the new Member States and by exploiting the interest generated by the decision to build ITER in Europe.

A pilot training scheme was launched, aiming principally at bringing young engineers into the Euratom programme and giving them the skills which will be needed for ITER. If successful, it will continue and will be reinforced in FP7.

The objective of the European Fusion Programme, to co-ordinate fusion technology and physics research and development activities, was achieved.

Fission and radioprotection

Activities in management of radioactive waste, radiation protection and other activities in the field of nuclear technologies and safety: Community-funded research is marked by strong continuity with past actions and an important political dimension. During 2005 a number of major FP6 projects in all fields were subjected to their first annual reviews aided by external experts. This produced useful feedback to researchers and resulted in marked improvements

⁴⁴ The world's largest nuclear fusion research facility

⁴⁵ A framework contract between Euratom and its partners in the field of fusion energy research

⁴⁶ ITER aims at reproducing the physical reaction - fusion - that occurs in the sun and stars at a scale and in conditions that will demonstrate the scientific and technological feasibility of fusion as an energy source.

in project follow-up. Following the 2^{nd} fixed deadline call, further key projects were launched on radioactive waste management and innovative reactor concepts (Generation IV systems). Of particular note in the latter case is a major IP on the Very High Temperature Reactor (VHTR). In June, the final FP6 fixed deadline call was published, with a budget of \notin 52M. Evaluations took place in November and December.

The beneficial integrative effect of the work programme is now becoming apparent. The FP acts as a catalyst encouraging enhanced cooperation within the R&D community. The emphasis towards the end of FP6 and start of FP7 will be on the creation of Technology Platforms in geological disposal and 'sustainable nuclear fission', requiring the active engagement of all key R&D stakeholders, including industry. On the international scene, a number of larger FP6 projects already involve partners from 3^{rd} countries, either as a result of umbrella Euratom agreements with the countries concerned (e.g. Euratom – US DOE) or *ad hoc* bilateral contacts. Routine collaboration is continuing with the NEA and IAEA through participation in standing committees or technical meetings. A number of jointly sponsored and/or organised events either have been undertaken or are planned. Important cooperation within the Generation IV International Forum is assured following agreement in Council at the end of 2005 on Euratom's accession.

2. Developments in Member States and application of the Open Method Coordination

2.1. The Open Method of Coordination in Support of Reaching the Barcelona Objectives

Member States have pursued common objectives in the formulation of their National Reform Programmes (NRPs) thanks to an agreed set of 24 guidelines that cover, in an integrated manner, the macroeconomic, microeconomic and employment dimension. One of these guidelines is specifically devoted to R&D⁴⁷ and others also have elements relating to R&D⁴⁸. By reporting on broad R&D policy developments, the part of the NRP's related to R&D complements the work of CREST on the application of the open method of coordination (OMC) to the 3% objective which focuses on specific policy issues of common interest. The main objectives of OMC 3 % are to (i) contribute to more effective national policies through enhanced mutual learning, peer review and identification of good practice;(ii) identify issues with a strong trans-national dimension, which would benefit from concerted or joint action between MS or mutually reinforcing action at national and EU levels, and; (iii) prepare the ground for concerted action by interested MS and for the Community legislation or guidelines wherever appropriate.

CREST launched the second cycle in January 2005. This second cycle will be completed by summer 2006. Five CREST Expert Groups were established in the areas of policy mix, public research base and links with industry, SMEs, Fiscal Measures and Intellectual Property, with the aim to assist CREST in preparing its recommendations on specific topics.

In the area of *policy mixes*, a specific peer-review process was developed and applied to three countries (Sweden, Spain and Romania) with the aim to encourage the sharing of information

⁴⁷ IGL7

⁴⁸ Such as IGLs 8 and 10

about policy-related issues and to generate both country-specific and generic lessons for the formulation and implementation of effective policy mixes needed to raise R&D intensity. Work was based on a simple analytical framework which described policy mixes as the combination and interaction of the range of policies affecting resources in S&T. Generic lessons for formulating and implementing effective policy mixes included the need:

- To adopt holistic approaches to policy development, using analyses of strengths, weaknesses, opportunities and threats (SWOT) and building on strategic intelligence furnished by comprehensive evaluations and vision-generating initiatives such as foresight exercises.
- To ensure that the high-level commitment to the importance of R&D is effectively communicated to all relevant ministries and agencies, clearly delineating their respective tasks and responsibilities and ensuring adequate coordination.
- To strike the right balance between competitive and non-competitive R&D funding in the science base in order to promote both excellence and stability, between concentrating funds on areas of strategic importance and satisfying the funding needs of a broad spread of researchers, between the respective roles of universities and research institutes within innovation systems, and to ensure that R&D regional policies fully concur to national priorities.

In the area of the reform *of public research centres* the work entailed the mapping of current policy developments to support knowledge transfer between public research organisations and industry and the development of policy recommendations and implementation guidance on knowledge exchange, organisation of public research organisations (PROs), ventures/spin-offs and incentive schemes for researchers. Peer reviews in Italy, Lithuania, Spain and Sweden as well as 12 country reports led to policy learning and specific recommendations. The main findings are:

- When restructuring of public research centres, demand driven approaches need to be integrated into the planning of research activities as well as into the redefinition of the operational management of the organisations.
- In order to achieve successful knowledge transfer from Universities a change in the organisation cultural attitude and awareness, professional management of knowledge transfer activities, a proper knowledge transfer infrastructure and a system of performance assessment are necessary.
- The additional burden and non self-sustaining character of knowledge transfer activities requires dedicated public funding. This calls for the creation of incentive schemes for researchers to conduct knowledge transfer activities.

In the area of *SMEs*, the focus was on the needs of research intensive SMEs and high-tech start-ups. The most important issues and recommendations are as follows:

- Market failures in the provision of early stage venture capital makes public measures imperative, but it is proposed to condition financial support to young research intensive SMEs to the acceptance of adequate coaching and learning on a diversity of management skills necessary to implement a successful business model.
- Better linking SMEs to the research infrastructure implies a better segmentation of knowledge transfer strategies and policies according different types of SMEs.

- Technology procurement is considered as an instrument for demand creation that is particularly important for young research-intensive SMEs.
- Further policy learning is necessary to better understand the conditions to promote more innovative high-growth SMEs.

In the area of *fiscal measures*, the work focused on the evaluation of tax measures for Research and their design which led to the development of a practical guide on evaluation of tax measures. As many Member States have been introducing, extending or improving tax incentives for Research during the last year's mutual learning is a very useful tool. This report will also be an important input to the forthcoming Commission Communication on tax incentives for R&D and on the Community Framework for State aid for Research and Development and Innovation.

In the area of *IPR* the following two work-streams aiming to promote exploitation of publicly-funded research results were tackled and the work will be concluded in mid-2006:

- Improving the coherence and effectiveness of IPR ownership regimes applicable to publicly funded research, as well as providing common general principles for contractual arrangements governing university-industry R&D collaborations and technology transfer activities.
- Professionalization of technology transfer officers at universities and other PROs.

In the area of *Human Resources* in research, under the coordination of the *Steering Group on Human Resources and Mobility* (SG HRM), Member States engaged in a mutual learning exercise concerning mobility of researchers between academia and industry. In January 2005, the SG HRM together with 21 experts looked into 'good practices' for enhancing inter-sector mobility, with a particular focus on strengths/weaknesses and impact of national initiatives. In order to progress further and propose practical recommendations, expert groups were set up in four areas: 1) knowledge and skills development; 2) career appraisal; 3) remaining legal and administrative obstacles to mobility; and 4) structuring initiatives. Each expert group held meetings between June and October, resulting in an inventory of best practices examples and recommendations for possible actions, which was presented to the Steering Group HRM in December 2005.

2.2. Trends in Research Policies

2.2.1. Trends in Policy and Governance

A first common policy trend across the Member States concerns the important place of R&D policy in the overall policy agendas. Under the influence of the Lisbon strategy and the Barcelona objective, R&D is considered as key source for sustaining economic growth and welfare. Another important trend is the development of commonly shared R&D Policy objectives, which is consistent with the Integrated Guidelines used by Member States for building their respective National Reform Programs.

A basic structural trend is also the *integration of R&D policy with innovation policy*, *a* development that is consistent with the systems-oriented policy approaches applied in many Member States. The situation in the UK where science and technology policy has evolved into an innovation policy wherein S&T concerns are fully integrated into the broader national system of innovation is illustrative of developments in other Member States. Another example

is Denmark where a Ministry of Science, Technology and Innovation has been created, which seeks to integrate research and business innovation policies.

The evolution of the research systems is particularly rapid and profound in the new Member States. In most of these countries new legislation is being past, new institutions are being created and new strategic documents are being published. In 2005 alone Hungary, Latvia, Poland and Slovakia passed new legislation on research. Hungary and Poland also passed legislation on higher education and innovation and, in previous years, new legislation on research was also introduced in Lithuania and Slovenia. Comprehensive strategic policy documents such as the Estonian 'Research and Development Strategy Knowledge-based Estonia 2002-2006', the Polish 'The strategy to increase the expenditures on R&D to reach the objectives of the Lisbon Strategy, 2004' and the National Innovation Policy 2005-2010 in the Czech Republic were also adopted.

In order to improve development and management of research and innovation policies *governance structures* have been strengthened or introduced in a number of Member States (e.g. Austria, Germany), inspired by the successful example of the Finnish Science and Technology Policy Council. R&D and Innovation Councils, often attached to Prime Ministers' offices, involving social partners and relevant ministries advise the government on a strategic level on a wide spectrum of policy fields. This trend is particularly strong in the new Member States. In Lithuania a single governmental commission for Science, Technology and Innovation has been created. Poland introduced a Council for Science and Technology Development by law in January 2005 in order to develop national innovation and science related policies in a coherent manner.

As these newly developed structures do not limit themselves to R&D policy in narrow sense, the design of the 'right' policy mixes and the setting of the 'right' priorities becomes the central element. Beyond integration and coordination of R&D and innovation policies, there is an increasing recognition - increased by multilateral policy learning in the context of the Open Method of Coordination - that such areas as competition policy, public procurement or regulatory policies with respect to the environment or health and safety, ought to take R&D issues into account.

2.2.2. Trends in the development of the supply of HR for research.

Overall positive trends characterise the supply of researchers' population in Europe. Between 1994 and 2003, the total number of researchers has increased on average by 3.5% per year⁴⁹. The analysis of available evidence provides a broad picture of the stocks for the EU25 and, in particular, it shows that:

- There is a regular growth in the number of researchers in the EU;
- The growth in the number of researchers is more robust in the private sector than in the public sector;
- For the latter, growth in universities is higher than in government research centres;
- Growth in the number of researchers in industry is driven by the service sectors; and
- Growth in the number of researchers in the EU is driven by 'small' countries (not the big four).

⁴⁹

Reference Eurostat, national statistical offices

With regards to the supply of new researchers, reference can also be made to the number of doctoral candidates in the EU, which grew steadily in recent years and represent a substantial part of the researchers in academic laboratories. The number of doctoral candidates is estimated at 540,000 in 2003, up from 470,000 in 1998. The number of doctorates awarded also increased from a total number of degrees of 75,000 in 1998 to 86,000 awarded in 2003. The growth varies across countries with in particular flat numbers in Germany and Finland and a decline in France. For Science and Engineering, the number of new doctorate graduates was 36,000 in 2003, up from 33,000 in 1998. The number of science and of engineering graduates has also increased in recent years.

Yet, this rather good picture of the global supply of potential researchers does not imply that no further political action is required. First there is the issue of adequate distribution within countries and across scientific sub-fields. Second, and more importantly, there are increasing job opportunities and demands for highly skilled people outside the research system. Therefore, there is a requirement to make scientific careers attractive enough for young people with high potential. A scanning of policy measures reveals a clustering of initiatives around four broad topics:

- Specific policies in favour of young researchers;
- Attracting foreign and expatriate researchers;
- Improvement of the qualification of researchers through training; and
- Overall excellence of human resources for research.

A common objective of these policies is to improve the attractiveness of research careers in the public and private sectors through more competitive salaries, dynamic promotion strategies, flexible work conditions, etc. The more research intensive Member States like the Nordic countries, DE, AT and FR focus increasingly on improving the excellence of their human resources, whereas the 'catching-up' Member States like ES, GR and PT focus more on policies in support of young researchers. Many of these measures are recent and there is limited evidence about their impact.

2.2.3. Trends in the research function of Universities

Universities and their role in the creation of the knowledge society gained recently political importance in Member States. Evidence is mounting that European universities are lagging behind their counterparts in other regions of the world in the most strategic areas: training the next generation of young researchers, reaching excellence in research activities or sharing efficiently new knowledge with society, and industry in particular. One of the main reasons for this is that they are under funded and that the resources at their disposal are not growing on a par with what is expected from them. In addition, the European landscape for higher education and research (HE&R) is still too fragmented. Recent analysis revealed that three concrete elements are at the core of the discussion, namely the quality more than the volume of the university-based research, a new role for higher-education institutions in the sharing of new knowledge and the compromises they have to make between their different missions (research, education and contribution to economic development).

A comparison of the available information from shows a rather balanced picture between the EU and the US as regards the total expenditure of the higher education sector for research (HERD), which is roughly the same in these two parts of the world. Nevertheless, not only HERD represents a higher share of total research expenditure in the EU than in the USA, but the number of university researchers and the volume of scientific publications (as research
output measure) are higher in the EU. There are also more institutions of higher education awarding doctorate degrees (the best available proxy of research activities) in the EU.

In recent years, a number of Member States have enacted new policies aiming to strengthen the performances of universities, in particular for what concerns research activities. Yet, although the objective is the same, several approaches are used that pertain to the specificity of the national HE&R systems. The mapping of recent initiatives reveals a clustering around the following main objectives:

- Reinforcement of academic research;
- Autonomy, funding and reform of the HE&R system;
- Excellence in collaboration networking and creation of elite universities; and
- Strengthening of the third mission, i.e. the role of universities in innovation (technology transfer and in as promoters of the knowledge in society).

These new policies can be interpreted more generally as a shift towards a quest for more specialised and excellent universities with an increased competition-based funding but their impact remain to be seen. Indeed, recent surveys of more than one hundred doctorate awarding institutions in ten Member States (the CHINC project supported by JRC-IPTS and the AQUAMETH project supported by the PRIME network of Excellence of FP6) revealed that many of those with a low focus on research a decade ago (as shown by the small ratio between the number of doctorate awarded in a given year and the total number of students enrolled) have increased their relative performance in doctorate production. This could mean that recently there has been a tendency towards a more distributed, rather than concentrated, picture for university-based research.

The proposal to create a European Institute of Technology (EIT) was put forward by the Commission in its 2005 Spring Report as an important initiative in the direction of strengthening the links between education, research and innovation. The European Council took note of this proposal at the 2005 Spring Summit. The Commission organised a comprehensive consultation process about a future EIT, including a public consultation, brainstorming meetings and position papers from university, research and innovation organisations. Consultation results have been analysed and actively used to prepare the COM(2006)77, 'Implementing the renewed partnership for growth and jobs. Developing a knowledge flagship: The European Institute of Technology' and the subsequent COM(2006)276, 'The European Institute of Technology: further steps towards its creation'.

More broadly, the Commission had also been promoting a reflection on what is needed to ensure that universities can maximise their contribution to Europe's Lisbon objectives as key players in the fields of education, research and innovation. The Commission outlined its reflections in a Communication of April 2005 "Mobilising the brainpower of Europe: enabling universities to make their full contribution to the Lisbon Strategy", COM(2005) 152. The reflection was given added impetus at the Informal summit of heads and State at Hampton Court and Government in October 2005. Following an extensive dialogue with Member States and stakeholders, the Commission outlined its ideas to address deficits in the governance, funding as well as fragmentation of higher education in COM(2006) 208, "Delivering on the modernisation agenda for universities: education, research and innovation" of May 2006.

2.3. Trends in public and private research investments

2.3.1. Progress towards the 3% objective

After a period of slow but continued growth between 1997 and 2001, the EU-25 R&D intensity has been stagnating in 2001-2002 at 1.92% of GDP and slightly decreasing after that (in 2004, the EU-25 R&D intensity amounted to 1.90%) (Figure1). This is mainly due to the trends in the four biggest R&D spenders Germany, France, the UK and Italy, which represent more than two-thirds of the total EU-25 R&D expenditure. As in the US the downward trend of the 2000-2002 periods seems to have come to an end, but the deficit in R&D intensity of the EU versus the US is increasing again since 2002. R&D intensity in Japan grows faster than in both the EU and the US, although this seemingly good performance can be partially explained by the low growth rate of Japan's GDP (denominator) over recent years. According to the current trends, China will have caught up with the EU-25 by 2009 in terms of share of GDP devoted to R&D.



Figure 1 Progress towards the 3% Objective R&D intensity, 2004 and average annual growth since 2002

Data: Eurostat, OECD Notes: (1) IT, JP : 2003; AT, FI : 2005. (2) IT, JP : 2002-2003; AT, FI : 2002-2005; EL, LU, SE : 2003-2004.

An examination of the individual Member States' pace of progress after 2002 reveals a distinction between four groups of EU countries. A first group including Finland, Denmark, Austria and Germany are pulling further ahead of the EU average. Especially Austria has been able to progress very substantially over the recent years. France, Belgium and Sweden, which were part of this first group until 2002, experienced a weakening of their growth performance and are now losing momentum. The trend reversal is particularly significant in the case of Sweden, where the annual R&D intensity growth dropped from + 4.9% (1997-2001) to - 4.5% (2001-2004), with - 6,4% in the period 2003-2004 (Figure 1).Italy, Portugal, and Greece, Hungary and Slovakia, and to a lesser extent the Portugal, Italy, Slovenia and the UK, are falling further behind since 2002. Conversely, most of the other new Member States, in particular Cyprus, Estonia and Lithuania, as well as Ireland, Spain, and to a lesser extent The

Netherlands and Luxembourg, have been catching up with the EU average over the recent years.

As a consequence of increased commitments to the renewed Lisbon strategy and the 3% goal, all 25 Member States have set their own targets for their R&D intensity for 2010 or other years. If the Member States reach their objectives, the overall EU-25 R&D intensity will have progressed substantially up to about 2.6% in 2010. By comparing for each Member States and for the EU-25 as a whole the annual rate of growth required meeting the target with the rate of growth experienced over the recent years (1997-2004) allows for assessing the ambition of the targets. The countries close to or below the bisector (such as Denmark, Finland, Sweden, Germany, Austria) have experienced a rate of growth which, if it is maintained, would be sufficient to reach their targets. For countries such as Belgium or France, and for the EU-25 as a whole, the targets will be reached only if there is a substantial acceleration of the growth of R&D expenditure. For countries such as Poland, Slovakia, Malta, Latvia or Greece, the targets are very ambitious.



Figure 2 R&D intensity - average annual growth 1997-2004 and average annual growth (%) 2004-2010 required to meet the 2010 target

R&D intensity - average annual growth (%) 1997-2004 (1)

Data: Eurostat, Member States

Notes: (1) IT : 1997-2003; AT, FI : 1997-2005; EE, CY : 1998-2004; FR, LU : 2000-2004; MT : 2002-2004.

(2) IT : 2003-2010; PL : 2004-2008; AT, FI : 2005-2010.

(3) IE, PL, UK : R&D intensity targets for 2010 were estimated on the basis of data provided by these countries.

2.3.2. Trends in public funding

Although domestic R&D efforts are largely financed by the business enterprise sector in Europe, the US and Japan, the role of government in the financing of R&D should not be under-estimated. The level of government-funded R&D intensity is substantial in many high R&D intensive countries (e.g. Nordic countries, Germany, France, Austria and the US), showing that private investment can be stimulated by well-designed public programmes. Moreover, in low R&D intensive countries, government-funded R&D is higher than business-funded R&D. Government funding of R&D is critical for creating and developing S&T capabilities, a prerequisite for catching-up with countries at the technology frontier, or for supporting research projects with high expected social benefits.

Government funding of R&D has been very stable in the EU-25 since the end of the 1990s at around 0.65% of GDP (last year available: 2003). It is important to note that indirect measures such as fiscal incentives to R&D, which are increasingly used by governments to stimulate R&D, are not included in these figures. As regards possible future trends, budget forecasts seem to indicate that all Member States plan to at least maintain a similar growth of their public R&D budgets in 2004-2008 as before 2004⁵⁰. Some countries (such as CZ, LT, PL and SK) even intend to substantially increase them. If these forecasted figures are confirmed, they may result in an increased intensity of public R&D investment (government-funded R&D as % of GDP).

2.3.3. Trends in private R&D

• Trends at EU-25 level

In recent years, business-funded R&D as % of GPD has been stable at around 1% in the EU. Behind this apparent stagnation, however, sharp fluctuations in volumes of private investment were observed. Until 2000, the business funding of R&D grew at a very high rate which even outpaced the GDP growth. This trend continued in 2001, even though growth weakened on both fronts. After 2001, the economic slowdown translated into a sharp reduction of the growth of business funded R&D: in 2002-2003, this growth was close to zero and well below the rate of GDP growth.

A similar pattern was observed in the US, albeit with two noticeable differences. Firstly, growth of privately financed R&D was much more pro-cyclical in the US: its growth rates were twice to three times higher than overall GDP growth until 2000, dropped more sharply than in the EU in 2001-2002 - leading to an absolute decrease in private investment- and experienced subsequently in the US a stronger recovery from 2003 on. Secondly, there seems to be one year time-lag between the EU and the US. The big fall of private investment growth occurred in 2001-2002 in the US whilst it took place mainly in 2002-2003 in the EU. Conversely, the recovery of both the economic growth and the business-funded R&D has already begun in 2003 in the US, but not yet in the EU.

⁵⁰ The information provided here refers to budget forecasts of the so-called 'Government Budget Outlays or Appropriations on R&D' (GBOARD). It covers budget provisions rather than money actually spent.



Figure 3 EU-25 and US - GDP and GERD financed by business enterprise - real growth per annum (%)

Data: Eurostat, OECD

(2) US : There is a break in series between 1998 and 1997 for GERD financed by business enterprise.

Whether the private investment in R&D in the EU has followed the economic recovery like in the US cannot yet be said because of data unavailability. The latest (2005) edition of the annual 'EU Industrial R&D Investment Scoreboard'⁵¹ and its 'Industrial R&D Survey'⁵², however, provides insights on more recent and prospective trends. The Scoreboard analyses the R&D investment of the top 700 R&D-investing EU companies (i.e. whose ultimate parent is located in the EU) and the top 700 R&D-investing non-EU companies for financial year 2004, while the Survey gets some measure of future trends as expected by 95 out of these big European R&D players. Although the figures are not comparable with the official statistics on private funding of R&D (Scoreboard and Survey reflect the 'global' R&D effort by the company without geographic allocation while official statistics monitor territorial R&D activity), they complement and prolong the analysis.

For instance, a positive signal from the '2005 Scoreboard' is the turnaround in the R&D investment growth rate by EU companies from an annual decline of 2% in 2002-2003 to an

Notes: (1) EU-25 : LU and MT are not included; GERD was estimated by DG Research.

⁵¹ European Commission – DG-JRC and DG-RTD – 'The 2005 EU industrial R&D investment Scoreboard' – EU 21 851 EN.

⁵² European Commission – DG-JRC and DG-RTD – 'The Survey on Business Trends in R&D investment' - EUR 22162 EN.

increase of 0.7% in 2003-2004. Moreover, the Survey respondents expect a recovery for R&D investment growth in 2004-2006 compared to previous years, citing average growth rates of about 6% p.a. Companies in high R&D intensive sectors expect bigger growth rates for R&D investment than those in the other sectors. The expectation is positive for 16 of the 22 sectors covered, and the strongest factor affecting companies' intention to increase R&D investment is the expected increase in market demand for new products and services.

However, most of the 2004 Scoreboard's worrying findings are confirmed. Firstly, the growth of R&D investment by EU companies, albeit increasing, remains well below that of the non-EU companies, which results in a widening gap in aggregate R&D investment. Moreover, the slight positive upturn of R&D investment by EU companies may not translate into an increase in business-funded R&D within the EU, since part of the investment is allocated abroad. Secondly, EU companies still demonstrate a weaker presence in sectors of high R&D intensity. Finally, EU companies account for a relatively lower proportion of R&D investment and lower R&D growth rates in sectors with the highest annual R&D growth rates world-wide (mostly in services such as software and computer services, but also pharmaceuticals and biotechnology).

• Trends at Member States level

The aggregate situation at EU-25 level hides very different individual Members States situations. Over the period 1997-2003 some Members States did experience significant growth of their business-funded R&D intensity. Obviously, the very high growth rates of Cyprus, Estonia, Latvia, Portugal and Greece have to put into perspective with their extremely low starting points as these are countries in the 'catching-up' phase. But there are some countries which have a business-funded R&D intensity above EU-average and yet achieve to 'pull further ahead': these are Denmark, Finland and to a lesser degree Germany. Exploring the reasons of these successes on the road towards the Barcelona targets, it is pertinent to look to the contributions of the various sectors of the economy to the growth of the business R&D intensity of these countries.

For Finland and Germany, there has been in each case one manufacturing sector which since the beginning of the nineties has been responsible for the quasi totality of the manufacturing contribution to the growth of the business R&D intensity: in Finland, this is the communication equipments sector and in Germany, the motor vehicles sector. In Finland, there has been also a significant contribution from the services sector (mainly ICT services). For Denmark, the bulk of the manufacturing contribution to the growth of the business R&D intensity has been provided by the pharmaceutical sector. As for Finland, the contribution from the services sector has also been also very important which reflects principally the development of the ICT services sector, but also the one of biotech companies working mainly for the pharmaceutical sector. Sweden is the EU Member State with the highest business R&D intensity and it experienced, before the more recent slowing down, a very strong increase of this intensity in the nineties. As shown also, its success was due to increases of the contributions from three manufacturing sectors: communication equipments, pharmaceuticals and motor vehicles.

These examples highlight the importance of some kind of specialisation of the national/regional innovation systems and economies around R&D intensive sectors and companies.

3. INTERNATIONAL COOPERATION AGREEMENTS

The international dimension of the Union's research has grown significantly under the Sixth Framework Programme, in the frame of the European Research Area. In the report period the emphasis laid on enhancing the existing instruments and established partnerships, based on equitable access to knowledge and know-how and sharing of the risks and benefits of joint high level research. The preparation and conclusion of S&T association and bilateral co-operation agreements with third countries continued:

In the area of Association S&T agreements the Commission signed in November 2005 a Memorandum of Understanding with Croatia based on the General Agreement on 'Association of candidate countries to Community programmes' which fully associates Croatia to FP6. Furthermore, in July 2005 the Commission adopted a proposal on the conclusion of an S&T association agreement with Switzerland for FP6 which the European Parliament endorsed in a report of November of that year. Furthermore the Commission had first talks with Israel and Switzerland to prepare the negotiations for the conclusion of S&T association agreements for FP7 between the EC and these countries.

The Community concluded **bilateral S&T co-operation agreements** with Brazil and Mexico in 2004. Similar agreements were concluded with Argentina in 2004 Chile en 2002. Specific Support Actions are under way with these four Latin American countries (Chile, Argentina, Mexico, and Brazil) aiming at reinforcing the scientific dialogue and cooperation the Community has with them, e.g. through enhanced participation in the EC's Research Framework Programme.

In June 2005 the EC also signed an S&T agreement with Egypt. Another agreement is under negotiation with Korea, along the lines of the mandate given on 7 March 2006 by the European Council to the Commission. A draft was initialled on 21 December 2005 and subsequent procedures to lead to the signature are on-going.

In the Conference 'The international dimension of the Europe of knowledge – A common interest to Europe and the world' in October 2005 Commissioner Potočnik and international participants discussed the challenges of a Europe of knowledge open to the world and recommended the elaboration of a comprehensive international S&T strategy for Europe providing additional impetus for the EU to be a key partner in the global arena of research cooperation.

4. CONSULTATION AND MONITORING PROCEDURES

4.1. Scientific and Technical Research Committee (CREST)

Within the framework of CREST's mandate to promote the co-ordination of Member States RTD activities in order to ensure mutual consistency between national policies and Community policy and, in particular, the invitation by the Competitiveness Council (Council Resolution of 22 September 2003. 'Investing in Research in Europe') to CREST to act as the operational interface between Member States when applying the open method of co-ordination (OMC) to policies supporting the Barcelona 3% objective, the work of the Committee during 2005 concentrated mainly on: (i) the second cycle of the OMC, i.e. the opening and co-ordination of national programmes and the implementation of the OMC within the context of the Barcelona objective; and (ii) national basic research schemes.

Within the context of the second cycle of OMC, in 2005 CREST, supported by five expert groups, gathered information and held discussions on various policy areas where the competence lies primarily at the Member State level (for further details, see the part of the Annual report dealing on OMC).

Regarding national basic research schemes, delegations continued the exercise of presenting their national policies to each other. On the basis of the 17 presentations made (i.e. NL and ES on 16/7; UK, NO, DK and DE on 1/10; AT, FIN and LV on 22/10; EE an IL on 10/12; PL, PT and CH on 20/01; SE and RO on 18/03 and LI on 23/05), complemented with data from all the other CREST members who did not make presentations, a report entitled 'The funding of basic research through dedicated funding agencies in the European Research Area - a comparative analysis for CREST' was prepared.

Finally, CREST was regularly kept informed by the Commission at every meeting on all its initiatives

The national RTD policies of LUX and UK were also presented on the occasion of the Committee's meetings held respectively, in Mondorff-les-Bains and Manchester.

4.2. **Programme Committees**

The three programme committees of the EC and Euratom Specific programmes for the Sixth framework programme were actively involved in the implementation of FP6 in 2005.

The programme committee for the Specific programme 'Integrating and strengthening the European research area' (SP1) met in eight different configurations, seven thematic and one horizontal, and the Specific programme 'Structuring the European Research Area' in five configurations, four specific and one horizontal. The configurations relate to the different priorities and areas of FP6, but belong to the same committee (SP1 or SP2 respectively) and coordination efforts have therefore continued to make sure that they work in the same way.

The two EC Committees held in total almost 50 meetings in 2005. They were asked for over 200 opinions by the Commission, most of them on draft decisions on the selection of proposals and but also on changes to the work programmes. All opinions given were favourable. The Commission also consulted the committees informally for exchanges of views and for information on various issues.

The two consultative committees under the Specific programme under the Euratom treaty had in total seven meetings in 2005. The Fission committee met twice and the Fusion committee met five times.

The Standing Committee on Agricultural Research (SCAR), which was transferred from DG AGRI to DG RTD in 2004, met three times in 2005.

4.3. External Advisory Groups

The twelve advisory groups (AGs) created to cover the research activities and areas of FP6, (namely: Genomics and biotechnology for health; Information society; Nanotechnologies and nanosciences, Knowledge-based multifunctional materials and new production processes and devices' technologies; Aeronautics; Space; Food quality and safety; Sustainable energy systems and nuclear energy; Sustainable surface transport; Global change and ecosystems; Social sciences and humanities in the European Research Area; Human resources; Science

and Society) continued in 2005 to give the Commission advice on the overall strategy to be followed in the development in the various research activities, and in particular on the review of the various work-programmes.

In addition, some AGs produced reports on their activities which were put on-line and therefore made accessible to all at the following address: <u>http://cordis.europa.eu/</u>

4.4. European Research Advisory Board (EURAB)

The European Research Advisory Board (EURAB) is a high level, independent, advisory committee set up by the Commission in September 2001 and consisting of 45 top experts from academia and industry to provide advice on the design and implementation of Community research policy 20. EURAB has focused its attention on the impact of policy instruments, such as the Framework Programmes, delivering advice and opinions on specific issues either at the request of the Commission or on its own initiative.

In July 2004 EURAB completed its first cycle of operation (three years) and half of its members were changed. EURAB has greatly contributed to raising the profile of European research policy. From March 2004 to December 2005 EURAB, produced a number of new recommendations. The recommendations concerned the design of the new Framework Programme (FP7), the Financial Perspectives, the criteria for selection of research themes, the assessment of the FP6 instruments with a forward look to FP7, the increase in the industrial participation in FP7, on International Cooperation, on the integration of Social Sciences and Humanities in FP7, on the regional, potential of research and innovation and the role and importance of Research and Technology Organisations (RTOs) in the European RTD scene.

Furthermore, EURAB continues its work on the establishment of a European Institute of Technology (EIT). It produced its advice on EIT in June 2006 for the summer European Council.

More information on EURAB, the EURAB recommendations and a brief presentation of its 45 members can be found at http://ec.europa.eu/research/eurab/index_en.html

4.5. Monitoring and evaluation

At Framework Programme level, the Commission responded to the Five-Year Assessment of Community Research Activities carried out by a Panel of thirteen high level experts under the chair of Dr E. Ormala (Report in December 2004). A communication was adopted in August 2005 and a Commission Staff Working Paper provided more detailed analysis and comments for each specific recommendation⁵³. The Commission broadly agreed with the recommendations put forward by the Panel. Also the Commission noted the positive assessment of the implementation, results and added value of the Framework Programmes, notably in terms of contribution to the European knowledge base, networking among researchers and structuring of the research system in Europe.

A Panel of independent experts reported in 2005 on 2004 Monitoring exercise on framework programme implementation singled out attention for what it believed was the astounding

⁵³

COM (2005) 387 and SEC (2005) 1054 of 24.8.2005; documents available at http://ec.europa.eu/research/reports/2004/fya_en.html

record of achievement of the framework programme. It linked this with the increasingly routine practice of collaboration between enterprises, universities and research institutions from all Member States for the creation of new scientific and technological knowledge for the good of society. The Panel reported that the fundamental concepts of the framework programme have been highly successful through the continuous enabling of RTD 'hotbeds' on a European scale but also as role models for Member States' RTD programmes. Although the Panel noted that the new instruments of FP6 had caused, and were still causing, stress to some of the actors involved, the Panel nonetheless felt that this was a good sign and indicative of the positive effects of FP6 on learning and innovation. In addition, the Panel focused its attention on some key issues: new initiatives, both in FP6 and being proposed for FP7; the implementation process; the participation of actors and the evaluation process.

Among the Panel's recommendations were the need to promote learning processes for new initiatives and instruments, to define clear 'rules of the game' for recognising Technology Platforms; to expand the means in FP7 for institutional cooperation between Member States within ERA-NETs; to increase remote assessment of research proposals; to carry out further review of the implementation of Networks of Excellence; to create a tighter link between planning of the framework programme and IT tools; and to develop further the proposals for evaluation under FP7 including a new *ex post* evaluation exercise at framework programme level. The Panel's report and the Commission responses to this have recently been published.

*The 5-year assessment of Information Society Research and Technology Development*⁵⁴ has concluded that EU investment has contributed positively to progress in this area. The Evaluation Panel, chaired by Professor Gago, concluded that EU investment should continue at a level that can assure continued leadership and a 'critical mass' of effort in key areas. The Panel also recommended reinforced collaboration across borders and between industry, governments and academia⁵⁵.

The evaluation of research and technology development has been complemented by two major studies; firstly to develop a coherent understanding of the 'causal links' between IST-RTD and the higher-level objectives of the FP⁵⁶; and secondly, to map the networks of collaboration in information society research and innovation; to assess how these have evolved and fit in with global collaboration networks⁵⁷.

5. STATISTICAL TABLES ON THE IMPLEMENTATION OF THE 6th framework programme

The statistical annex which accompanies this working document provides data on proposals received in 2005, on proposals retained for funding that were submitted in 2005, and on contracts signed in 2005 under the 6th Framework Programme. The format of the tables is the

⁵⁴ IST-RTD 5-Year Assessment 1999-2003 (GAGO report) available at:

http://ec.europa.eu/dgs/information_society/evaluation/rtd/5_year_assessment/index_en.htm
 IST-RTD 5-Year Assessment 1999-2003 (GAGO report) available at:

⁵⁶ <u>http://ec.europa.eu/dgs/information_society/evaluation/rtd/5_year_assessment/index_en.htm</u> Technopolis report available at:

http://ec.europa.eu/dgs/information_society/evaluation/studies/s2004_03/index_en.htm
 CESPRI report available at: http://ec.europa.eu/dgs/information_society/evaluation/studies/s2004_02/index_en.htm

same as for the previous Annual Report and reflects the structure of the 6th Framework Programme.

5.1. Explanatory notes

The following notes apply to the tables:

- In the group 'Candidate and Associated Countries', Bulgaria, Romania and Turkey are both candidate and associated countries. Croatia became associated to FP6 for the year 2006 only and this is not reflected yet in these tables. FYROM (Former Yugoslav Republic of Macedonia) became a candidate country in December 2005 (it will appear under the heading 'candidate countries' in the 2006 statistical tables of the next annual report) and is not yet associated to FP6. Iceland, Liechtenstein and Norway are associated countries in the framework of the European Economic Area, and Switzerland and Israel are associated countries in the framework of an association agreement.
- It is not possible to calculate countries' 'success rates' from the number of proposals received and/or selected and those that result in contracts signed, since a proposal selected in year n might not result in a signed contract until year n+1.
- The figures related to EC financial contributions refer to commitments and not payments.
- A collaborative link is assumed to exist between each pair of participants in each contract. The number of collaborative links created by a project is calculated in the following way:
 - (a) When there are *n* participants from a given country in a project, the number of collaborative links between participants from the given country formed as a result of the project is assumed to be $n^*(n-1)/2$.
 - (b) When there are *m* participants from one country and *p* from another country in a project, the number of collaborative links created between the two countries as a result of the project is assumed to be m^*p .

The total number of collaborative links is calculated by summing across all projects.

5.2. List of tables in the statistical annex

Table 1a: FP6 Proposals submitted in 2005: Participation by Priority Area and Instrument

Table 1b: FP6 Proposals submitted in 2005: Participation by Priority Area and Country

Table 2a: FP6 Proposals retained for funding that were submitted in 2005: Participation by Priority Area and Instrument

Table 2b: FP6 Proposals retained for funding that were submitted in 2005: Participation by Priority Area and Country

Table 3a: FP6 Contracts signed in 2005: Participation and Contribution by Priority Area and Instrument

Table 3b: FP6 Contracts signed in 2005: Participation and Contribution by Priority Area and Type of Beneficiary

Table 3c: FP6 Contracts signed in 2005: Participation and Contribution by Priority Area and Country

Table 3d: FP6 Contracts signed in 2005: Participation and Contribution by Instrument and Country

Table 3e: FP6 Contracts signed in 2005: Participation and Contribution by Type of Beneficiary and Country

Table 4: Collaborative Links within contracts signed in 2005

	Table 1a: FP6 Proposals submitted in 2005						Part	icipation b	y Prior	ity Area	& Insti	rument					
			All Inst	ruments		Inte	egrate	d Projects	3	Netwo	orks o	fExcellen	ce	Specifi	c Tar <u>c</u> Pro	jeted Rese jects	arch
	Priority Area	Pro Sub	posals pmitted	Particip	pations	Prop Subr	osals nitted	Particip	ations	Prop Subi	oosals mitted	Particip	ations	Proj Sub	posals mitted	Particip	ations
		No.	%	No.	%	No.	%	No.	%	No.	%	No.	%	No.	%	No.	%
_	1. Life sciences, genomics and biotechnology for health	820	100,0%	7.258	100,0%	81	9,9%	1.385	19,1%	9	1,1%	249	3,4%	618	75,4%	4.889	67,4%
2	2. Information society technologies	3.139	100,0%	29.163	100,0%	395	12,6%	6.850	23,5%	33	1,1%	670	2,3%	2.412	76,8%	19.377	66,4%
ghteni	 Nanotechnologies and nanosciences, knowledge-based multifunctional materials and new production processes and devices 	625	100,0%	6.317	100,0%	200	32,0%	2.659	42,1%					365	58,4%	3.041	48,1%
ž <	4. Aeronautics and space	303	100,0%	3.518	100,0%	14	4,6%	491	14,0%	2	0,7%	55	1,6%	222	73,3%	2.456	69,8%
E E	5. Food quality and safety	382	100,0%	4.256	100,0%	40	10,5%	831	19,5%	11	2,3%	177	4,2%	154	40,3%	1.655	38,9%
20	6. Sustainable development, global change and ecosystems	719	100,0%	8.151	100,0%	137	19,1%	2.347	28,8%	3	0,4%	96	1,2%	376	52,3%	3.903	47,3%
ē£	7. Citizens and governance in a knowledge-based society	412	100,0%	3.678	100,0%	82	19,9%	734	20,0%	17	4,1%	263	7,2%	239	58,0%	2.019	54,9%
Ë	Policy support and anticipating scientific and technological needs	595	100,0%	4.078	100,0%									496	83,4%	3.287	80,6%
1	Horizontal research activities involving SMEs	1.040	100,0%	12.018	100,0%												
ត្តា	Specific measures in support of international cooperation	665	100,0%	4.953	100,0%									331	49,8%	3.093	62,4%
ž	Support for the coordination of activities	68	100,0%	873	100,0%												
_	Support for the coherent development of research & innovation police	117	100,0%	864	100,0%												
Έρ	Research and innovation	358	100,0%	3.430	100,0%												
공품	Human resources and mobility	5.278	100,0%	15.450	100,0%												
글 헐 때	Research infrastructures	220	100,0%	2.089	100,0%												
υ -	Science and society	363	100,0%	1.768	100,0%									21	5,8%	171	9,7%
Euratom		106	100,0%	831	100,0%	3	2,8%	61	7,3%	2	1,3%	47	5,7%	31	23,2%	344	41,4%
Total		15.210	100,0%	108.695	100,0%	952	6,3%	15.358	14,1%	77	0,5%	1.557	1,4%	5.265	34,6%	44.235	40,7%

	Table 1a: FP6 Proposals submitted in 2005						Part	icipation b	y Prio	rity Area	& Instr	ument					
		Coo	ordinati	ion Action	s	Specif	fic Su	pport Acti	ons	Specifi Specif Rese	c Proje ic Actie arch In	ects for SI ons to Pro Ifrastructu	MEs / Imote Ires	Mari Mob Exce	e Curi ility, T Ilence	e Actions raining a Recogniti	on nd ion
	Priority Area	Pro Sub	posals mitted	Particip	pations	Prop Subr	oosals mitted	Particip	ations	Pro Sub	posals mitted	Particip	pations	Pro Sub	posals mitted	Particip	pations
		No.	%	No.	%	No.	%	No.	%	No.	%	No.	%	No.	%	No.	%
	1. Life sciences, genomics and biotechnology for health	10	1,2%	130	1,8%	102	12,4%	605	8,3%								
Ĕ	2. Information society technologies	86	2,7%	931	3,2%	213	6,8%	1.335	4,6%								
ghten	 Nanotechnologies and nanosciences, knowledge-based multifunctional materials and new production processes and devices 	22		241	- 44	20		276									
Ŝ.	A Aeronautics and shace	12	3,5%	178	5,4%		6,1%	270	4,4%								
HAst	5. Food quality and safety	12	4,07.	300	7.0%	165	43.9%	1 293	20.4%								
Ψ	6. Sustainable development, global change and ecosystems	56	7.0%	708	0.7%	147	40,27.	1.233	12 5%								
ទីភ្នំ	7. Citizens and governance in a knowledge-based societu	42	10.2%	494	13.4%	32	7.8%	168	4.6%								
p	Policy support and anticipating scientific and technological needs	28	4.7%	338	8.3%	71	11.9%	453	11.1%								
- E	Horizontal research activities involving SMEs		.,		.,		.,			1.040	100.0%	12.018	100.0%				
ត្តិ	Specific measures in support of international cooperation	37	5.6%	618	12.5%	297	44.7%	1.242	25.1%								
橙	Support for the coordination of activities	68	100,0%	873	100,0%												
-	Support for the coherent development of research & innovation polic	117	100,0%	864	100,0%												
Έn	Research and innovation	158	44,1%	1.549	45,2%	200	55,3%	1.881	54,8%								
-1, £ €	Human resources and mobility													5.278	100,0%	15.450	100,0%
្រឹងញ	Research infrastructures	2	0,3%	34	1,6%	37	16,8%	295	14,1%	181	82,3%	1.760	84,3%				
ū -	Science and society		12,1%	390	22,1%	298	82,1%	1.207	68,3%								
Euratom		24	22,6%	275	33,1%	9	8,5%	30	3,6%	37	34,9%	74	8,9%				
Total		718	4,7%	8.023	7,4%	1.662	10,3%	10.220	3,4%	1.258	8,3%	13.852	12,7%	5.278	34,7%	15.450	14,2%

	Table 1b: FP6 Proposals submitted in 2005								Par	ticipatio	n by Prio	ority Are	a & Coun	itry							
		EU Men Sta	25 - nber ates	BE - B	elgium	CY - C	yprus	CZ - (Rep	Czech ublic	DK - De	enmark	DE - G	ermany	EL - 6	ireece	ES - S	Spain	EE - E	stonia	FR - F	rance
	Priority Area	Propos als	Particip ations	Propos als	Particip ations	Propos als	Particip ations	Propos als	Particip ations	Propos als	Particip ations	Propos als	Particip ations	Propos als	Particip ations	Propos als	Particip ations	Propos als	Particip ations	Propos als	Particip ations
		No.	No.	No.	No.	No.	No.	No.	No.	No.	No.	No.	No.	No.	No.	No.	No.	No.	No.	No.	No.
p	 Life sciences, genomics and biotechnology for health 	812	6.241	203	281	12	13	71	78	128	156	539	1.114	80	131	257	390	39	43	393	748
Ξ.	2. Information society technologies	3.129	25.721	764	1.014	130	149	356	448	268	373	1.983	4.003	1.058	1.853	1.317	2.407	94	118	1.415	2.655
ghte	 Nanotechnologies and nanosciences, knowledge-based multifunctional materials and new production processes and 	582	4.710	126	179	10	38	82	107	61	89	393	903	108	156	208	399	9	10	297	504
5 -	4. Aeronautics and space	300	3.184	104	155	5	5	57	81	18	21	210	554	107	152	112	204	6	6	214	628
통급	5. Food quality and safety	358	2.777	89	135	12	13	53	62	54	76	164	287	73	98	156	262	14	15	140	296
та Ш.	Sustainable development, global change and ecosystems	686	6.075	149	240	28	37	104	137	97	165	414	934	186	322	250	487	32	40	268	547
ទដ្ឋ	Citizens and governance in a knowledge-based society	384	2.623	99	125	16	21	58	62	53	60	232	321	82	110	154	203	33	36	145	196
p	Policy support and anticipating scientific and technological needs	594	3.527	119	144	22	22	50	57	69	94	316	450	112	166	172	231	15	19	233	347
- g	Horizontal research activities involving SMEs	1.039	10.964	221	366	32	37	200	305	138	254	630	1.609	191	372	542	1.450	73	95	369	705
- Ē	Specific measures in support of international cooperation	584	2.125	108	124	12	17	23	28	43	52	185	271	72	86	154	208	7	7	150	208
- P	Support for the coordination of activities	68	756	31	36	7	8	11	13	16	18	50	86	21	24	45	59	11	12	55	94
<u> -</u>	Support for the coherent development of research & innovation police	117	783	19	27	6	6	14	15	11	14	59	94	23	40	48	72	16	17	32	48
Έρ.	Research and innovation	358	2.982	136	180	42	48	44	53	45	64	213	355	94	141	174	305	41	45	155	246
응분들	Human resources and mobility	4.947	13.379	407	493	25	26	211	230	293	327	1.291	1.986	334	392	807	981	56	60	1.308	1.824
ទីធំញ	Research infrastructures	204	1.701	39	52	9	11	29	32	24	33	113	280	44	60	67	110	13	15	93	189
0 T	Science and society	331	1.465	59	78	7	9	22	24	20	28	121	192	43	62	69	104	12	12	108	195
Euratom		99	746	44	71			31	39	3	3	58	114	6	8	34	57			54	115
Total		####	89.759	2.717	3.700	375	460	1.416	1.771	1.341	1.827	6.971	13.553	2.634	4.173	4.566	7.929	471	550	5.429	9.545

									Fai	licipatio				u y							
		HU - H	ungary	IE - Ir	eland	IT -	Italy	LV - I	Latvia	L [:] Lithu	T - uania	LI Luxen	J - nbourg	MT -	Malta	N Nethe	L - rlands	AT - 4	Austria	PL - F	Poland
	Priority Area	Propos als	Particip ations	Propos als	Particip ations	Propos als	Particip ations	Propos als	Particip ations	Propos als	Particip ations	Propos als	Particip ations	Propos als	Particip ations	Propos als	Particip ations	Propos als	Particip ations	Propos als	Particip ations
_		No.	No.	No.	No.	No.	No.	No.	No.	No.	No.	No.	No.	No.	No.	No.	No.	No.	No.	No.	No.
2	1. Life sciences, genomics and biotechnology for health	101	132	58	72	390	803	24	25	15	25	6	6	6	6	265	412	140	232	89	102
Ξ.	2. Information society technologies	381	531	280	344	1.696	3.596	64	74	121	149	63	75	50	53	645	920	546	774	599	796
ghte	3. Nanotechnologies and hanosciences, knowledge-based multifunctional materials and new production processes and	44	51	37	52	285	612	11	11	17	22	7	8	3	3	122	207	93	127	126	187
Ē.	4. Aeronautics and space	28	39	11	11	173	369	8	9	14	15	9	14	2	2	100	145	51	66	78	110
E A	5. Food quality and safety	66	78	31	51	191	398	19	21	26	30	1	1	10	10	118	188	48	76	95	117
ųΰ	Sustainable development, global change and ecosystems	65	101	37	61	326	714	24	30	35	44	5	9	14	15	211	403	154	261	164	262
동은	7. Citizens and governance in a knowledge-based society	90	101	28	32	192	277	12	13	35	37	5	5	16	16	112	150	94	111	117	132
ច្រី	Policy support and anticipating scientific and technological needs	81	103	39	45	272	448	13	15	20	21	2	2	13	16	178	230	89	111	112	128
ų.	Horizontal research activities involving SMEs	144	244	97	126	499	1.300	31	46	41	61	7	8	35	43	258	564	198	375	299	536
Ë	Specific measures in support of international cooperation	29	35	22	23	158	229	2	2	4	4	6	6	8	8	121	150	57	76	25	27
j.	Support for the coordination of activities	17	17	16	16	33	53	3	3	6	6	2	2	3	4	48	57	29	43	18	23
-	Support for the coherent development of research & innovation poli	40	61	10	11	51	90	5	6	14	20	1	1	4	5	15	24	9	17	32	49
Έn	Research and innovation	83	103	34	36	207	391	33	37	42	48	31	34	10	11	73	110	56	78	106	131
₽₩¥	Human resources and mobility	234	252	215	246	936	1.298	21	21	42	43	9	9	7	7	685	845	316	377	377	430
ខ្លុំធ្លាំ	Research infrastructures	30	37	15	17	86	207	9	10	12	13	3	3	4	4	72	125	31	37	41	55
0 L	Science and society	34	44	10	11	117	214	6	6	12	13	3	3	7	8	50	65	36	43	31	35
Euratom		20	21	2	2	25	43	1	1	9	9					30	34	7	7	8	9
Total		1 487	1,950	942	1 156	5 637	11 042	286	330	465	560	160	186	192	211	3 103	4 629	1.954	2 811	2 317	3 129

EN

Table 1b: ED6 D

	Table 1b: FP6 Proposals submitted in 2005				Par	ticipatio	on by Pric	ority Are	a & Cour	ntry			
		PT - P	ortugal	SK - S	lovakia	SI - S	lovenia	FI - F	inland	SE - 5	iweden	UK - l King	Jnited Jdom
	Priority Area	Propos als	Particip ations	Propos als	Particip ation:								
		No.	No.	No.	No								
ŋ	1. Life sciences, genomics and biotechnology for health	57	79	30	35	39	50	79	108	250	372	450	828
.5	2. Information society technologies	371	518	130	168	305	404	428	619	540	807	1.690	2.873
ghtei	 Nanotechnologies and nanosciences, knowledge-based multifunctional materials and new production processes and 	73	107	26	33	55	78	79	127	121	188	298	512
5	4. Aeronautics and space	45	66	9	11	9	15	11	11	63	103	199	392
HA St	5. Food quality and safety	48	74	36	45	36	43	29	38	62	82	157	28
Ψ	6. Sustainable development, global change and ecosystems	122	215	61	80	43	69	73	112	147	210	312	580
۶.	Citizens and governance in a knowledge-based society	53	56	31	31	48	56	69	71	70	74	230	327
┏╴	Policy support and anticipating scientific and technological needs	60	77	25	30	30	35	65	77	105	118	349	54
- Q	Horizontal research activities involving SMEs	157	319	64	105	96	197	114	219	177	336	522	1.292
Ď	Specific measures in support of international cooperation	79	88	6	6	19	26	23	27	57	64	256	353
Ę.	Support for the coordination of activities	30	34	5	7	17	17	21	28	27	34	45	62
<u> </u>	Support for the coherent development of research & innovation police	11	14	11	11	22	28	21	39	22	28	36	46
Έρ.	Research and innovation	56	70	27	30	46	64	50	72	64	80	171	250
공품동	Human resources and mobility	171	193	68	72	90	99	212	244	476	560	1.745	2.364
ទី២៣	Research infrastructures	29	32	12	12	10	11	36	46	59	76	112	234
σ°.	Science and society	19	23	5	21	14	17	29	32	43	61	119	165
Euratom		4	5	10	12	14	16	30	37	35	60	48	83
Total		1.385	1.970	556	709	893	1.225	1.369	1.907	2.318	3.253	6.739	11.183

	Table 1b: FP6 Proposals submitted in 2005			Pa	rticipatio	n by Pri	ority Area	a & Cou	ntry	1 1		
		Cano Cour	lidate ntries	BG - 8	lulgaria	HR - (Croatia	RO - R	lomania	TR - 1	Furkey	
	Priority Area	Propos als	Particip ations									
		No.	No.									
ŋ	1. Life sciences, genomics and biotechnology for health	83	153	21	28	13	14	31	47	39	64	
- E	2. Information society technologies	616	936	199	251	39	45	301	412	171	228	
ghtei	 Nanotechnologies and nanosciences, knowledge-based multifunctional materials and new production processes and 	91	136	32	43	5	5	45	63	20	25	
Ē,	4. Aeronautics and space	37	52	9	11	3	3	23	25	10	13	
H∀	5. Food quality and safety	131	284	38	54	16	20	64	97	69	113	
Ψ	6. Sustainable development, global change and ecosystems	187	354	66	104	30	41	92	134	54	75	
e č	7. Citizens and governance in a knowledge-based society	129	205	61	65	10	10	60	71	48	59	
្ទា	Policy support and anticipating scientific and technological needs	65	96	25	34	12	13	22	25	21	24	
1	Horizontal research activities involving SMEs	219	412	62	96	7	12	110	175	65	129	
č	Specific measures in support of international cooperation	82	118	13	16	45	64	17	20	15	18	
je je	Support for the coordination of activities	19	33	7	9	3	3	12	12	9	9	
<u> </u>	Support for the coherent development of research & innovation poli	28	44	12	15	1	2	18	23	3	4	
Έρ.	Research and innovation	133	236	56	70	9	10	77	99	47	57	
- 등 £ 문	Human resources and mobility	254	323	72	81	14	16	97	119	96	107	
ទួទួញ	Research infrastructures	40	86	20	26	6	6	23	29	15	25	
0 -	Science and society	53	71	23	24	9	9	24	29	8	9	
Euratom		16	25	8	9	1	1	13	15			
Total		2.183	3.564	724	936	223	274	1.029	1.395	690	959	

	Table 1b: FP6 Proposals submitted in 2005				Par	ticipatio	n by Pric	ority Are	a & Coun	ıtry							
		Asso Cour	ciated htries	IS - Io	eland	Liechte	- enstein	NO - M	lor w ay	C l Switze	l - erland	IL - I	srael				
	Priority Area	Propos als	Particip ations	Propos als	Particip ations	Propos als	Particip ations	Propos als	Particip ations	Propos als	Particip ations	Propos als	Particip ations				
		No.	No.	No.	No.	No.	No.	No.	No.	No.	No.	No.	No.				
p	1. Life sciences, genomics and biotechnology for health	295	509	9	10			57	77	176	270	109	152				
5	2. Information society technologies	1.081	1.663	28	38	2	2	247	356	628	845	317	422	 			
ghte	 Nanotechnologies and nanosciences, knowledge-based multifunctional materials and new production processes and 	188	334	4	4	3	3	46	71	107	148	66	108				
5	4. Aeronautics and space	90	124					17	20	45	56	35	48	 			
15 E	5. Food quality and safety	114	200	10	12			34	56	36	52	53	80	 			
та Ш.	Sustainable development, global change and ecosystems	186	335	6	7	2	2	83	144	86	115	38	67	 			
ទដ្ឋ	Citizens and governance in a knowledge-based society	130	165	3	3			60	71	55	59	28	32	 			
p	Policy support and anticipating scientific and technological needs	199	273	9	10			57	72	98	110	59	81	 			
	Horizontal research activities involving SMEs	285	535	21	38	3	3	122	237	133	198	35	59				
ĥ	Specific measures in support of international cooperation	111	151					32	39	60	75	26	37				
Ę.	Support for the coordination of activities	43	65	6	6			15	16	18	24	16	19				
<u> -</u>	Support for the coherent development of research & innovation police	18	30	1	1			7	11	8	10	5	8				
Έρ.	Research and innovation	86	129	7	7			34	45	26	42	33	35				
동풍동	Human resources and mobility	717	941	14	14	1	1	147	181	469	562	165	183				
ទួទួញ	Research infrastructures	79	112	3	3			33	40	48	54	13	15				
0 T	Science and society	80	110	3	3	1	1	19	25	48	64	13	17				
Euratom		34	40					7	8	28	32						
Total		3.736	5.716	124	156	12	12	1.017	1.469	2.069	2.716	1.011	1.363				

Table 1b: FP6 Proposals submitted in 2005

Participation by Priority Area & Country

		Th Cour	nird htries	AU - A	ustralia	BR -	Brazil	CA - C	anada	CN -	China	IN -	India	JP -	Japan	RU - F Fede	lussian ration	US - I Sta	United ates	ZA - 9 Afri	South ica
	Priority Area	Propos als	Particip ations	Propos als	Particip ations	Propos als	Particip ations	Propos als	Particip I ations	Propos als	Particip ations	Propos als	Particip ations	Propos als	Particip ations	Propos als	Particip ations	Propos als	Particip ations	Propos als	Particip ations
		No.	No.	No.	No.	No.	No.	No.	No.	No.	No.	No.	No.	No.	No.	No.	No.	No.	No.	No.	No.
ğ	1. Life sciences, genomics and biotechnology for health	194	352	13	13	8	8	8	9	14	16	19	21	5	5	29	38	31	39	28	34
- 2	2. Information society technologies	492	843	28	29	38	55	33	40	99	174	40	57	18	19	76	88	101	114	17	20
ghte	 Nanotechnologies and nanosciences, knowledge-based multifunctional materials and new production processes and 	123	217	2	2	6	6	3	4	18	30	9	13			45	60	9	9	4	4
5	4. Aeronautics and space	72	158	2	2	6	6	8	9	15	56					21	29	7	7	3	10
는 문 문	5. Food quality and safety	157	422	4	6	20	20	4	4	27	53	6	12	2	2	19	24	16	21	10	11
ųΨ	Sustainable development, global change and ecosystems	192	606	15	17	11	19	6	6	35	65	19	30	5	5	38	65	13	19	16	24
5 Ľ	Citizens and governance in a knowledge-based society	85	180			2	2	6	6	9	13	5	6	1	1	24	29	13	14	1	1
p	Policy support and anticipating scientific and technological needs	111	182	3	3	3	3	10	10	8	8	3	3	2	2	28	34	29	39	4	4
÷.	Horizontal research activities involving SMEs	67	91	1	2	5	5	2	3	4	6					11	12	5	5	5	9
ň	Specific measures in support of international cooperation	607	2.557	9	10	77	120	4	4	68	229	77	177			30	60	11	17	51	78
je je	Support for the coordination of activities	9	19					2	2	1	1	1	1			3	3				
<u>-</u>	Support for the coherent development of research & innovation police	5	7							1	1			1	1	2	3				
Έρ.	Research and innovation	53	83	1	1	1	2	3	3	7	9	7	8			12	13	8	10	1	1
월 문 문	Human resources and mobility	660	788	47	51	16	19	59	63	30	32	17	21	20	24	62	69	301	332	14	15
ទួទួញ	Research infrastructures	51	190	3	4	3	7	3	3	9	20	4	13	1	1	9	28	14	35	2	2
0 -	Science and society	50	99	2	2	2	4	3	4	2	7	2	2	4	4	8	10	11	13	4	- 4
Euratom		14	20					1	2					1	1	2	2	5	7	1	1
Total		2.942	6.814	130	142	198	276	155	172	347	720	209	364	60	65	419	567	574	681	161	218

Table 2a: F	P6 Proposals retained for funding that were submitted in 2005						Part	icipation by	y Prior	ity Area	& Insti	rument					
		,	All Ins	truments		Inte	egrate	d Projects	5	Netw	orks o	f Excellen	ce	Specifi	c Tar <u>c</u> Pro	eted Rese jects	earch
	Priority Area	Pro Re	posals tained	Particip	pations	Prop Ret	iosals ained	Particip	ations	Prop Rei	oosals tained	Particip	ations	Prop Re	oosals tained	Particip	pations
		No.	%	No.	%	No.	%	No.	%	No.	%	No.	%	No.	%	No.	%
_	1. Life sciences, genomics and biotechnology for health	183	100,0%	1.743	100,0%	19	10,4%	354	20,3%	5	2,7%	145	8,3%	132	72,1%	1.041	59,7%
	2. Information society technologies	519	100,0%	5.891	100,0%	113	21,8%	2.210	37,5%	14	2,7%	321	5,4%	334	64,4%	2.877	48,8%
ighteni	 Nanotechnologies and nanosciences, knowledge-based multifunctional materials and new production processes and devices 	100	100,0%	1.283	100,0%	33	33,0%	727	56,7%					55	55,0%	425	33,1%
ē ∢	4. Aeronautics and space	72	100,0%	1.146	100,0%	11	15,3%	394	34,4%					51	70,8%	639	55,8%
E G	5. Food quality and safety	59	100,0%	923	100,0%	4	6,8%	194	21,0%	3	5,1%	81	8,8%	32	54,2%	397	43,0%
20	6. Sustainable development, global change and ecosystems	186	100,0%	2.737	100,0%	35	18,8%	1.072	33,27	2	1,1%	70	2,6%	90	48,4%	1.023	37,4%
ē fi	7. Citizens and governance in a knowledge-based society	88	100,0%	919	100,0%	12	13,6%	190	20,7%	2	2,3%	36	3,3%	49	55,7%	425	46,2%
, č	Policy support and anticipating scientific and technological needs	78	100,0%	654	100,0%									57	73,1%	477	72,9%
i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i	Horizontal research activities involving SMEs	125	100,0%	1.484	100,0%												
<u>p</u>	Specific measures in support of international cooperation	86	100,0%	690	100,0%									37	43,0%	326	47,2%
Ĕ	Support for the coordination of activities	20	100,0%	285	100,0%												
	policies	18	100,0%	135	100,0%												
Έρ.	Research and innovation	72	100,0%	739	100,0%												
등 운 음	Human resources and mobility	961	100,0%	1.364	100,0%												
ទួទួញ	Research infrastructures	73	100,0%	821	100,0%												
0 -	Science and society	59	100,0%	302	100,0%									4	6,8%	24	7,9%
Euratom		62	100,0%	435	100,0%	2	3,2%	43	3,3%	1	1,6%	37	8,5%	13	21,0%	153	35,2%
Total		2.761	100,0%	21.551	100,0%	229	8,3%	5.184	24,1%	27 '	1,0%	690 '	3,2%	854	30,9%	7.807	36,2%

Table 2a: FP6 Proposals retained for funding that were submitted in 2005

Participation by Priority Area & Instrument

		Coo	rdinat	ion Action	IS	Specil	fic Su	pport Acti	ons	Specifi Specifi Rese	c Proj ic Acti arch Ir	ects for S ons to Pro hfrastr. / C	MEsł omote)SA	Mari Mob Exce	e Curio ility, T Ilence	Actions raining a Recogniti	on nd ion
	Priority Area	Proj Re	oosals tained	Particip	pations	Prop Rel	oosals tained	Particip	ations	Pro Re	posals tained	Particip	pations	Pro Re	posals tained	Particip	pations
		No.	%	No.	%	No.	%	No.	%	No.	%	No.	%	No.	%	No.	%
	1. Life sciences, genomics and biotechnology for health	5	2,7%	70	4,0%	22	12,0%	133	7,6%								
. <u> </u>	2. Information society technologies	18	3,5%	193	3,3%	40	7,7%	290	4,3%								
ghten	 Nanotechnologies and nanosciences, knowledge-based multifunctional materials and new production processes and devices 	2		62				CO									
Ĕ		3	3,0%	62	4,8%	9	3.0%	69	5.4%								
š,≦	4. Aeronautics and space	3	4,2%	49	4,3%	10	9,7%	177	5,6%							_	_
Ϋ́́	5. Food quality and sarety	2	3,4%	/4	8,0%	18	30,5%	177	19,2%								
Š P	 Sustainable development, global change and ecosystems 	20	10,8%	248	3,1%	39	21,0%	324	11,8%	_	_						_
õ÷	7. Litizens and governance in a knowledge-based society	10	11,4%	173	18,8%	15	17.0%	95	10,3%								
e e	Policy support and anticipating scientific and technological needs	6	7,7%	76	11,6%	15	19,2%	101	15,4%								
2	Horizontal research activities involving SMEs									125	100,0%	1.484	100,0%				
U	Specific measures in support of international cooperation	7	8,1%	149	21,6%	42	48,8%	215	31,2%								
Ĕ	Support for the coordination of activities	20	100,0%	285	100,0%												
	policies	18	100,0%	135	100,0%												
Έo	Research and innovation	35	48,6%	394	53,3%	37	51,4%	345	46,7%								
- ti £ £	Human resources and mobility													961	100,0%	1.364	100,0%
ខ្លុំធ្លាំ	Research infrastructures	2	2,7%	34	4,1%	15	20,5%	141	17,2%	56	76,7%	646	78,7%				
0 °	Science and society	11	18,6%	84	27,8%	44	74,6%	194	64,2%								
Euratom		11	17,7%	123	28,3%	3	4,8%	10	2,3%	32	51,6%	69	15,9%				
Total		171	6,2%	2.149	10,0%	306	11,1%	2.158	10,0%	213	7,7%	2.199	10,2%	961	34,8%	1.364	6,3%

Table 2b:	FP6 Proposals retained for funding that were submitted in 2005								Par	ticipatio	on by Prio	rity Area	a & Cour	itry							
		EU Men Sta	25 - nber ates	BE - 8	elgium}	CY - C	Cyprus	CZ - Rep	Czech ublic	DK - D	enmark	DE - Gi	ermany	EL - 6	ireece	ES -	Spain	EE - E	stonia	FR - F	rance
	Priority Area	Propos als	Particip ations	Propos als	Particip ations	Propos als	Particip ations	Propos als	Particip ations	Propos als	Particip ations	Propos als	Particip ations	Propos als	Particip ations	Propos als	Particip ations	Propos als	Particip ations	Propos als	Particip ations
		No.	No.	No.	No.	No.	No.	No.	No.	No.	No.	No.	No.	No.	No.	No.	No.	No.	No.	No.	No.
p	 Life sciences, genomics and biotechnology for health 	183	1.558	55	74	2	2	19	22	36	43	134	276	15	22	66	99	12	14	98	212
5	2. Information society technologies	519	5.314	156	215	18	19	61	69	57	78	381	945	158	272	237	436	16	20	316	688
ghte	 Nanotechnologies and nanosciences, knowledge-based multifunctional materials and new production processes and 	79	720	27	37	1	1	10	12	12	17	61	152	11	15	35	63	2	2	39	59
5,	4. Aeronautics and space	72	1.067	36	57	1	1	25	40	6	8	58	183	28	39	41	80	2	2	62	229
불물	5. Food quality and safety	52	531	24	37	1	1	12	12	15	24	30	50	17	22	26	41	2	2	29	60
2	Sustainable development, global change and ecosystems	172	1.834	54	104	8	11	25	31	30	66	113	297	47	85	68	122	12	13	85	171
ិភ្ន័	Citizens and governance in a knowledge-based society	76	588	27	38	1	1	12	12	14	14	53	79	17	18	31	37	10	10	36	51
p	Policy support and anticipating scientific and technological needs	77	568	20	22	3	3	11	12	11	13	50	79	19	23	22	30	4	4	39	62
- Q	Horizontal research activities involving SMEs	125	1.347	33	55	1	1	25	28	18	34	81	188	19	34	74	184	15	15	43	88
Ğ	Specific measures in support of international cooperation	76	288	11	11	3	7	6	7	5	7	24	37	10	12	22	28	1	1	19	29
- E	Support for the coordination of activities	20	256	14	16	3	3	4	4	6	6	18	34	8	10	17	21	5	6	18	27
<u> </u>	Support for the coherent development of research & innovation poli	18	124	2	2			3	3	5	7	9	12	5	7	6	6	3	4	5	8
Έρ.	Research and innovation	72	647	30	43	5	5	10	13	11	18	55	91	15	18	30	55	7	8	34	66
등 높 높	Human resources and mobility	887	1.124	32	35	6	6	12	12	26	26	130	142	33	34	88	88			151	159
្ទី ឆ្ល	Research infrastructures	70	619	12	17	- 4	6	9	10	9	11	40	97	19	25	25	47	5	6	31	69
Ű.	Science and society	57	253	15	19	1	1	5	5	3	3	23	37	6	9	7	8	3	3	20	32
Euratom		55	384	26	45			16	17			28	62	1	1	16	30			27	58
Total		2.610	17.222	574	827	58	68	265	309	264	375	1.288	2.761	428	646	811	1.375	99	110	1.052	2.068

Table 2b: FP6 Proposals retained for funding that were submitted in 2005

Participation by Priority Area & Country

		HU - H	lungary	IE - Ir	eland	IT -	Italy	LV - I	_atvia	L ⁻ Lithu	T- uania	LI Luxen	U - nbourg	MT -	Malta	N Nethe	L - rlands	AT - /	Austria	PL - P	oland
	Priority Area	Propos als	Particip ations	Propos als	Particip ations	Propos als	Particip ations	Propos als	Particip ations	Propos als	Particip ations	Propos als	Particip ations	Propos als	Particip ations	Propos als	Particip ations	Propos als	Particip ations	Propos als	Particip ations
		No.	No.	No.	No.	No.	No.	No.	No.	No.	No.	No.	No.	No.	No.	No.	No.	No.	No.	No.	No.
ŋ	1. Life sciences, genomics and biotechnology for health	25	29	14	17	83	173	3	3	2	2	1	1			78	138	26	37	15	22
- Ē	2. Information society technologies	83	118	58	73	299	672	8	8	24	35	14	19	8	8	158	254	109	159	105	134
ghte	 Nanotechnologies and nanosciences, knowledge-based multifunctional materials and new production processes and 	6	6	7	10	43	88	2	2	3	3	1	1	1	1	27	57	12	13	18	24
5	4. Aeronautics and space	6	6	6	6	44	113	3	3	3	3	2	2	1	1	37	52	19	23	17	20
НЧ	5. Food quality and safety	10	11	10	18	29	52			4	5					27	50	10	12	15	18
υ	Sustainable development, global change and ecosystems	17	28	14	28	91	193	6	6	10	13	2	6	6	6	66	139	46	81	39	50
e č	Citizens and governance in a knowledge-based society	23	29	5	6	38	51	5	5	2	4	1	1	3	3	37	45	24	27	22	24
2 -	Policy support and anticipating scientific and technological needs	12	18	6	7	35	44	4	4	5	5	1	1	2	2	37	51	12	18	17	21
- S	Horizontal research activities involving SMEs	13	21	21	24	62	122	2	4	5	5			6	8	38	66	22	45	49	85
ö	Specific measures in support of international cooperation	1	1	3	3	20	31			1	1	1	1	2	2	14	17	10	16	3	4
fe	Support for the coordination of activities	6	6	4	4	12	16	1	1	1	1					16	20	7	11	9	12
<u> </u>	Support for the coherent development of research & innovation police	7	10	3	3	9	17	2	2	1	1					4	4	3	5	7	8
Έρ.	Research and innovation	16	19	3	4	44	70	5	5	11	11	8	9	4	5	17	33	11	15	19	29
÷÷.	Human resources and mobility	18	18	28	35	73	75			4	4			1	1	73	77	16	17	26	26
ទី២៣	Research infrastructures	9	12	9	11	33	78	4	5	5	6	2	2	3	3	30	48	9	12	17	25
ú –	Science and society	5	8	2	2	15	22	1	1	3	3			2	3	14	18	14	18	6	6
Euratom		7	8	1	1	10	18			4	4					18	21	3	3	6	6
Total		264	348	194	252	940	1.835	46	49	88	106	33	43	39	43	691	1.090	353	512	390	514

Table 2b: F	P6 Proposals retained for funding that were submitted in 2005				Par	ticipati	on by Pric	ority Are	a & Coui	ntry			
		PT - P	ortugal	SK - S	lovakia	SI - S	lovenia	FI - F	inland	SE - 5	weden	UK - l King	Jnited Jdom
	Priority Area	Propos als	Particip ations	Propos als	Particip ations								
		No.	No.	No.	No								
ŋ	1. Life sciences, genomics and biotechnology for health	11	12	4	4	8	9	22	29	66	97	113	221
	2. Information society technologies	58	82	24	30	47	60	88	141	102	163	320	616
ghtei	 Nanotechnologies and nanosciences, knowledge-based multifunctional materials and new production processes and 	11	14			8	8	13	19	18	27	49	89
Ē,	4. Aeronautics and space	11	14	1	1	3	4	3	3	22	34	58	143
ŧ₽	5. Food quality and safety	4	5	4	4	5	5	8	10	17	24	33	68
Ψü	6. Sustainable development, global change and ecosystems	34	63	15	18	14	24	20	27	49	68	90	184
E S	7. Citizens and governance in a knowledge-based society	15	16	5	5	12	13	12	12	14	14	51	73
្តា	Policy support and anticipating scientific and technological needs	9	10	6	6	9	9	15	18	16	18	47	88
- in the second s	Horizontal research activities involving SMEs	16	24	8	11	9	19	15	20	31	48	80	218
Ĕ	Specific measures in support of international cooperation	11	13			2	2	2	3	10	10	30	45
- E	Support for the coordination of activities	10	10	2	2	5	5	7	10	9	11	14	20
<u> </u>	Support for the coherent development of research & innovation police			1	1	4	4	3	7	3	5	8	8
Έρ	Research and innovation	11	14	3	3	8	10	10	19	15	17	44	67
공품들	Human resources and mobility	20	22	8	8	9	9	20	22	31	32	259	276
ទួទួញ	Research infrastructures	11	13	4	4	4	4	12	15	18	23	42	70
σī.	Science and society	3	3	1	1	5	6	4	4	7	12	23	29
Euratom		1	1	5	5	8	8	15	18	20	35	24	43
Total		236	316	91	103	160	199	269	377	448	638	1.285	2.258

Table 2b:	FP6 Proposals retained for funding that were submitted in 2005			Pa	ticipatio	n by Pri	ority Are	a & Cou	ntry			
		Cano Cou	didate ntries	BG - 8	ulgaria	HR - (Croatia	RO - R	lomania	TR - 1	Turkey	
	Priority Area	Propos als	Particip ations									
		No.	No.									
g	1. Life sciences, genomics and biotechnology for health	7	11	1	1	3	3	1	1	5	6	
- Ē	2. Information society technologies	78	113	29	38	6	7	42	51	13	17	
ghte	 Nanotechnologies and nanosciences, knowledge-based multifunctional materials and new production processes and 	13	19	6	8	1	1	6	8	1	2	
5 -	4. Aeronautics and space	7	7					7	7			
통급	5. Food quality and safety	14	18	3	3	5	8	4	4	3	3	
7 1	Sustainable development, global change and ecosystems	51	105	18	26	9	12	27	42	19	25	
ងដ្ឋ	Citizens and governance in a knowledge-based society	27	40	11	11	5	5	12	12	12	12	
2 - P	Policy support and anticipating scientific and technological needs	10	19	6	8	4	4	5	5	2	2	
- S	Horizontal research activities involving SMEs	21	32	5	7	1	1	8	12	7	12	
- En	Specific measures in support of international cooperation	8	9	2	2	3	3	2	2	2	2	
Ę.	Support for the coordination of activities	6	10	2	2	1	1	4	4	3	3	
<u> </u>	Support for the coherent development of research & innovation poli	4	8	2	2	1	2	2	2	2	2	
Έρ.	Research and innovation	25	40	11	12	3	3	11	12	11	13	
~ 운동 준	Human resources and mobility	23	27	4	4			5	8	15	15	
្ទទួញ	Research infrastructures	14	37	8	12	4	- 4	9	10	7	11	
Ū,	Science and society	7	7	2	2			3	3	2	2	
Euratom		9	12	3	3			7	9			
Total		324	514	113	141	46	54	155	192	104	127	

Table 2b: F	P6 Proposals retained for funding that were submitted in 2005				Par	ticipatio	on by Pric	ority Are	a & Coun	try							
		Assoc Cour	ciated htries	IS - Io	celand	L Liecht	l - enstein	NO - 1	Vorway	Cł Switzo	l - erland	IL - I	srael				
	Priority Area	Propos als	Particip ations	Propos als	Particip ations	Propos als	Particip ations	Propos als	Particip ations	Propos als	Particip I ations	Propos als	Particip ations				
		No.	No.	No.	No.												
p	1. Life sciences, genomics and biotechnology for health	80	124	2	3			16	21	54	71	23	29				
- të	2. Information society technologies	211	338	2	2	2	2	54	78	131	177	55	79				
ghte	 Nanotechnologies and nanosciences, knowledge-based multifunctional materials and new production processes and 	30	56	1	1			8	14	16	23	13	18				
5	4. Aeronautics and space	28	41					4	5	17	21	10	15				
- tar	5. Food quality and safety	21	29	1	1			9	12	6	7	8	9				
Ψ	Sustainable development, global change and ecosystems	52	104	2	2			31	55	24	38	7	9				
ê ç	Citizens and governance in a knowledge-based society	28	33	1	1			14	16	11	12	4	4				
p	Policy support and anticipating scientific and technological needs	24	34					10	12	14	19	3	3				
- ÷	Horizontal research activities involving SMEs	47	92	7	13			27	59	15	15	3	5				
ĥ	Specific measures in support of international cooperation	17	19					6	6	9	11	2	2				
Ę.	Support for the coordination of activities	12	17	1	1			5	5	4	6	4	5				
<u> </u>	Support for the coherent development of research & innovation poli	2	3					1	1	1	1	1	1				
Έρ.	Research and innovation	20	33	2	2			10	16	4	8	5	7				
· 등 문 문	Human resources and mobility	75	81	1	1			8	9	43	46	24	25				
5 g 🗉 🛛	Research infrastructures	32	45	1	1			10	10	23	27	7	7				
σ-	Science and society	14	19			1	1	5	5	8	12	1	1				
Euratom		27	31					5	5	23	26						
Total		720	1.099	21	28	3	3	223	329	403	520	170	219				

Table 2b: FP6 Proposals retained for funding that were submitted in 2005

Participation by Priority Area & Country

		Th Cour	ird htries	AU - A	ustralia	BR -	Brazil	CA - 0	Canada	CN -	China	IN -	India	JP -	Japan	RU - R Fede	lussian ration	US - I Sta	United ates	ZA - S Afr	South rica
	Priority Area	Propos als	Particip ations	Propos als	Particip ations	Propos als	Particip ations	Propos als	Particip ations												
		No.	No.	No.	No.	No.	No.	No.	No.												
g	1. Life sciences, genomics and biotechnology for health	35	49	3	3			2	2	2	2	2	2			5	5	6	8	3	3
-È	2. Information society technologies	80	126	9	9	4	6	9	10	17	24	10	12	4	4	11	11	15	17		
ghte	 Nanotechnologies and nanosciences, knowledge-based multifunctional materials and new production processes and 	13	25			1	1			3	6	1	1			5	5	2	2	1	1
5	4. Aeronautics and space	18	31	1	1			2	2	5	16					7	8	2	2		
-Fage	5. Food quality and safety	21	70	1	2	4	- 4	3	3	3	5			1	1	2	2	2	4	3	4
μ	Sustainable development, global change and ecosystems	51	154	5	6	- 4	6	3	3	10	19	8	11	2	2	6	7	6	11	9	12
۶ <u>۴</u>	7. Citizens and governance in a knowledge-based society	20	49			1	1	2	2	2	2	2	2			6	6	2	2	1	1
ຫຼື	Policy support and anticipating scientific and technological needs	18	33	1	1	1	1	2	2	3	3	1	1			5	7	5	8	1	1
ų.	Horizontal research activities involving SMEs	6	7			1	1									2	2				
Ĕ	Specific measures in support of international cooperation	84	374			7	9			5	15	7	18			5	9	1	1	8	14
je.	Support for the coordination of activities	2	2													1	1				
<u> -</u>	Support for the coherent development of research & innovation policity																				
Έρ	Research and innovation	9	19	1	1			1	1	1	2	3	3					2	3		
:목운동 -	Human resources and mobility	123	130	8	8	1	1	10	10	4	4	4	4	1	1	5	5	74	78	1	1
ទី២៣	Research infrastructures	23	120	2	3	3	7	1	1	5	13	1	1			4	18	7	14	1	1
0 L	Science and society	9	21					1	2	1	6	1	1	1	1	1	1	3	3	2	2
Euratom		6	8					1	2					1	1			3	3		
Total		518	1.218	31	34	27	37	37	40	61	117	40	56	10	10	65	87	130	156	30	40

	Table 3a: FP6 Contracts signed in 2005					Particip	patio	n & Contribu	tion b	y Priority A	rea & Inst	trume	ent						
			All Instrum	ents	I	ntegrated	d Pro	ojects		Ne	tworks of	Exc	ellence		Specific 1	Fargete	ed Res	earch Proje	ects
	Priority Area	Contracts Signed	Participation s	EC financial contribution to contracts	Contracts Signed	Participat	tion s	EC fina contributi cont	incial ion to tracts	Contracts Signed	Participa	tion s	EC fina contributi cont	incial on to racts	Contracts Signed	Particip	oation s	EC fina contribut con	ancial ion to itracts
		No. %	No. %	'000 Euros %	No. %	No.	%	'000 Euros	%	No. %	No.	%	'000 Euros	%	No. %	No.	%	'000 Euros	%
	1. Life sciences, genomics and biotechnology for health	147 100,0%	1.634 100,0%	569.172 100,0%	29 19,7%	533 32	2,6%	309.384	54,4%	9 6,1%	227 t	3,3%	84.700	14,3%	70 47,6%	580	35,5%	151.676	26,6%
, Ľ	2. Information society technologies	297 100,0%	3.314 100,0%	992.472 100,0%	66 22,2%	1.219 36	5,8%	560.958	56,5%	6 2,0%	135	4,1%	27.450	2,8%	157 52,3%	1.340	40,4%	352.365	35,5%
ghten	 Nanotechnologies and nanosciences, knowledge-based multifunctional materials and new production processes and devices 	164 100,0%	2.069 100,0%	602.361 100,0%	38 23,2%	924 44	4,7%	323.441	53,7%	6 3,7%	98	1,7%	52.142	8,7%	107 65,2%	890	43,0%	217.855	36,2%
2 A	4. Aeronautics and space	58 100,0%	860 100,0%	273.299 100,0%	7 12,1%	292 34	4,0%	155.982	57,1%	1 1,7%	13	1,5%	6.922	2,5%	41 70,7%	503	58,5%	103.810	38,0%
통급	5. Food quality and safety	41 100,0%	801 100,0%	187.379 100,0%	10 24,4%	409 5	51,12	122.971	65,6%	2 4,3%	64	3,0%	23.000	12,3%	11 26,8%	146	18,2%	29.472	15,7%
25	6. Sustainable development, global change and ecosystems	187 100,0%	2.717 100,0%	657.726 100,0%	43 23,0%	1.178 43	3,4%	424.316	64,5%	3 1,6%	100 :	3,7%	18.138	2,8%	78 41,7%	832	30,6%	160.835	24,5%
<u>ē</u> £	7. Citizens and governance in a knowledge-based society	31 100,0%	586 100,0%	75.028 100,0%	6 19,4%	136 23	3,2%	21.900	29,2%	9 23,0%	309 5:	2.7%	39.100	52,1%	9 23,0%	74	12,6%	10.467	14,0%
Ĕ.	Policy support and anticipating scientific and technological needs	129 100,0%	1.032 100,0%	142.937 100,0%											95 73,6%	715	69,3%	122.315	85,6%
i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i	Horizontal research activities involving SMEs	121 100,0%	1.404 100,0%	122.633 100,0%															
ģ	Specific measures in support of international cooperation	132 100,0%	899 100,0%	124.771 100,0%	5 3,8%	4 0 4	4,4%	7.515	6,0%						52 33,4%	519	57,7%	80.937	64,9%
Ť	Support for the coordination of activities	28 100,0%	378 100,0%	67.453 100,0%															
-	Support for the coherent development of research & innovation polic	16 100,0%	119 100,0%	7.963 100,0%															
Έ.ο	Research and innovation	87 100,0%	717 100,0%	63.259 100,0%															
국국당	Human resources and mobility	### 100,0%	2.029 100,0%	465.181 100,0%															
ទី២៣	Research infrastructures	36 100,0%	342 100,0%	150.096 100,0%															
0 T	Science and society	42 100,0%	336 100,0%	21.884 100,0%											6 14,3%	57	17,0%	5.501	25,1%
Euratom		16 100,0%	210 100,0%	53.182 100,0%	4 25,0%	94 44	4,8%	43.300	81,4%						4 25,0%	44	21,0%	7.200	13,5%
Total		### 100,0%	#### 100,0%	4.576.796 100,0%	208 7,5%	4.825 24	4,8%	1.969.767	43,0%	36 ⁷ 1,3%	946 🗖	1,9%	251.452	5,5%	630 22,7%	5.700	29,3%	1.242.434	27,1%

	Table 3a: FP6 Contracts signed in 2005									Parti	cipatio	n & Contribı	rtion t	y Prio	rity Ar	ea & In	strum	nent							
			Co	oordin	ation	Actions			Spe	cific S	uppor	t Actions		Spec /	ific P Action	rojects s to Pi Infras	s for S romot struct	SMEsłSpe e Research ures	cific	M Traii	arie C ning a	urie A Ind Ex	ctions	on Mobility ce Recogni), tion
	Priority Area	Con Si	tracts igned	Particij	pation s	EC fina contribut con	ancial tion to Itracts	Cor S	ntracts igned	Particip	oation s	EC fina contribut con	ancial ion to tracts	Con Si	tracts I gned	Particip	bation s	EC fin contribut con	ancial tion to Itracts	Cor	ntracts igned	Partici	pation s	EC fina contribut con	incial ion to tracts
		No.	%	No.	%	'000 Euros	%	No.	%	No.	%	'000 Euros	%	No.	%	No.	%	'000 Euros	%	No.	%	No.	%	'000 Euros	%
_	1. Life sciences, genomics and biotechnology for health	10	6,8%	144	8,8%	10.595	1,9%	29	19,7%	150	3,2%	12.816	2,3%												
Ĕ	2. Information society technologies	- 14	4,7%	172	5,2%	13.146	1,3%	54	18,2%	448	13,5%	38.553	3,9%												
ghten	 Nanotechnologies and nanosciences, knowledge-based multifunctional materials and new production processes and devices 	6	3.7%	101	4.3%	4.766	0.8%	7	4.3%	56	2,7%	4.156	0.7%												
P C	4. Aeronautics and space	2	3,4%	16	1,3%	3.429	1,3%	- 7	12,17	36	4,2%	3.156	1,2%												
та ст	5. Food quality and safety	3	7,3%	92	11,5%	4.533	2,4%	15	36,6%	90	11,2%	7.403	4,0%												
20	6. Sustainable development, global change and ecosystems	22	11,8%	329	12,1%	37.088	5,6%	41	21,3%	278	10,2%	17.349	2,6%												
2£	7. Citizens and governance in a knowledge-based society	3	9,7%	51	8,7%	2.611	3,5%	4	12,3%	16	2,7%	950	1,3%												
Ĕ.	Policy support and anticipating scientific and technological needs	10	7,8%	152	14,7%	9.132	6,4%	24	18,6%	165	16,0%	11.490	8,0%												
ě	Horizontal research activities involving SMEs													121	100,0%	1.404	100,0%	122.633	100,0%						
<u>n</u>	Specific measures in support of international cooperation	- 7	5,3%	132	14,7%	8.129	6,5%	68	51,5%	208	23,1%	28.189	22,6%												
Ê	Support for the coordination of activities	25	89,3%	365	36,6%	66.919	33,2%	3	10,7%	13	3,4%	534	0,8%												
	Support for the coherent development of research & innovation poli-	16	100,0%	119	100,0%	7.963	100,0%																		
Έo.	Research and innovation	26	29,9%	247	34,4%	24.086	38,1%	61	70,1%	470	65,6%	39.173	61,9%												
응운동	Human resources and mobility							36	2,3%	85	4,2%	3.757	0,8%							###	37,1%	1.944	95,8%	461.424	33,2%
ទី២៣	Research infrastructures							34	34,4%	331	96,8%	146.984	97,9%	2	5,6%	11	3,2%	3.112	2,1%						
υ T	Science and society	9	21,4%	110	32,7%	5.156	23,6%	27	64,3%	169	50,3%	11.227	51,3%												
Euratom		3	18,8%	60	28,6%	2.200	4,1%	5	31,3%	12	5,7%	483	0,3%												
Total		156	5,6%	2.090	10,7%	199.754	4,4%	415	15,0%	2.527	13,0%	326.219	7,1%	123	4,4%	1.415	7,3%	125.745	2,7%	###	43,5%	1.944	10,0%	461.424	10,1%

	Table 3b: FP6 Contracts signed in 2005			Particip	bation &	& Contrib	oution I	by Priority Area &	Type o	of Benefi	ciary		
			Highe	r Education			In	dustry (*)			Resea	arch Center	
	Priority Area	Particip	pations	EC fir contribu partic	nancial ution to sipants	Particip	pations	EC fir contribu partic	iancial ition to ipants	Particip	ations	EC fin- contribul partici	ancia tion to pante
		No.	%	'000 Euros	%	No.	%	'000 Euros	%	No.	%	'000 Euros	2
<u>p</u> i	Life sciences, genomics and biotechnology for health Life sciences, genomics and biotechnology for health	791	48,4%	275.087	48,5%	207	12,7%	55.121	3,7%	491	30,0%	207.435	36,42
ghtenin	Information society technologies Anotechnologies and nanosciences, knowledge-based multifunctional materials and new production processes and devices	I. 162	35,1%	382.014	38,5%	753	20,0%	209.338	21,1%	526	19,8%	189.226	23,97
5	4 Aeronautics and space	182	21,074	41 324	15.1%	262	30.5%	110 475	40.4%	175	20.3%	50.936	18.65
불금	5 Food quality and safety	257	32.1%	71 580	38.2%	90	11.2%	13 956	7.4%	272	34.0%	67 007	35.85
2 <u>"</u>	6. Sustainable development, global change and ecosystems	668	24.6%	150,704	22.3%	599	22.0%	142.597	21.7%	728	26.8%	174.858	26.65
٦Ĕ	7. Citizens and governance in a knowledge-based society	391	66.7%	49.240	65.6%	1	0.2%	50	0.1%	148	25.3%	18.612	24.85
2	Policy support and anticipating scientific and technological needs	427	41,4%	74.062	51,8%	35	3,4%	3.746	2,6%	398	38,6%	52.023	36,47
in the second se	Horizontal research activities involving SMEs	137	9,8%	20.177	16,5%	667	47,5%	45.015	36,7%	197	14,0%	23.258	19,07
ğ	Specific measures in support of international cooperation	308	34,3%	52.374	42,0%	35	3,9%	4.437	3,6%	367	40,8%	54.376	43,67
ž	Support for the coordination of activities	2	0,5%	207	0,3%	5	1,3%	3.682	5,5%	88	23,3%	18.871	28,02
-	Support for the coherent development of research & innovation polic	27	3,8%	1.964	3,1%	1	0,1%	120	0,2%	15	2,1%	1.036	1,67
Έρ.	Research and innovation	72	10,0%	6.615	10,5%	41	5,7%	3.085	4,3%	92	12,8%	8.832	14,02
동풍동	Human resources and mobility	1.070	52,7%	270.703	61,7%	211	10,4%	38.380	8,8%	493	24,3%	105.295	24,07
로 힘찍	Research infrastructures	147	43,0%	31.584	21,0%	22	6,4%	5.125	3,4%	143	41,8%	104.945	69,92
0 ⁻	Science and society	173	51,5%	11.154	51,0%	3	0,9%	192	0,9%	60	17,9%	3.792	17,32
Euratom		47	22,4%	4.462	8,4%	26	12,4%	3.669	6,3%	101	48,1%	39.519	74,32
l otal		6.451	33,2%	1.642.853	36,1%	3.620	18,6%	819.120	18,0%	4.9501	25,5%	1.356.296	29,87
	Table 3b: FP6 Contracts signed in 2005	Par	rticipati	on & Contributio	n by Pr	iority Ar	ea & Ty	ype of Beneficiary	/				
				Other			All A	ctivity Types					
				EC 6.				 					
	Priority Area	Particir		EUTIF	iancial	Particin	nations	contribu	ancial				
			ations	contribu	ution to	- arcorp	Judionio		ition to				
		r arucip	pations	contribu partic	ipants			partic	ition to ipants				
		Na	oations •/	contribu partic	ution to pants: ~	N la	•/	partic	ition to ipants •/				
	1 Life sciences, generatics and biotechnology for health	No.	ations %	contribu partic '000 Euros 30 948	ition to pants %	No.	%	'000 Euros	ition to ipants %				
p	1. Life sciences, genomics and biotechnology for health 2. Information society technologies	No. 145 834	8,9%	contribu partic '000 Euros 30.948 163.848	Ition to ipants % 5,4%	No. 1.634 3.314	% 100,0%	000 km2c partic 1000 Euros 569.591 992 472	ition to ipants % 100,0%				
htening	 Life sciences, genomics and biotechnology for health Information society technologies Nanotechnologies and nanosciences, knowledge-based multifunctional materials and new production processes and 	No. 145 834	8,3% 25,2%	contribu partic '000 Euros 30.948 163.848	ition to ipants % 5,4% 16,5%	No. 1.634 3.314	% 100,0% 100,0%	000 Euros 1000 Euros 569.591 992.472	Ition to ipants % 100,0%				
nghtening	1. Life sciences, genomics and biotechnology for health 2. Information society technologies 3. Nanotechnologies and nanosciences, knowledge-based multifunctional materials and new production processes and devices	No. 145 834 200	3,3% 3,3% 25,2% 3,7%	contribu partio '000 Euros 30.948 163.848 35.401	ation to pants % 5,4% 16,5% 5,9%	No. 1.634 3.314 2.069	% 100,0% 100,0%	000 Euros 569.591 992.472	Ition to ipants % 100,0% 100,0%				
trenghtening 1A	1. Life sciences, genomics and biotechnology for health 2. Information society technologies 3. Nanotechnologies and nanosciences, knowledge-based multifunctional materials and new production processes and devices 4. Aeronautics and space 5. Extended to the second sec	No. 145 834 200 241	9,7% 28,0%	contribu partic '000 Euros 30.948 163.848 35.401 70.565 01.2020	ation to pants 5,4% 16,5% 5,9% 25,8%	No. 1.634 3.314 2.069 860	% 100,0% 100,0% 100,0%	000 Euros 569.591 992.472 602.361 273.299	Ition to ipants 100,0% 100,0% 100,0%				
d strenghtening ERA	1. Life sciences, genomics and biotechnology for health 2. Information society technologies 3. Nanotechnologies and nanosciences, knowledge-based multifunctional materials and new production processes and devices 4. Aeronautics and space 5. Food quality and safety	No. 145 834 200 241 182	3410005 % 8,9% 25,2% 9,7% 28,0% 22,7%	contribu partic '000 Euros 30.948 163.848 35.401 70.565 34.836 100.210	ipants 5,4% 5,4% 16,5% 5,9% 25,8% 18,6%	No. 1.634 3.314 2.069 860 801 2.313	% 100,0% 100,0% 100,0% 100,0%	602.361 273.299 187.379	ition to ipants % 100,0% 100,0% 100,0% 100,0%				
and strenghtening he ERA	1. Life sciences, genomics and biotechnology for health 2. Information society technologies 3. Nanotechnologies and nanosciences, knowledge-based multifunctional materials and new production processes and devices 4. Aeronautics and space 5. Food quality and safety 6. Sustainable development, global change and ecosystems 7. Others and space beneficient based devices	No. 145 834 200 241 182 722	3,3% 8,3% 25,2% 3,7% 28,0% 22,7% 26,6%	contribu partic '000 Euros 30.948 163.848 35.401 70.565 34.836 189.813 7.120	tion to ipants 5,4% 16,5% 5,9% 25,8% 18,6% 28,8%	No. 1.634 3.314 2.069 860 801 2.717	% 100,0% 100,0% 100,0% 100,0% 100,0%	602.361 273.299 187.379 602.7329 187.379 657.972 75.200	ition to ipants % 100,0% 100,0% 100,0% 100,0% 100,0%				
ig and strenghtening the ERA	1. Life sciences, genomics and biotechnology for health 2. Information society technologies 3. Nanotechnologies and nanosciences, knowledge-based multifunctional materials and new production processes and devices 4. Aeronautics and space 5. Food quality and safety 6. Sustainable development, global change and ecosystems 7. Citizens and governance in a knowledge-based society	No. 145 834 200 241 182 722 46	3,37% 8,37% 25,27% 28,07% 22,77% 26,67% 7,87%	contribu partic '000 Euros 30.948 163.848 35.401 70.565 34.836 189.813 7.126 12.190	ition to pants 5,4% 16,5% 5,9% 25,8% 18,6% 28,8% 9,5%	No. 1.634 3.314 2.069 860 801 2.717 586	% 100,0% 100,0% 100,0% 100,0% 100,0% 100,0%	602.361 273.299 187.379 602.361 273.299 187.379 657.972 75.028	ition to ipants % 100,0% 100,0% 100,0% 100,0% 100,0%				
ting and strenghtening the ERA	1. Life sciences, genomics and biotechnology for health 2. Information society technologies 3. Nanotechnologies and nanosciences, knowledge-based multifunctional materials and new production processes and devices 4. Aeronautics and space 5. Food quality and safety 6. Sustainable development, global change and ecosystems 7. Citizens and governance in a knowledge-based society Policy support and anticipating scientific and technological needs	No. 145 834 200 241 182 722 46 172	3. 3. 3. 3. 3. 3. 3. 3. 3. 3. 3. 3. 3. 3	contribu partic '000 Euros 30.948 163.848 35.401 70.565 34.836 189.813 7.126 13.106 24.192	Ition to ipants 5,4% 16,5% 25,8% 18,6% 28,8% 9,5% 9,5%	No. 1.634 3.314 2.069 860 801 2.717 586 1.032	% 100,0% 100,0% 100,0% 100,0% 100,0% 100,0%	602.361 273.299 187.379 657.972 75.028 142.937 122.222	ition to ipants % 100,0% 100,0% 100,0% 100,0% 100,0%				
grating and strenghtening the ERA	1. Life sciences, genomics and biotechnology for health 2. Information society technologies 3. Nanotechnologies and nanosciences, knowledge-based multifunctional materials and new production processes and devices 4. Aeronautics and space 5. Food quality and safety 6. Sustainable development, global change and ecosystems 7. Citizens and governance in a knowledge-based society Policy support and anticipating scientific and technological needs Horizontal research activities involving SMEs	No. 145 834 200 241 182 722 46 172 403 189	3,900 S	contribu partic '000 Euros 30.948 163.848 35.401 70.565 34.836 189.813 7.126 13.106 34.182 13.583	Ition to ipants 5,4% 16,5% 25,8% 18,6% 28,8% 9,5% 9,5% 9,2% 27,3%	No. 1.634 3.314 2.069 860 801 2.717 586 1.032 1.404 899	% 100,0% 100,0% 100,0% 100,0% 100,0% 100,0% 100,0%	602.361 273.299 187.379 657.972 75.028 142.937 122.633 124.771	tion to ipants % 100,0% 100,0% 100,0% 100,0% 100,0% 100,0% 100,0%				
itegrating and strenghtening the ERA	1. Life sciences, genomics and biotechnology for health 2. Information society technologies 3. Nanotechnologies and nanosciences, knowledge-based multifunctional materials and new production processes and devices 4. Aeronautics and space 5. Food quality and safety 6. Sustainable development, global change and ecosystems 7. Citizens and governance in a knowledge-based society Policy support and anticipating scientific and technological needs Horizontal research activities involving SMEs Specific measures in support of international cooperation Support for the coordination of activities	No. 145 834 200 241 182 722 46 172 46 172 403 189 283	3.000000000000000000000000000000000000	contribu partic '000 Euros 30.948 163.848 35.401 70.565 34.836 189.813 7.126 13.106 34.182 13.583 44.693	Ition to ipants 5,4% 16,5% 5,3% 25,8% 18,6% 28,8% 9,5% 9,2% 27,3% 10,3%	No. 1.634 3.314 2.069 860 801 2.717 586 1.032 1.404 899 378	% 100,0% 100,0% 100,0% 100,0% 100,0% 100,0% 100,0% 100,0%	602.361 602.361 273.299 187.379 657.972 75.028 142.937 122.633 124.771 67.453	tion to ipants % 100,0% 100,0% 100,0% 100,0% 100,0% 100,0% 100,0% 100,0%				
Integrating and strenghtening the ERA	Life sciences, genomics and biotechnology for health Information society technologies Nanotechnologies and nanosciences, knowledge-based multifunctional materials and new production processes and devices A eronautics and space Food quality and safety Sustainable development, global change and ecosystems 7. Citizens and governance in a knowledge-based society Policy support and anticipating scientific and technological needs Horizontal research activities involving SMEs Specific measures in support of international cooperation Support for the coordination of activities Support for the coordination of activities	No. 145 834 200 241 182 722 46 172 403 189 283 76	3-ations % 8,3% 25,2% 25,2% 25,2% 26,6% 28,0% 26,6% 16,7% 28,7% 28,7% 28,7% 21,0% 24,3%	contribu partic '000 Euros 30.948 163.848 35.401 70.565 34.885 189.813 7.126 13.106 34.182 13.583 44.693 44.693 4.843	Ition to ipants 5,4% 16,5% 5,9% 25,8% 18,6% 28,8% 9,5% 9,2% 27,9% 10,3% 66,3%	No. 1.634 3.314 2.069 860 801 2.717 586 1.032 1.404 899 378 119	% 100,0% 100,0% 100,0% 100,0% 100,0% 100,0% 100,0% 100,0% 100,0%	602.361 273.299 187.379 657.979 75.028 142.937 122.633 124.771 67.453 7 963	Ition to ipants % 100,0% 100,0% 100,0% 100,0% 100,0% 100,0% 100,0%				
ri Integrating and strenghtening the ERA	Life sciences, genomics and biotechnology for health Information society technologies Nanotechnologies and nanosciences, knowledge-based multifunctional materials and new production processes and devices A Aeronautics and space Food quality and safety Sustainable development, global change and ecosystems T. Citizens and governance in a knowledge-based society Policy support and anticipating scientific and technological needs Horizontal research activities involving SMEs Specific measures in support of international cooperation Support for the coordination of activities Support for the content development of research & innovation poli- Besearch and innovation	No. 145 834 200 241 182 722 46 172 403 189 283 76 512	3.00000 8.9% 25.2% 9.7% 28.0% 22.7% 26.6% 7.8% 16.7% 28.7% 21.0% 74.3% 63.3% 71.4%	contribu partic '000 Euros 30.948 163.848 35.401 70.565 34.836 189.813 7.126 13.106 34.182 13.583 44.693 4.843 44.728	Ition to ipants 5,4% 16,5% 5,3% 25,8% 18,6% 28,8% 3,5% 3,2% 27,3% 10,3% 66,3% 60,8% 70,7%	No. 1.634 3.314 2.069 860 801 2.717 586 1.032 1.404 899 378 119 717	% 100,0% 100,0% 100,0% 100,0% 100,0% 100,0% 100,0% 100,0% 100,0%	602.361 602.361 273.299 187.379 657.972 75.028 142.937 122.633 124.771 67.453 7.963 63.259	Ition to ipants % 100,0% 100,0% 100,0% 100,0% 100,0% 100,0% 100,0% 100,0%				
turi the Integrating and strenghtening the ERA	1. Life sciences, genomics and biotechnology for health 2. Information society technologies 3. Nanotechnologies and nanosciences, knowledge-based multifunctional materials and new production processes and devices 4. Aeronautics and space 5. Food quality and safety 6. Sustainable development, global change and ecosystems 7. Citizens and governance in a knowledge-based society Policy support and anticipating scientific and technological needs Horizontal research activities involving SMEs Specific measures in support of international cooperation Support for the coordination of activities Support for the coordination of activities Human resources and mobility	No. 145 834 200 241 182 722 46 172 403 189 283 76 512 255	3.000000 8.3% 25.2% 3.7% 28.0% 22.7% 26.6% 7.8% 16.7% 28.7% 21.0% 74.3% 63.3% 71.4% 12.6%	contribu partice '000 Euros 30.948 163.848 35.401 70.565 34.836 189.813 7.126 13.106 34.182 13.583 44.693 4.843 44.728 24.109	Lition to ipants 5,4% 16,5% 5,3% 25,8% 18,6% 28,8% 9,5% 9,2% 27,3% 10,3% 66,3% 66,3% 60,8% 70,7%	No. 1.634 3.314 2.069 860 801 2.717 586 1.032 1.404 899 378 119 717 2.029	% 100,0%	602.361 273.299 187.379 657.972 75.028 142.937 122.633 124.771 67.453 7.963 259 438.487	Ition to ipants % 100,0% 100,0% 100,0% 100,0% 100,0% 100,0% 100,0% 100,0%				
ucturi g the ERA	1. Life sciences, genomics and biotechnology for health 2. Information society technologies 3. Nanotechnologies and nanosciences, knowledge-based multifunctional materials and new production processes and devices 4. Aeronautics and space 5. Food quality and safety 6. Sustainable development, global change and ecosystems 7. Citizens and governance in a knowledge-based society Policy support and anticipating scientific and technological needs Horizontal research activities involving SMEs Specific measures in support of international cooperation Support for the condination of activities Support for the coherent development of research & innovation poli Research and innovation Human resources and mobility	No. 145 834 200 241 182 722 46 172 403 189 283 76 512 255 30	3400000 8,3% 25,2% 3,7% 28,0% 22,7% 28,0% 22,7% 26,6% 7,8% 16,7% 28,7% 21,0% 74,3% 63,3% 71,4% 12,6% 8,8%	contribu partic '000 Euros 30.948 163.848 35.401 70.565 34.836 189.813 7.126 13.106 34.182 13.583 44.693 4.843 4.843 4.841	Lion to ipants 5,4% 16,5% 5,3% 25,8% 18,6% 28,8% 9,5% 9,2% 27,3% 10,3% 66,3% 66,3% 60,8% 70,7% 5,5%	No. 1.634 3.314 2.069 860 801 2.717 586 1.032 1.404 899 378 119 717 2.029 342	>> 100,0> 100,0> 100,0> 100,0> 100,0> 100,0> 100,0> 100,0> 100,0> 100,0> 100,0> 100,0> 100,0> 100,0> 100,0> 100,0> 100,0> 100,0> 100,0>	602.361 273.299 187.379 657.972 75.028 142.937 122.633 124.771 67.453 7.963 63.259 438.487 150.096	Ition to ipants % 100,0% 100,0% 100,0% 100,0% 100,0% 100,0% 100,0% 100,0% 100,0%				
Structuri Integrating and strenghtening the ERA ERA	1. Life sciences, genomics and biotechnology for health 2. Information society technologies 3. Nanotechnologies and nanosciences, knowledge-based multifunctional materials and new production processes and devices 4. Aeronautics and space 5. Food quality and safety 6. Sustainable development, global change and ecosystems 7. Citizens and governance in a knowledge-based society Policy support and anticipating scientific and technological needs Horizontal research activities involving SMEs Support for the coordination of activities Support for the coherent development of research & innovation poli- Research and innovation Human resources and mobility Research and society	No. 145 834 200 241 182 722 46 172 46 172 403 189 283 76 512 255 30 0100	3,7% 8,3% 25,2% 28,0% 22,7% 28,0% 22,7% 26,6% 7,8% 16,7% 21,0% 74,3% 63,3% 71,4% 12,6% 29,8%	contribu partic '000 Euros 30.948 163.848 35.401 70.565 34.836 189.813 7.126 13.106 34.182 13.583 44.693 4.843 44.728 24.109 8.441 6.746	Ltion to ipants % 5,4% 16,5% 25,8% 25,8% 25,8% 26,8% 9,5% 27,3% 10,3% 66,3% 60,8% 70,7% 5,5% 5,6% 30,8%	No. 1.634 3.314 2.069 860 801 2.717 586 1.032 1.404 899 378 119 717 2.029 342 336	>> 100,0>	000 Euros 569.591 992.472 602.361 273.299 187.379 657.972 75.028 142.937 122.633 124.771 67.453 7.963 63.259 438.487 150.096 21.884	Ition to ipants % 100,0% 100,0% 100,0% 100,0% 100,0% 100,0% 100,0% 100,0% 100,0%				
E Structuri rig the Integrating and strenghtening EHA the EAA	Life sciences, genomics and biotechnology for health Information society technologies Nanotechnologies and nanosciences, knowledge-based multifunctional materials and new production processes and devices A consultics and space Social space Social space and experiments, global change and ecosystems Citizens and governance in a knowledge-based society Policy support and anticipating scientific and technological needs Horizontal research activities involving SMEs Sueport for the coordination of activities Support for the coordination of activities Support for the coordination Human resources and mobility Research infrastructures Science and society	No. 145 834 200 241 182 722 46 172 403 189 283 76 512 255 30 100 36	3, 3, 3, 3, 3, 3, 3, 3, 3, 3, 3, 3, 3, 3	contribu partic '000 Euros 30.948 163.848 35.401 70.565 34.836 189.813 7.126 13.106 34.182 13.583 44.693 4.843 44.728 24.109 8.441 6.746 5.532	tion to ipants 5,4%, 5,3%, 5,3%, 25,8%, 28,8%, 20,8%,	No. 1.634 3.314 2.069 860 801 2.717 586 1.032 1.404 899 378 119 717 2.029 342 336 210	% 100,0%	000 Euros 569.591 992.472 602.361 273.299 187.379 657.972 75.028 142.937 122.633 124.771 67.453 7.963 63.259 438.487 150.096 21.884	thorn to ipants 200,0% 100,0% 100,0% 100,0% 100,0% 100,0% 100,0% 100,0% 100,0% 100,0% 100,0%				
D I I Structuri leter ng the EFA the EFA the EFA	Life sciences, genomics and biotechnology for health Information society technologies Anotechnologies and nanosciences, knowledge-based multifunctional materials and new production processes and devices Aeronautics and space Social production processes and evelopment, global change and ecosystems Citizens and governance in a knowledge-based society Policy support and anticipating scientific and technological needs Horizontal research activities involving SMEs Specific measures in support of international cooperation Support for the coordination of activities Support for the coordination of activities Support for the coordination Human resources and mobility Research infrastructures Science and society	No. 145 834 200 241 182 722 46 172 403 189 283 76 512 255 30 100 36 4,426	3.000000000000000000000000000000000000	contribu partic '000 Euros 30.948 163.848 35.401 70.565 34.836 189.813 7.126 13.106 34.182 13.583 44.693 44.693 4.843 44.728 24.109 8.441 6.746 5.532	11 torn for 5,4% 5,4% 5,3% 5,5%	No. 1.634 3.314 2.069 860 801 2.717 586 1.032 1.404 899 378 119 717 2.029 342 342 342 320 19.447	\$ 100,0% 100,0% 100,0% 100,0% 100,0% 100,0% 100,0% 100,0% 100,0% 100,0% 100,0% 100,0% 100,0%	000 Euros 569.591 992.472 602.361 273.299 187.379 657.972 75.028 142.937 122.633 124.771 67.453 7.963 63.259 438.487 150.096 21.884 53.182	them foo ipants 100,0% 100,0% 100,0% 100,0% 100,0% 100,0% 100,0% 100,0% 100,0% 100,0% 100,0% 100,0% 100,0% 100,0% 100,0%				

(7) As 'industry' in various European countries refers only to manufacturing activity, many participating private enterprises do not classify themselves under the 'industry' label in the forms which the participants fill out. This explains the high percentage of participants which appear under the 'industry' label in the forms which the participants fill out. This explains the high percentage of participants which appear under the 'other' category in many research fields.

	Table 3c: FP6 Contracts signed in 2005							Parti	cipation	& Contribution	by Pri	ority Are	a & Country						
		EU2	5 - Mem	ber States		BE - Be	elgium		CY - Cy	yprus	CZ	- Czech	Republic	l	DK - Dei	nmark	I	DE - Ge	rmany
	Priority Area	Contr acts	Particip ations	EC financial contribution to participants															
		No.	No.	'000 Euros															
p	1. Life sciences, genomics and biotechnology for health	147	1.477	525.575	41	65	24.764				21	23	4.087	39	59	21.142	107	283	115.345
- E	2. Information society technologies	297	2.940	910.136	93	126	54.871	13	13	1.466	40	43	7.937	30	38	11.667	209	510	190.441
ghte	 Nanotechnologies and nanosciences, knowledge-based multifunctional materials and new production processes and 	164	1.880	558.363	52	84	26.002	2	2	203	20	25	4.619	27	33	8.151	137	383	129.803
Ë,	4. Aeronautics and space	58	804	261.844	28	43	7.896	3	3	697	7	7	1.110	3	3	702	47	145	54.244
ta de la calactería de	5. Food quality and safety	41	708	172.316	20	52	11.157	2	2	69	11	12	1.977	15	33	13.219	25	83	20.368
Ψ	Sustainable development, global change and ecosystems	186	2.363	593.959	71	135	26.281	4	4	410	31	41	4.404	44	65	18.134	133	419	122.286
5 <u>5</u>	Citizens and governance in a knowledge-based society	31	513	66.771	17	30	5.986	2	2	157	10	15	1.306	7	14	1.623	22	58	10.502
p	Policy support and anticipating scientific and technological needs	129	924	130.845	31	38	5.664	- 4	4	142	20	20	1.687	20	22	2.373	90	132	24.422
- ÷	Horizontal research activities involving SMEs	121	1.298	113.929	27	40	3.263	3	4	446	24	33	2.467	20	33	3.160	74	189	18.771
ň	Specific measures in support of international cooperation	94	379	53.000	25	28	5.360	2	2	116	4	5	296	13	13	1.998	39	50	8.703
ě.	Support for the coordination of activities	28	331	61.989	16	22	3.076	2	2	78	5	6	473	8	9	1.616	21	32	9.030
<u> </u>	Support for the coherent development of research & innovation polici	16	113	7.523	2	2	169				2	2	94	5	7	465	9	12	1.057
Έρ.	Research and innovation	87	632	54.150	19	25	3.120	9	9	1.597	10	16	860	10	19	2.656	41	68	5.404
: 동문 문	Human resources and mobility	1.175	1.812	413.026	55	61	12.386	9	9	2.280	23	31	3.288	46	51	14.219	176	238	58.027
글 말 때	Research infrastructures	35	285	140.918	3	3	5.897	1	1	61	1	1	28	2	2	292	22	59	48.442
υ ⁻	Science and society	41	283	19.607	9	17	725				4	5	357	9	11	899	22	37	3.206
Euratom		5.048	1	1	16	6	8	545	1	1	268	8	25	16.150					
Total		2.666	16.925	4.134.312	519	794	201.666	57	58	7.736	239	293	35.535	299	413	102.585	1.182	2.723	836.200

	Table SC: FP6 Contracts signed in 2005							Partic	pation		by Pri	ority Are	a & Country						
			EL - Gi	reece		ES - S	pain		EE - Es	stonia		FR - F	rance		HU - Hu	ngary		IE - Ire	land
	Priority Area	Contr acts	Particip ations	EC financial contribution to participants	Contr acts	Particip ations	EC financial contribution to participants	Contr acts	Particip ations	EC financial contribution to participants	Contr acts	Particip ations	EC financial contribution to participants	Contr acts	Particip ations	EC financial contribution to participants	Contr acts	Particip ations	EC financial contribution to participants
		No.	No.	'000 Euros	No.	No.	'000 Euros	No.	No.	'000 Euros	No.	No.	'000 Euros	No.	No.	'000 Euros	No.	No.	'000 Euros
ŋ	1. Life sciences, genomics and biotechnology for health	14	15	4.460	51	68	19.269	8	8	2.131	96	221	83.261	16	20	3.949	11	12	3.055
- È	2. Information society technologies	90	147	41.428	115	201	60.461	21	22	1.869	182	386	133.081	52	65	9.035	33	40	11.171
ghte	 Nanotechnologies and nanosciences, knowledge-based multifunctional materials and new production processes and 	34	51	10.752	77	180	54.852	2	2	75	95	200	63.710	16	18	3.392	25	35	7.991
5 _	4. Aeronautics and space	21	37	7.099	25	48	13.792				48	165	70.261	1	1	134	6	10	5.675
동금	5. Food quality and safety	14	21	3.809	25	56	10.474	1	1	6	27	54	14.295	16	21	2.103	10	17	2.311
<u>ب</u> ۳	Sustainable development, global change and ecosystems	45	69	14.972	83	169	43.162	12	17	2.879	111	303	84.148	29	39	3.232	15	19	3.349
ងដ្	Citizens and governance in a knowledge-based society	13	20	1.185	18	26	3.214	8	8	1.066	21	40	6.532	14	21	2.084	7	7	1.095
2 -	Policy support and anticipating scientific and technological needs	24	27	2.224	29	43	4.691	8	8	261	67	100	16.659	23	30	3.558	12	13	1.572
- Ş	Horizontal research activities involving SMEs	19	34	3.742	66	167	12.310	9	13	1.064	45	87	6.412	16	25	1.740	20	29	1.861
- En	Specific measures in support of international cooperation	16	20	2.553	27	36	3.839	2	2	85	31	44	5.881	5	5	349			
Ę	Support for the coordination of activities	4	5	677	14	21	1.958	6	6	539	20	37	9.465	5	5	716	10	10	1.088
<u> </u>	Support for the coherent development of research & innovation policity	3	5	285	5	5	302	2	3	189	4	7	356	7	10	384	3	3	366
Έo	Research and innovation	19	21	2.132	33	58	3.331	11	15	830	32	58	6.297	13	20	648	4	5	136
동문 문	Human resources and mobility	67	80	10.369	146	152	19.135	7	9	424	217	246	58.595	28	29	3.867	38	40	14.861
ទួទួញ	Research infrastructures	4	10	4.406	9	23	2.604	1	2	793	18	37	21.574	3	3	293	1	1	83
0 -	Science and society	7	10	516	8	10	366	6	7	289	17	29	1.532	4	4	155	1	1	13
Euratom		2 2 159 8 10 1.271 1 1 12 8 29 11.528 3 4 269 1 1											53						
Total		396	574	110.765 739 1.273 255.032 105 124 12.511 1.039 2.043 593.588 251 320 35.907 197 243									54 680						

	Table 3c: FP6 Contracts signed in 2005							Partic	cipation	& Contributior	ı by Pri	ority Are	a & Country						
			IT - It	aly		LV - L	atvia	I	LT - Lit	huania	LI	J - Luxe	mbourg		MT - N	lalta	N	L - Neth	erlands
	Priority Area	Contr acts	Particip ^{ations} t	EC financial contribution to participants	Contr acts	Particip ations	EC financial contribution to participants												
		No.	No.	'000 Euros	No.	No.	'000 Euros	No.	No.	'000 Euros	No.	No.	'000 Euros	No.	No.	'000 Euros	No.	No.	'000 Euros
p	 Life sciences, genomics and biotechnology for health 	73	151	51.137													63	105	39.837
5	2. Information society technologies	157	311	94.161	12	12	610	25	34	3.205	6	6	1.568	13	13	864	97	145	49.608
pte -	 Nanotechnologies and nanosciences, knowledge-based multifunctional materials and new production processes and 	01	210	CA 700	7	7	701	2	2	CE.	-	2	577	2	2	204	50	05	24.144
- D	Access the and enses	20	213	04.700	1	1	101	2	2	60	2	2	377	2	2	204	23	40	24.144
Ē<	4. Aeronautics and space	30	C0	20.313	1	1	40	5	5	200				· ·	2	033	24	40	14.770
	5. Fuoli quality and sarety 6. Suetainable development, global change and eccelleteres	90	221	12.333 50 709	10	12	1405	11	- 11	500			970	2	2	95	27	155	52 269
<u> </u>	7. Citizens and governance in a knowledge-based society	19	55	7 349	3	3	232	5	8	1 055	4	4	370	1	2	102	18	32	3 197
82	Policy support and anticipating scientific and technological needs	69	97	14 631	7	7	417	7	8	252	2	2	03	2	2	46	49	65	8 685
ŝ.	Horizontal research activities involving SMEs	62	148	13 420	2	2	92	7	9	586	-	-	00	1	1	161	36	87	7 025
2	Specific measures in support of international cooperation	31	41	3,983	1	1	83	2	2	130	1	1	37	5	5	341	23	25	3.879
<u>e</u>	Support for the coordination of activities	13	14	1.859	2	2	202	1	1	19	3	3	265	_	_		23	28	7.896
<u>-</u>	Support for the coherent development of research & innovation poli-	8	13	962	2	2	161	1	1	39							4	4	318
'E o	Research and innovation	48	71	7.201	4	4	144	11	16	525	5	6	431	2	2	192	12	17	2.364
-12 ¥ €	Human resources and mobility	135	149	29.575	2	2	174	4	5	860	1	4	93				95	111	26.986
2 giù	Research infrastructures	14	32	13.078	2	3	678	2	3	569							11	17	7.143
0 L	Science and society	17	26	1.940	2	3	67	3	6	358				1	1	66	14	16	2.316
Euratom		9	14	3.569							1	1	28				10	12	5.367
Total		62	5.205	87	112	8.722	25	29	4.029	30	31	2.850	643	1.012	278.488				

												or ny rin e	a a country						
			AT - Au	ustria		PL - P	oland	I	PT - Po	rtugal		SK - SI	ovakia		SI - Slo	venia		FI - Fir	nland
	Priority Area	Contr acts	Particip ations	EC financial contribution to participants															
		No.	No.	'000 Euros															
ព្	1. Life sciences, genomics and biotechnology for health	35	60	18.969	15	17	2.938	11	12	2.044	4	4	930	7	9	2.331	24	30	10.795
-Ē	2. Information society technologies	73	104	38.086	74	101	13.704	30	38	8.173	26	33	3.007	43	56	8.837	48	72	18.949
ghtei	 Nanotechnologies and nanosciences, knowledge-based multifunctional materials and new production processes and 	36	69	22.634	42	55	8.875	23	31	6.136	11	12	989	18	21	3.780	32	50	15.559
Ŝ.	4. Aeronautics and space	9	10	2.133	11	12	1.270	12	14	2.673	1	1	53	5	6	1.056	3	4	1.375
÷. E	5. Food quality and safety	12	22	4.435	16	21	4.256	4	7	635	3	3	445	4	6	1.360	12	19	6.131
Ψ̈́Ψ	6. Sustainable development, global change and ecosystems	46	66	16.637	53	80	7.534	29	37	5.872	14	16	893	15	20	1.656	26	44	6.046
5 g	7. Citizens and governance in a knowledge-based society	14	18	1.474	12	16	1.321	10	11	867	8	8	884	10	10	1.323	8	10	769
p -	Policy support and anticipating scientific and technological needs	19	26	2.568	35	41	3.326	13	14	1.994	13	14	758	17	19	2.060	16	17	1.494
ų.	Horizontal research activities involving SMEs	18	36	3.742	40	68	4.567	20	38	2.930	8	10	513	5	5	394	16	37	2.714
ň	Specific measures in support of international cooperation	9	11	1.855	3	3	217	9	10	810	2	2	103	2	2	29	4	4	802
je je	Support for the coordination of activities	17	21	4.398	12	16	1.218	8	9	1.134	3	5	219	8	8	711	14	18	3.357
-	Support for the coherent development of research & innovation poli-	3	5	221	7	8	387				1	1	41	3	3	149	3	7	555
Έø.	Research and innovation	17	22	3.689	27	58	3.075	6	8		10	24	1.286	9	11	2.357	12	20	1.033
동문 문	Human resources and mobility	32	34	8.793	43	44	3.436	24	27	5.854	11	11	1.103	8	9	1.363	30	34	10.861
5 Bm	Research infrastructures	3	3	943	5	7	753	2	2	130	2	2	150	1	1	75	2	2	271
0 [–]	Science and society	9	14	1.029	6	9	455	- 4	4	253	4	4	226	5	6	191	6	8	694
Euratom		2	3	119	1	1	16	1	1	95	3	5	199	2	2	77	3	6	331
Total		354	524	131.725	402	557	57.347	206	263	39.601	124	155	11.797	162	194	27.750	259	382	81.735

Contribution by Driority

Table 3c[.] FP6 Contract

	Table 3c: FP6 Contracts signed in 2005	Partic	cipation &	Contribution	by Pri	ority Are	a & Country				
			SE - Sw	eden	UK	- United	l Kingdom				
	Priority Area	Contr acts	Particip ations	EC financial contribution to participants	Contr acts	Particip ations	EC financial contribution to participants				
		No.	No.	'000 Euros	No.	No.	'000 Euros				
p	 Life sciences, genomics and biotechnology for health 	57	92	28.097	103	223	87.034				
- Ē	2. Information society technologies	63	92	31.047	165	332	114.891				
ghte	 Nanotechnologies and nanosciences, knowledge-based multifunctional materials and new production processes and 	46	82	29.172	106	230	71.102				
5	4. Aeronautics and space	21	39	11.671	47	124	43.995				
H at	5. Food quality and safety	12	24	6.297	30	112	34.278				
- <u>-</u>	Sustainable development, global change and ecosystems	65	134	46.659	109	271	70.325				
ê ç	Citizens and governance in a knowledge-based society	12	23	3.162	25	77	10.287				
ື້	Policy support and anticipating scientific and technological needs	31	38	6.533	86	137	24.768				
- the second sec	Horizontal research activities involving SMEs	18	30	3.455	71	173	19.095				
Ď	Specific measures in support of international cooperation	9	9	1.172	42	58	10.381				
je je	Support for the coordination of activities	16	19	2.789	23	32	9.206				
<u>-</u>	Support for the coherent development of research & innovation polic	3	5	339	8	8	684				
Έρ	Research and innovation	7	8	981	35	51	3.862				
공율중	Human resources and mobility	51	59	16.041	332	377	110.437				
ទួទួញ	Research infrastructures	15	17	6.104	23	54	26.553				
σ -	Science and society	16	18	1.349	24	37	2.608				
Euratom		5	5	951	9	28	4.287				
Total		447	694	195.818	1.238	2.324	643.793				

Table 3c: FP6 Contracts signed in 2005

Participation & Contribution by Priority Area & Country

		Can	didate (Countries		BG - Bu	Ilgaria		HR - C	roatia	I	RO - Ro	mania		TR - T	urkey
	Priority Area	Contr acts	Particip ations	EC financial contribution to participants												
		No.	No.	'000 Euros												
p D	1. Life sciences, genomics and biotechnology for health	7	8	901	2	2	105	2	2	55	1	1	382	3	3	359
- Ē	2. Information society technologies	52	96	11.513	28	36	4.231	5	7	463	28	33	3.666	15	20	3.153
ghte	 Nanotechnologies and nanosciences, knowledge-based multifunctional materials and new production processes and 	28	49	5.230	9	13	1.197				17	30	3.652	6	6	381
Ë.	4. Aeronautics and space	5	5	1.233							2	2	315	3	3	918
tar	5. Food quality and safety	15	19	1.824	7	8	906	1	1	41	3	4	153	6	6	723
Ψ	6. Sustainable development, global change and ecosystems	34	68	6.176	17	21	1.498	1	1	26	21	29	2.390	14	17	2.261
e ç	7. Citizens and governance in a knowledge-based society	14	27	2.246	10	12	1.149	2	2	152	3	4	302	7	9	644
9 T	Policy support and anticipating scientific and technological needs	12	24	592	6	8	165	5	5	140	7	7	184	4	4	103
ų.	Horizontal research activities involving SMEs	24	36	1.809	8	12	629	1	1	64	12	19	911	3	- 4	205
č	Specific measures in support of international cooperation	43	46	21.362	9	9	4.845	6	6	186	9	9	6.926	21	22	9.405
je je	Support for the coordination of activities	5	7	352	1	1	59				4	5	245	1	1	48
<u> </u>	Support for the coherent development of research & innovation poli-	2	3	220	1	1	58				1	1	60	1	1	102
Έo.	Research and innovation	24	41	6.141	9	12	1.317	3	3	1.162	12	14	2.069	7	12	1.593
공운동	Human resources and mobility	31	39	3.427	6	10	664	2	2	209	17	21	2.075	6	6	480
S bm	Research infrastructures	2	3	169	1	1	49				2	2	120			
Ū,	Science and society	8	13	414	4	4	130	2	2	157	3	5	82	2	2	45
Euratom		5	10	242	5	8	230				1	1	12	1	1	
Total		311	494	63.851	123	158	17.233	30	32	2.655	143	187	23.543	100	117	20.420

	Table 3c: FP6 Contracts signed in 2005							Parti	cipation	& Contribution	by Pri	ority Are	a & Country						
		Ass	ociated	Countries		IS - Ice	eland	LI	- Liech	Itenstein		NO - N	огњау	CI	H - Swit	zerland		IL - Is	rael
	Priority Area	Contr acts	Particip ations	EC financial contribution to participants															
		No.	No.	'000 Euros															
p	1. Life sciences, genomics and biotechnology for health	69	116	36.768	1	1	1.524				9	11	2.916	46	68	22.210	29	36	10.119
- 12	2. Information society technologies	115	164	65.219	2	2	270				24	29	10.285	76	102	43.891	27	31	10.773
ghte	 Nanotechnologies and nanosciences, knowledge-based multifunctional materials and new production processes and 	70	116	34.039	1	1	23	2	2	245	12	16	4.496	52	72	21.422	16	25	7.853
5	4. Aeronautics and space	19	34	7.382							7	8	1.957	9	14	3.242	8	12	2.184
ta da	5. Food quality and safety	16	44	10.486	3	3	1.017				8	14	4.545	8	18	3.524	6	9	1.400
Ψ	6. Sustainable development, global change and ecosystems	83	169	46.361	5	6	1.161				41	88	25.697	46	64	17.754	8	11	1.749
5 <u>5</u>	Citizens and governance in a knowledge-based society	15	26	4.576	1	1	102				9	12	3.255	8	10	1.112	2	3	107
p	Policy support and anticipating scientific and technological needs	42	53	9.276							10	10	1.120	24	28	5.143	12	15	3.014
	Horizontal research activities involving SMEs	34	65	6.379	1	2	108				20	40	3.918	13	16	1.382	5	7	971
ň	Specific measures in support of international cooperation	18	20	2.634							5	5	651	8	9	733	5	6	1.249
Ę.	Support for the coordination of activities	23	37	4.763	3	3	394				19	22	2.828	6	6	979	5	6	562
-	Support for the coherent development of research & innovation poli-	2	3	219							1	1	87	1	1	78	1	1	54
Έo	Research and innovation	19	39	2.968	3	4	184				5	10	664	6	14	872	6	11	1.248
· 등 문 문	Human resources and mobility	79	88	21.874	5	6	816				20	21	4.436	44	46	14.290	15	15	2.332
5 g	Research infrastructures	12	16	7.436							3	4	1.135	9	11	6.264	1	1	37
0 ⁻	Science and society	11	14	635	1	1	12				3	3	88	8	8	390	2	2	146
Euratom		5	6	1.281							1	1		4	5	1.281			
Total		632	1.010	262.297	26	30	5.611	2	2	245	197	295	68.078	368	492	144.565	148	191	43.798

	Table SC. PPO Contracts signed in 2005							Paru	sipation	& Contribution	by Pric	ority are	a & Country						
		т	hird Co	untries		AU - Au	stralia		BR - E	Brazil		CA - Ca	anada		CN - C	hina		IN - Ir	ndia
	Priority Area	Contr acts	Particip ations	EC financial contribution to participants															
		No.	No.	'000 Euros															
ŋ	1. Life sciences, genomics and biotechnology for health	19	33	6.346	2	4	27	1	1	44				4	4	656	1	1	133
눹	2. Information society technologies	49	114	5.603	4	5		1	2	40	7	11		11	22	987	5	8	553
ghte	 Nanotechnologies and nanosciences, knowledge-based multifunctional materials and new production processes and 	16	24	4.729	2	2					1	1		1	1	20			
5 _	4. Aeronautics and space	11	17	2.839										1	1	236			
Ъ	5. Food quality and safety	17	30	2.753	1	1		2	2	235	1	1		3	3	244			
μ	Sustainable development, global change and ecosystems	48	117	11.476	3	3		3	4	367	4	4	322	7	8	1.104	2	2	171
5 Ľ	Citizens and governance in a knowledge-based society	10	20	1.435				1	1	31	1	1	45				1	1	43
p	Policy support and anticipating scientific and technological needs	16	31	2.225				2	2	190	1	1	40	2	2	99	1	1	83
- Q	Horizontal research activities involving SMEs	5	5	516				2	2	297									
č	Specific measures in support of international cooperation	100	454	47.775	2	2	340	12	21	2.403	1	1	340	15	34	4.217	7	13	1.818
Ę.	Support for the coordination of activities	2	3	349							1	1	194						
	Support for the coherent development of research & innovation poli-																		
Έo	Research and innovation	3	5																
국국당	Human resources and mobility	89	90	160	12	12					5	5							
2 2 2 2	Research infrastructures	8	38	1.572	2	7	81	1	5	199	1	1	12						
0	Science and society	9	26	1.227				1	1	31	1	2	21	2	3	135			
Euratom		4	11	1.300							1	1		1	1				
Total		406	1.018	90.306	28	36	448	26	41	3.837	25	30	974	47	79	7.699	17	26	2.800

	Table 3c: FP6 Contracts signed in 2005				Partic	ipation (& Contribution	by Pri	ority Are	a & Country			
			JP - J	apan	RU - I	Russian	Federation	US	6 - Unite	d States	Z	4 - Sout	h Africa
	Priority Area	Contr acts	Particip ations	EC financial contribution to participants									
		No.	No.	'000 Euros									
ğ	1. Life sciences, genomics and biotechnology for health				2	2	1.992	4	4	318			
- E	2. Information society technologies	1	1		6	6	677	5	5	100	3	4	231
ghte	 Nanotechnologies and nanosciences, knowledge-based multifunctional materials and new production processes and 	1	1		13	14	3.149				1	4	1.492
Ē,	4. Aeronautics and space				9	15	2.479						
H A C	5. Food quality and safety				3	3	357				3	4	477
Ψ	6. Sustainable development, global change and ecosystems	1	1		14	22	1.923	7	9	985	- 4	5	329
ទីដី	7. Citizens and governance in a knowledge-based society				3	3	324				1	1	51
្តា	Policy support and anticipating scientific and technological needs	1	1	66	5	6	877	- 4	4	83			
- ų	Horizontal research activities involving SMEs												
Ĕ	Specific measures in support of international cooperation				17	55	4.375				9	16	1.569
Ę.	Support for the coordination of activities				1	1	88						
<u> </u>	Support for the coherent development of research & innovation poli-												
Έo.	Research and innovation												
응 문 문	Human resources and mobility	1	1		2	2	29	67	68	130			
ទួទួញ	Research infrastructures				3	5	360	2	3	162	1	2	18
ō T	Science and society	1	1	29	2	2	429	1	2	22			
Euratom			2	6	1.280				1	1			
Total		95	82	142	18.338	90	95	1.800	23	37	4.167		

	Table 3d: FP6 Contracts signed in 2005							Part	icipation	& Contributio	on by In	strumen	t & Country						
		EU2	25 - Меп	nber States		BE - Be	elgium		CY - Cy	yprus	CZ	- Czech	Republic		DK - De	nmark		DE - Ge	ermany
	Instrument	Contr acts	Particip ations	EC financial contribution to participants															
		No.	No.	'000 Euros															
	IP - Integrated Projects	208	4.338	1.823.649	111	214	89,954	7	7	1.013	50	60	13,186	63	107	48.395	191	793	397.140
	NDE - Networks of Excellence	36	837	229.219	18	39	11.653	2	2	157	12	17	2.729	18	32	7.006	36	130	40.344
	STREP - Specific Targeted Research Projects	630	4.906	1.102.196	153	202	50.292	10	10	1.664	68	75	10.290	77	94	19.924	438	875	227.981
	CA - Coordination Actions	156	1.830	181.503	81	131	16.696	7	7	162	31	41	2.064	50	64	6.011	125	270	31.027
	SSA - Specific Support Actions	369	1.965	271.096	76	112	17.674	20	20	2.122	32	43	1.585	25	32	3.870	142	228	62.910
	CLR - Collective Research Projects	22	402	37.895	9	17	1.273	1	1	70	6	7	836	4	7	623	16	55	5.834
	CRAFT - Co-operative Research Projects	99	896	76.034	18	23	1.990	2	3	376	18	26	1.631	16	26	2.538	58	134	12.937
	MCA - Marie Curie Actions	1.144	1.741	409.796	53	56	12.134	8	8	2.174	22	24	3.214	46	51	14.219	176	238	58.027
	13 - Specific Actions to Promote Research Infrastructures	2	10	2.925															
Total		2.666	16.925	4.134.312	519	794	201.666	57	58	7.736	239	293	35.535	299	413	102.585	1.182	2.723	836.200
	Table 3d: FP6 Contracts signed in 2005							Parti	icipation	& Contributio	n by in	strument	t & Country						
			EL - G	reece		ES - 9	pain		EE - Es	stonia		FR - Fi	ance		HU - Hu	ngary		IE - Ire	eland
	Instrument	Comb	Destinia	EC financial	Carela	Destinia	EC financial	Carela	Destinia	EC financial	Contra	Destinia	EC financial	Carela	Destinia	EC financial	Contra	Destinia	EC financial
		Lono	- articip	contribution	acts	ations	contribution												
		0010	- duono	to participants	0010	ationio	to participants	30.0	daono	to participants	30.0	duonio	to participants		duorio	to participants	30.0	ationio	to participants
		No.	No.	'000 Euros															
	IP - Integrated Projects	69	114	33.193	136	342	128.584	10	14	3.731	171	575	283.080	49	63	11.803	32	44	16.392
	NOE - Networks of Excellence	15	27	6.526	27	46	13.433	6	6	1.360	34	90	34.243	11	15	2.567	7	7	1.702
	STREP - Specific Targeted Research Projects	138	210	45.275	210	322	65.211	21	22	2.306	344	659	151.140	64	86	11.178	50	63	15.427
	CA - Coordination Actions	36	41	2.523	- 77	132	8.794	22	25	1.291	105	196	22.950	43	50	2.521	29	34	2.637
	SSA - Specific Support Actions	54	81	9.279	80	116	7.789	30	36	1.640	130	198	37.891	40	52	2.230	23	30	1.974
	CLR - Collective Research Projects	9	20	2.266	17	57	3.795	3	6	526	11	34	2.886	4	9	514	4	5	251
	CRAFT - Co-operative Research Projects	10	14	1.476	49	110	8.515	6	7	538	34	53	3.526	12	16	1.226	16	24	1.609
	MCA - Marie Curie Actions	65	67	10.227	143	148	18.911	6	6	327	210	238	57.870	28	29	3.867	36	36	14.687
	13 - Specific Actions to Promote Research Infrastructures							1	2	793									
Total		396	574	110.765	739	1.273	255.032	105	124	12.511	1.039	2.043	593.588	251	320	35.907	197	243	54.680

	Table 3d: FP6 Contracts signed in 2005							Part	icipation	& Contributio	on by Ins	strument	& Country						
			IT - I	taly		LV - L	atvia		LT - Liti	huania	LL	J - Luxe	mbourg		MT - M	Aalta	N	L - Neth	nerlands
	Instrument	Contr acts	Particip ations	EC financial contribution to participants															
		No.	No.	'000 Euros															
	IP - Integrated Projects	145	447	166.194	4	4	923	8	8	968	4	4	1.421	1	2	699	124	272	134.209
	NDE - Networks of Excellence	32	90	26.319	4	4	660	2	3	388	1	1	440	1	1	102	30	61	15.457
	STREP - Specific Targeted Research Projects	314	552	121.765	16	17	1.538	21	31	3.540	8	8	1.297	7	7	947	190	255	61.070
	CA - Coordination Actions	97	160	15.400	9	9	441	10	10	325	7	7	641	4	4	126	92	124	17.423
	SSA - Specific Support Actions	119	185	26.776	20	22	860	35	45	1.630	5	9	230	16	16	814	76	102	16.319
	CLR - Collective Research Projects	16	47	4.529				3	3	239							8	25	2.575
	CRAFT - Co-operative Research Projects	46	101	8.891	2	2	92	4	6	346				1	1	161	28	62	4.450
	MCA - Marie Curie Actions	132	146	29.376	2	2	174	3	4	744							95	111	26.986
	13 - Specific Actions to Promote Research Infrastructures				1	2	517	1	2	540									
Total		901	1.728	399.249	58	62	5.205	87	112	8.722	25	29	4.029	30	31	2.850	643	1.012	278.488
	Table 3d: FP6 Contracts signed in 2005							Part	icipation	& Contributio	on by ins	strument	& Country						
			AT - A	ustria		PL - P	oland		PT - Pa	rtugal		SK - Slo	ovakia		SI - Slo	venia		FI - Fi	nland
	Instrument	Contr acts	Particip ations	EC financial contribution to participants															
		No.	No.	'000 Euros															
	IP - Integrated Projects	73	131	59.914	68	93	16,449	34	48	10,482	13	14	1.762	28	36	7.828	52	95	32.033
	NDE - Networks of Excellence	13	19	2.913	17	25	5.572	12	14	2.740	6	6	1.243	9	9	2.811	13	17	3.488
	STREP - Specific Targeted Research Projects	117	169	39.644	112	151	18.174	70	84	14.425	31	37	3.699	43	61	9.979	81	111	25.062
	CA - Coordination Actions	51	67	7.593	47	57	3.039	28	32	2.226	14	20	918	34	36	2.895	37	51	5.195
	SSA - Specific Support Actions	52	70	9.156	76	119	5.768	21	25	1.187	41	57	2.558	35	38	2.479	31	41	2.522
	CLR - Collective Research Projects	4	7	1.257	9	19	1.354	5	16	1.088	3	5	324	1	1	29	4	13	626
	CRAFT - Co-operative Research Projects	14	29	2.485	31	49	3.213	15	22	1.842	5	5	189	4	4	365	12	24	2.088
	MCA - Marie Curie Actions	30	32	8.762	41	42	3.323	21	22	5.611	11	11	1.103	8	9	1.363	29	30	10.720
	13 - Specific Actions to Promote Research Infrastructures				1	2	454												
Total		354	524	131 725	402	557	57 347	206	263	39 601	124	155	11 797	162	194	27 750	259	382	81 735

	Table 3d: FP6 Contracts signed in 2005	Parti	icipation	a & Contributio	n by Ins	strumen	t & Country						
			SE - S	weden	UK	- United	l Kingdom						
	Instrument	Contr acts	Particip ations	EC financial contribution to participants	Contr acts	Particip ations	EC financial contribution to participants						
		No.	No.	'000 Euros	No.	No.	'000 Euros						
	IP - Integrated Projects	105	233	101.027	173	618	263.267						
	NOE - Networks of Excellence	26	53	11.812	36	123	33.552						
	STREP - Specific Targeted Research Projects	141	193	48.665	379	612	151.704						
	CA - Coordination Actions	46	57	5.401	114	205	23.203						
	SSA - Specific Support Actions	59	68	8.907	136	220	42.925						
	CLR - Collective Research Projects	3	5	603	13	43	6.397						
	CRAFT - Co-operative Research Projects	15	25	2.852	58	130	12.697						
	MCA - Marie Curie Actions	51	59	16.041	328	372	109.936						
	13 - Specific Actions to Promote Research Infrastructures	1	1	508	1	1	112						
Total		447	694	195.818	1.238	2.324	643.793						
				·	. 1			•					

	Table 3d: FP6 Contracts signed in 2005						Participation	l & Cor	Tribution	i by instrumen	πaco	untry						
		Car	ndidate	Countries		BG - Bu	ulgaria		HR - Ci	roatia		RO - Ro	mania		TR - T	urkey		
	Instrument	Contr acts	Particip ations	EC financial contribution to participants														
		No.	No.	'000 Euros														
	IP - Integrated Projects	42	63	10.517	20	24	3.353				18	28	3.702	10	11	3.462		
	NOE - Networks of Excellence	15	28	4.156	8	10	1.388	2	2	122	5	8	1.697	6	8	949		
	STREP - Specific Targeted Research Projects	66	98	12.394	23	30	3.230	3	4	399	33	39	4.595	21	25	4.169		
	CA - Coordination Actions	32	56	2.767	11	16	444	3	3	70	15	21	1.410	15	16	842		
	SSA - Specific Support Actions	106	186	29.152	49	62	7.644	19	20	1.791	46	57	9.405	39	47	10.312		
	CLR - Collective Research Projects	10	18	813	5	9	460				3	6	159	2	3	194		
	CRAFT - Co-operative Research Projects	14	18	996	3	3	170	1	1	64	9	13	752	1	1	11		
	MCA - Marie Curie Actions	26	27	3.057	4	4	545	2	2	209	14	15	1.823	6	6	480		
	13 - Specific Actions to Promote Research Infrastructures																	
Total		311	494	63.851	123	158	17.233	30	32	2.655	143	187	23.543	100	117	20.420		
				1													 	

| Table 3d: FP6 Contracts signed in 2005 | | | | | |
 | Part

 | icipation | & Contributio | n by In
 | strumen

 | t & Country | | | | | | | | |
 | |
 | | | |
|---|--|---|---|--|--
--

--
--|--|--
--

--
--|---|---------------|--------------------|---|---------------|--|--|---|---

---|---|--
---|--|
| | Ass | ociated | Countries | | IS - Ic | eland
 | LI

 | I - Liech | Itenstein |
 | NO - N

 | orway | C | :H - Swit | zerland | | IL - Is | rael | | |
 | |
 | | | |
| Instrument | Contr
acts | Particip
ations | EC financial
contribution
to participants | Contr
acts | Particip
ations | EC financial
contribution
to participants
 | Contr
acts

 | Particip
ations | EC financial
contribution
to participants | Contr
acts
 | Particip
ations

 | EC financial
contribution
to participants | Contr
acts | Particip
ations | EC financial
contribution
to participants | Contr
acts | Particip
ations | EC financial
contribution
to participants | | |
 | |
 | | | |
| | No. | No. | '000 Euros | No. | No. | '000 Euros
 | No.

 | No. | '000 Euros | No.
 | No.

 | '000 Euros | No. | No. | '000 Euros | No. | No. | '000 Euros | | |
 | |
 | | | |
| IP - Integrated Projects | 133 | 292 | 114.168 | 3 | 3 | 1.107
 |

 | | | 38
 | 77

 | 29.786 | 106 | 174 | 68.786 | 30 | 38 | 14.489 | | |
 | |
 | | | |
| NOE - Networks of Excellence | 28 | 59 | 15.214 | 3 | 3 | 507
 |

 | | | 11
 | 18

 | 4.750 | 17 | 26 | 5.992 | 8 | 12 | 3.965 | | |
 | |
 | | | |
| STREP - Specific Targeted Research Projects | 215 | 299 | 80.610 | 5 | 6 | 2.366
 | 1

 | 1 | 220 | 46
 | 62

 | 15.798 | 132 | 160 | 43.773 | 52 | 70 | 18.453 | | |
 | |
 | | | |
| CA - Coordination Actions | 76 | 112 | 10.717 | 5 | 5 | 429
 | 1

 | 1 | 25 | 42
 | 49

 | 6.832 | 27 | 32 | 2.216 | 20 | 25 | 1.214 | | |
 | |
 | | | |
| SSA - Specific Support Actions | 68 | 96 | 13.304 | 5 | 6 | 379
 |

 | | | 21
 | 29

 | 2.613 | 28 | 37 | 7.938 | 18 | 24 | 2.374 | | |
 | |
 | | | |
| CLR - Collective Research Projects | 7 | 18 | 2.423 | | |
 |

 | | | 4
 | 10

 | 1.278 | 3 | 4 | 340 | 3 | 4 | 805 | | |
 | |
 | | | |
| CRAFT - Co-operative Research Projects | 27 | 47 | 3.955 | 1 | 2 | 108
 |

 | | | 16
 | 30

 | 2.640 | 10 | 12 | 1.042 | 2 | 3 | 166 | | |
 | |
 | | | |
| MCA - Marie Curie Actions | 77 | 86 | 21.718 | 4 | 5 | 716
 |

 | | | 19
 | 20

 | 4.381 | 44 | 46 | 14.290 | 15 | 15 | 2.332 | | |
 | |
 | | | |
| 13 - Specific Actions to Promote Research Infrastructures | 1 | 1 | 187 | | |
 |

 | | |
 |

 | | 1 | 1 | 187 | | | | | |
 | |
 | | | |
| | 632 | 1.010 | 262.297 | 26 | 30 | 5.611
 | 2

 | 2 | 245 | 197
 | 295

 | 68.078 | 368 | 492 | 144.565 | 148 | 191 | 43.798 | | |
 | |
 | | | |
| | Table 3d: FP6 Contracts signed in 2005 Instrument IP - Integrated Projects NDE - Networks of Excellence STREP - Specific Targeted Research Projects CA - Coordination Actions SSA - Specific Support Actions CLR - Collective Research Projects CRAFT - Co-operative Research Projects MCA - Marie Curie Actions I3 - Specific Actions to Promote Research Infrastructures | Table 3d: FP6 Contracts signed in 2005 Instrument Contracts Instrument Contracts No. IP - Integrated Projects ISTREP - Specific Targeted Research Projects STREP - Specific Targeted Research Projects CA - Coordination Actions SSA - Specific Support Actions CBAFT - Co-operative Research Projects CIR - Collective Research Projects TRAFT - Co-operative Research Projects TRAFT - Specific Actions TI3 - Specific Actions to Promote Research Infrastructures TI3 - Specific Actions to Promote Research Infrastructures | Table 3d: FP6 Contracts signed in 2005 Associated Instrument Contr Particip
actis No. No. No. IP - Integrated Projects 133 292 NDE - Networks of Excellence 28 59 STREP - Specific Targeted Research Projects 215 299 CA - Coordination Actions 76 112 SSA - Specific Support Actions 68 96 CLR - Collective Research Projects 27 47 MCA - Marie Curie Actions 77 86 I3 - Specific Actions to Promote Research Infrastructures 1 1 I3 - Specific Actions to Promote Research Infrastructures 1 1 | Table 3d: FP6 Contracts signed in 2005 Associated Countries Instrument Contr Particip ations EC financial contribution to participants No. No. No. '000 Euros IP - Integrated Projects 133 292 114.168 NDE - Networks of Excellence 28 59 15.214 STREP - Specific Targeted Research Projects 215 299 80.610 CA - Coordination Actions 76 112 10.717 SSA - Specific Support Actions 68 96 13.304 CIR - Collective Research Projects 7 18 2.423 CRAFT - Co-operative Research Projects 27 47 3.955 MCA - Marie Curie Actions 77 8 2.1718 I3 - Specific Actions to Promote Research Infrastructures 1 1 187 | Table 3d: FP6 Contracts signed in 2005 Associated Countries Instrument Contr Particip ations EC financial contribution to participants No. No. No. Contr Particip ations Contribution to participants IP - Integrated Projects 133 292 114.168 3 IP - Integrated Projects 133 292 114.168 3 STREP - Specific Targeted Research Projects 215 299 80.610 5 CA - Coordination Actions 76 112 10.717 5 SSA - Specific Support Actions 68 96 13.304 5 CLR - Collective Research Projects 7 18 2.423 CRAFT - Co-operative Research Projects 27 47 3.955 1 MCA - Marie Curie Actions 77 86 21.718 4 I3 - Specific Actions to Promote Research Infrastructures 1 1 187 | Table 3d: FP6 Contracts signed in 2005 Associated Countries IS - Ic: Instrument Contr Particip acts Contribution to participants Contr Particip acts IS - Ic: No. Contr Particip acts Contr Particip acts Contr Particip acts Particip acts Particip acts Contr Contr Particip acts Contr Particip acts Contr Particip acts Contr Particip acts Contr Contr Contr Particip acts Contr Contr <th c<="" td=""><td>Table 3d: FP6 Contracts signed in 2005 Instrument IS - IceIand Instrument Contr Particip ations Contribution to participants Contribution to participants IS - IceIand Contr Particip ations Contribution to participants Control Particip ations IP - Integrated Projects 133 292 114.168 3 3 1107 NOE - Networks of Excellence 28 59 15.214 3 3 507 SSA - Specific Support Actions 76 112 10.717</td><td>Part Table 3d: FP6 Contracts signed in 2005 Part Associated Countries IS - IceIand LI Instrument Sec financial
contribution
to participants Contr
acts Particip
ations EC financial
contribution
to participants Contr
acts Contr
acts</td><td>Table 3d: FP6 Contracts signed in 2005 Particip Particip Particip Particip Particip Contr <th <="" colspan="6" td=""><td>Participation & Contributio Participation & Contribution Instrument IS - Ice Ind LI - Liechtenstein Instrument IS - Ice Ind LI - Liechtenstein Instrument IS - Ice Ind LI - Liechtenstein Instrument Contr Particip atom Contribution to participants IP - Integrated Projects Contribution to participants Contribution to participants Contribution to participants Contribution to participants IP - Integrated Pr</td><td>Participation & Contribution by International Contribution by International Contribution acts Instrument IS - Ice Ind LI - Liechtenstein Instrument Contr Particip Contribution for participants Contribution for particip</td><td>Participation & Contribution by Instrument Instrument IS - Ice Ind LI - Liechtenstein NO - N Instrument Contr Particip ations Contribution by Instrument IS - Ice Ind LI - Liechtenstein NO - N Instrument Contr Particip ations Contribution to participants Contribution to participa</td><td>Participation & Contribution by Instrument & Country Participation & Contribution by Instrument & Country Instrument IS - IceIand LI - Liechtenstein ND - Norway Instrument Contr Particip
acts Particip
ations Contribution
contribution
to participants Contribution
contribution
to participants Contr Particip
ations Contribution by Instrument & Country Instrument Contr Particip
ations EC financial
contribution
to participants Contr Particip
ations Contr Particip
ations Particip
ations Contr Particip
ations Contr Particip
ations Contribution
to participants Contribution
to participants Contr Particip
ations Contribution
to participants IP - Integrated Projects 133 29</td><td>Participation & Contribution by Instrument & Country Participation & Contribution by Instrument & Country Instrument Instrument IS - Ice Ind LI - Liechtenstein ND - Norway Contr Instrument Contr Particip
ations Contr Particip
ations Contr Particip
ations Contr Particip
ations Contr Particip
ations Contr Particip
ations Contr Particip
ations Contr Particip
ations Contr Particip
ations Contr Particip
ations Contr Particip
ations Contr Particip
ations Contr Particip
ations Contr Particip
ations Contr Particip
ations Contr Particip
ations Contr Particip
ations Contr Particip
ations Contr Particip
ationsContr Particip
ations Contr Particip
ations <th co<="" td=""><td>Participation & Contribution by Instrument & Country Participation & Contribution by Instrument & Country Instrument Contr Particip Contribution contribution contribution to participants Contr Particip Contribution contribution contribution to participants Contr Particip Contribution contribution contribution contribution contribution to participants Contr Particip Contribution contribution contribution contribution to participants Contr Particip Contribution contribution contribution contribution to participants Contr Particip Contribution contribution contribution contribution contribution to participants Contr Particip Contribution contribution contribution contribution contribution to participants Contr Particip Contribution contribution contribution contribution to participants Contr Contribution contribution contribution contribution contribution to participants Contr Particip Contribution contribution contribution contribution contr</td><td>Participation & Contribution by Instrument & Country Participation & Contribution by Instrument & Country Contribution is participants Instrument Contr Particip contribution is participants Contr Particip contribution is p</td><td>Participation & Contribution by Instrument & Country Instrument CCH Particip acts IS - Ice Iand LI - Liechtenstein ND - Norway CH - Switzerland Instrument Contr Particip EC financial contribution Contribution Contribution Contribution Particip ators EC financial contribution Control to participants Control to partic</td><td>Participation & Contribution by Instrument & Country Instrument Contribution Contribution</td></th></td></th></td></th> | <td>Table 3d: FP6 Contracts signed in 2005 Instrument IS - IceIand Instrument Contr Particip ations Contribution to participants Contribution to participants IS - IceIand Contr Particip ations Contribution to participants Control Particip ations IP - Integrated Projects 133 292 114.168 3 3 1107 NOE - Networks of Excellence 28 59 15.214 3 3 507 SSA - Specific Support Actions 76 112 10.717</td> <td>Part Table 3d: FP6 Contracts signed in 2005 Part Associated Countries IS - IceIand LI Instrument Sec financial
contribution
to participants Contr
acts Particip
ations EC financial
contribution
to participants Contr
acts Contr
acts</td> <td>Table 3d: FP6 Contracts signed in 2005 Particip Particip Particip Particip Particip Contr <th <="" colspan="6" td=""><td>Participation & Contributio Participation & Contribution Instrument IS - Ice Ind LI - Liechtenstein Instrument IS - Ice Ind LI - Liechtenstein Instrument IS - Ice Ind LI - Liechtenstein Instrument Contr Particip atom Contribution to participants IP - Integrated Projects Contribution to participants Contribution to participants Contribution to participants Contribution to participants IP - Integrated Pr</td><td>Participation & Contribution by International Contribution by International Contribution acts Instrument IS - Ice Ind LI - Liechtenstein Instrument Contr Particip Contribution for participants Contribution for particip</td><td>Participation & Contribution by Instrument Instrument IS - Ice Ind LI - Liechtenstein NO - N Instrument Contr Particip ations Contribution by Instrument IS - Ice Ind LI - Liechtenstein NO - N Instrument Contr Particip ations Contribution to participants Contribution to participa</td><td>Participation & Contribution by Instrument & Country Participation & Contribution by Instrument & Country Instrument IS - IceIand LI - Liechtenstein ND - Norway Instrument Contr Particip
acts Particip
ations Contribution
contribution
to participants Contribution
contribution
to participants Contr Particip
ations Contribution by Instrument & Country Instrument Contr Particip
ations EC financial
contribution
to participants Contr Particip
ations Contr Particip
ations Particip
ations Contr Particip
ations Contr Particip
ations Contribution
to participants Contribution
to participants Contr Particip
ations Contribution
to participants IP - Integrated Projects 133 29</td><td>Participation & Contribution by Instrument & Country Participation & Contribution by Instrument & Country Instrument Instrument IS - Ice Ind LI - Liechtenstein ND - Norway Contr Instrument Contr Particip
ations Contr Particip
ations Contr Particip
ations Contr Particip
ations Contr Particip
ations Contr Particip
ations Contr Particip
ations Contr Particip
ations Contr Particip
ations Contr Particip
ations Contr Particip
ations Contr Particip
ations Contr Particip
ations Contr Particip
ations Contr Particip
ations Contr Particip
ations Contr Particip
ations Contr Particip
ations Contr Particip
ationsContr Particip
ations Contr Particip
ations <th co<="" td=""><td>Participation & Contribution by Instrument & Country Participation & Contribution by Instrument & Country Instrument Contr Particip Contribution contribution contribution to participants Contr Particip Contribution contribution contribution to participants Contr Particip Contribution contribution contribution contribution contribution to participants Contr Particip Contribution contribution contribution contribution to participants Contr Particip Contribution contribution contribution contribution to participants Contr Particip Contribution contribution contribution contribution contribution to participants Contr Particip Contribution contribution contribution contribution contribution to participants Contr Particip Contribution contribution contribution contribution to participants Contr Contribution contribution contribution contribution contribution to participants Contr Particip Contribution contribution contribution contribution contr</td><td>Participation & Contribution by Instrument & Country Participation & Contribution by Instrument & Country Contribution is participants Instrument Contr Particip contribution is participants Contr Particip contribution is p</td><td>Participation & Contribution by Instrument & Country Instrument CCH Particip acts IS - Ice Iand LI - Liechtenstein ND - Norway CH - Switzerland Instrument Contr Particip EC financial contribution Contribution Contribution Contribution Particip ators EC financial contribution Control to participants Control to partic</td><td>Participation & Contribution by Instrument & Country Instrument Contribution Contribution</td></th></td></th></td> | Table 3d: FP6 Contracts signed in 2005 Instrument IS - IceIand Instrument Contr Particip ations Contribution to participants Contribution to participants IS - IceIand Contr Particip ations Contribution to participants Control Particip ations IP - Integrated Projects 133 292 114.168 3 3 1107 NOE - Networks of Excellence 28 59 15.214 3 3 507 SSA - Specific Support Actions 76 112 10.717 | Part Table 3d: FP6 Contracts signed in 2005 Part Associated Countries IS - IceIand LI Instrument Sec financial
contribution
to participants Contr
acts Particip
ations EC financial
contribution
to participants Contr
acts Contr
acts | Table 3d: FP6 Contracts signed in 2005 Particip Particip Particip Particip Particip Contr Particip Contr <th <="" colspan="6" td=""><td>Participation & Contributio Participation & Contribution Instrument IS - Ice Ind LI - Liechtenstein Instrument IS - Ice Ind LI - Liechtenstein Instrument IS - Ice Ind LI - Liechtenstein Instrument Contr Particip atom Contribution to participants IP - Integrated Projects Contribution to participants Contribution to participants Contribution to participants Contribution to participants IP - Integrated Pr</td><td>Participation & Contribution by International Contribution by International Contribution acts Instrument IS - Ice Ind LI - Liechtenstein Instrument Contr Particip Contribution for participants Contribution for particip</td><td>Participation & Contribution by Instrument Instrument IS - Ice Ind LI - Liechtenstein NO - N Instrument Contr Particip ations Contribution by Instrument IS - Ice Ind LI - Liechtenstein NO - N Instrument Contr Particip ations Contribution to participants Contribution to participa</td><td>Participation & Contribution by Instrument & Country Participation & Contribution by Instrument & Country Instrument IS - IceIand LI - Liechtenstein ND - Norway Instrument Contr Particip
acts Particip
ations Contribution
contribution
to participants Contribution
contribution
to participants Contr Particip
ations Contribution by Instrument & Country Instrument Contr Particip
ations EC financial
contribution
to participants Contr Particip
ations Contr Particip
ations Particip
ations Contr Particip
ations Contr Particip
ations Contribution
to participants Contribution
to participants Contr Particip
ations Contribution
to participants IP - Integrated Projects 133 29</td><td>Participation & Contribution by Instrument & Country Participation & Contribution by Instrument & Country Instrument Instrument IS - Ice Ind LI - Liechtenstein ND - Norway Contr Instrument Contr Particip
ations Contr Particip
ations Contr Particip
ations Contr Particip
ations Contr Particip
ations Contr Particip
ations Contr Particip
ations Contr Particip
ations Contr Particip
ations Contr Particip
ations Contr Particip
ations Contr Particip
ations Contr Particip
ations Contr Particip
ations Contr Particip
ations Contr Particip
ations Contr Particip
ations Contr Particip
ations Contr Particip
ationsContr Particip
ations Contr Particip
ations <th co<="" td=""><td>Participation & Contribution by Instrument & Country Participation & Contribution by Instrument & Country Instrument Contr Particip Contribution contribution contribution to participants Contr Particip Contribution contribution contribution to participants Contr Particip Contribution contribution contribution contribution contribution to participants Contr Particip Contribution contribution contribution contribution to participants Contr Particip Contribution contribution contribution contribution to participants Contr Particip Contribution contribution contribution contribution contribution to participants Contr Particip Contribution contribution contribution contribution contribution to participants Contr Particip Contribution contribution contribution contribution to participants Contr Contribution contribution contribution contribution contribution to participants Contr Particip Contribution contribution contribution contribution contr</td><td>Participation & Contribution by Instrument & Country Participation & Contribution by Instrument & Country Contribution is participants Instrument Contr Particip contribution is participants Contr Particip contribution is p</td><td>Participation & Contribution by Instrument & Country Instrument CCH Particip acts IS - Ice Iand LI - Liechtenstein ND - Norway CH - Switzerland Instrument Contr Particip EC financial contribution Contribution Contribution Contribution Particip ators EC financial contribution Control to participants Control to partic</td><td>Participation & Contribution by Instrument & Country Instrument Contribution Contribution</td></th></td></th> | <td>Participation & Contributio Participation & Contribution Instrument IS - Ice Ind LI - Liechtenstein Instrument IS - Ice Ind LI - Liechtenstein Instrument IS - Ice Ind LI - Liechtenstein Instrument Contr Particip atom Contribution to participants IP - Integrated Projects Contribution to participants Contribution to participants Contribution to participants Contribution to participants IP - Integrated Pr</td> <td>Participation & Contribution by International Contribution by International Contribution acts Instrument IS - Ice Ind LI - Liechtenstein Instrument Contr Particip Contribution for participants Contribution for particip</td> <td>Participation & Contribution by Instrument Instrument IS - Ice Ind LI - Liechtenstein NO - N Instrument Contr Particip ations Contribution by Instrument IS - Ice Ind LI - Liechtenstein NO - N Instrument Contr Particip ations Contribution to participants Contribution to participa</td> <td>Participation & Contribution by Instrument & Country Participation & Contribution by Instrument & Country Instrument IS - IceIand LI - Liechtenstein ND - Norway Instrument Contr Particip
acts Particip
ations Contribution
contribution
to participants Contribution
contribution
to participants Contr Particip
ations Contribution by Instrument & Country Instrument Contr Particip
ations EC financial
contribution
to participants Contr Particip
ations Contr Particip
ations Particip
ations Contr Particip
ations Contr Particip
ations Contribution
to participants Contribution
to participants Contr Particip
ations Contribution
to participants IP - Integrated Projects 133 29</td> <td>Participation & Contribution by Instrument & Country Participation & Contribution by Instrument & Country Instrument Instrument IS - Ice Ind LI - Liechtenstein ND - Norway Contr Instrument Contr Particip
ations Contr Particip
ations Contr Particip
ations Contr Particip
ations Contr Particip
ations Contr Particip
ations Contr Particip
ations Contr Particip
ations Contr Particip
ations Contr Particip
ations Contr Particip
ations Contr Particip
ations Contr Particip
ations Contr Particip
ations Contr Particip
ations Contr Particip
ations Contr Particip
ations Contr Particip
ations Contr Particip
ationsContr Particip
ations Contr Particip
ations <th co<="" td=""><td>Participation & Contribution by Instrument & Country Participation & Contribution by Instrument & Country Instrument Contr Particip Contribution contribution contribution to participants Contr Particip Contribution contribution contribution to participants Contr Particip Contribution contribution contribution contribution contribution to participants Contr Particip Contribution contribution contribution contribution to participants Contr Particip Contribution contribution contribution contribution to participants Contr Particip Contribution contribution contribution contribution contribution to participants Contr Particip Contribution contribution contribution contribution contribution to participants Contr Particip Contribution contribution contribution contribution to participants Contr Contribution contribution contribution contribution contribution to participants Contr Particip Contribution contribution contribution contribution contr</td><td>Participation & Contribution by Instrument & Country Participation & Contribution by Instrument & Country Contribution is participants Instrument Contr Particip contribution is participants Contr Particip contribution is p</td><td>Participation & Contribution by Instrument & Country Instrument CCH Particip acts IS - Ice Iand LI - Liechtenstein ND - Norway CH - Switzerland Instrument Contr Particip EC financial contribution Contribution Contribution Contribution Particip ators EC financial contribution Control to participants Control to partic</td><td>Participation & Contribution by Instrument & Country Instrument Contribution Contribution</td></th></td> | | | | | | Participation & Contributio Participation & Contribution Instrument IS - Ice Ind LI - Liechtenstein Instrument IS - Ice Ind LI - Liechtenstein Instrument IS - Ice Ind LI - Liechtenstein Instrument Contr Particip atom Contribution to participants IP - Integrated Projects Contribution to participants Contribution to participants Contribution to participants Contribution to participants IP - Integrated Pr | Participation & Contribution by International Contribution by International Contribution acts Instrument IS - Ice Ind LI - Liechtenstein Instrument Contr Particip Contribution for participants Contribution for particip | Participation & Contribution by Instrument Instrument IS - Ice Ind LI - Liechtenstein NO - N Instrument Contr Particip ations Contribution by Instrument IS - Ice Ind LI - Liechtenstein NO - N Instrument Contr Particip ations Contribution to participants Contribution to participa | Participation & Contribution by Instrument & Country Participation & Contribution by Instrument & Country Instrument IS - IceIand LI - Liechtenstein ND - Norway Instrument Contr Particip
acts Particip
ations Contribution
contribution
to participants Contribution
contribution
to participants Contr Particip
ations Contribution by Instrument & Country Instrument Contr Particip
ations EC financial
contribution
to participants Contr Particip
ations Contr Particip
ations Particip
ations Contr Particip
ations Contr Particip
ations Contribution
to participants Contribution
to participants Contr Particip
ations Contribution
to participants IP - Integrated Projects 133 29 | Participation & Contribution by Instrument & Country Participation & Contribution by Instrument & Country Instrument Instrument IS - Ice Ind LI - Liechtenstein ND - Norway Contr Instrument Contr Particip
ations Contr Particip
ations Contr Particip
ations Contr Particip
ations Contr Particip
ations Contr Particip
ations Contr Particip
ations Contr Particip
ations Contr Particip
ations Contr Particip
ations Contr Particip
ations Contr Particip
ations Contr Particip
ations Contr Particip
ations Contr Particip
ations Contr Particip
ations Contr Particip
ations Contr Particip
ations Contr Particip
ationsContr Particip
ations Contr Particip
ations <th co<="" td=""><td>Participation & Contribution by Instrument & Country Participation & Contribution by Instrument & Country Instrument Contr Particip Contribution contribution contribution to participants Contr Particip Contribution contribution contribution to participants Contr Particip Contribution contribution contribution contribution contribution to participants Contr Particip Contribution contribution contribution contribution to participants Contr Particip Contribution contribution contribution contribution to participants Contr Particip Contribution contribution contribution contribution contribution to participants Contr Particip Contribution contribution contribution contribution contribution to participants Contr Particip Contribution contribution contribution contribution to participants Contr Contribution contribution contribution contribution contribution to participants Contr Particip Contribution contribution contribution contribution contr</td><td>Participation & Contribution by Instrument & Country Participation & Contribution by Instrument & Country Contribution is participants Instrument Contr Particip contribution is participants Contr Particip contribution is p</td><td>Participation & Contribution by Instrument & Country Instrument CCH Particip acts IS - Ice Iand LI - Liechtenstein ND - Norway CH - Switzerland Instrument Contr Particip EC financial contribution Contribution Contribution Contribution Particip ators EC financial contribution Control to participants Control to partic</td><td>Participation & Contribution by Instrument & Country Instrument Contribution Contribution</td></th> | <td>Participation & Contribution by Instrument & Country Participation & Contribution by Instrument & Country Instrument Contr Particip Contribution contribution contribution to participants Contr Particip Contribution contribution contribution to participants Contr Particip Contribution contribution contribution contribution contribution to participants Contr Particip Contribution contribution contribution contribution to participants Contr Particip Contribution contribution contribution contribution to participants Contr Particip Contribution contribution contribution contribution contribution to participants Contr Particip Contribution contribution contribution contribution contribution to participants Contr Particip Contribution contribution contribution contribution to participants Contr Contribution contribution contribution contribution contribution to participants Contr Particip Contribution contribution contribution contribution contr</td> <td>Participation & Contribution by Instrument & Country Participation & Contribution by Instrument & Country Contribution is participants Instrument Contr Particip contribution is participants Contr Particip contribution is p</td> <td>Participation & Contribution by Instrument & Country Instrument CCH Particip acts IS - Ice Iand LI - Liechtenstein ND - Norway CH - Switzerland Instrument Contr Particip EC financial contribution Contribution Contribution Contribution Particip ators EC financial contribution Control to participants Control to partic</td> <td>Participation & Contribution by Instrument & Country Instrument Contribution Contribution</td> | Participation & Contribution by Instrument & Country Participation & Contribution by Instrument & Country Instrument Contr Particip Contribution contribution contribution to participants Contr Particip Contribution contribution contribution to participants Contr Particip Contribution contribution contribution contribution contribution to participants Contr Particip Contribution contribution contribution contribution to participants Contr Particip Contribution contribution contribution contribution to participants Contr Particip Contribution contribution contribution contribution contribution to participants Contr Particip Contribution contribution contribution contribution contribution to participants Contr Particip Contribution contribution contribution contribution to participants Contr Contribution contribution contribution contribution contribution to participants Contr Particip Contribution contribution contribution contribution contr | Participation & Contribution by Instrument & Country Participation & Contribution by Instrument & Country Contribution is participants Instrument Contr Particip contribution is participants Contr Particip contribution is p | Participation & Contribution by Instrument & Country Instrument CCH Particip acts IS - Ice Iand LI - Liechtenstein ND - Norway CH - Switzerland Instrument Contr Particip EC financial contribution Contribution Contribution Contribution Particip ators EC financial contribution Control to participants Control to partic | Participation & Contribution by Instrument & Country Instrument Contribution Contribution |

	Table 3d: FP6 Contracts signed in 2005							Parti	icipation	& Contributio	n by in	strumen	t & Country						
		т	hird Co	ountries		AU - Au	stralia		BR - E	Brazil		CA - C	anada		CN - C	hina		IN - I	ndia
	Instrument	Contr acts	Particip ations	EC financial contribution to participants															
		No.	No.	'000 Euros															
	IP - Integrated Projects	62	132	21.434	5	6		2	3	351	9	10	367	12	15	1.756	4	5	671
	NDE - Networks of Excellence	8	22	3.529							1	1					1	1	43
	STREP - Specific Targeted Research Projects	124	397	47.233	6	8	27	13	18	2.291	4	4	40	19	31	4.204	7	12	1.663
	CA - Coordination Actions	19	92	4.767	1	1		1	2	71	2	3	215	3	11	449	1	1	16
	SSA - Specific Support Actions	99	280	12.668	4	9	421	8	16	826	4	7	352	13	22	1.289	4	7	407
	CLR - Collective Research Projects	2	2	72															
	CRAFT - Co-operative Research Projects	3	3	444				2	2	297									
	MCA - Marie Curie Actions	89	90	160	12	12					5	5							
	13 - Specific Actions to Promote Research Infrastructures																		
Total		406	1.018	90.306	28	36	448	26	41	3.837	25	30	974	47	79	7.699	17	26	2.800

	Table 3d: FP6 Contracts signed in 2005				Parti	cipation	& Contributio	n by Ins	strumen	t & Country							
			JP - J	apan	RU - I	Russian	Federation	US	6 - Unite	ed States	Z	A - Sout	h Africa				
	Instrument	Conti acts	r Particip ations	EC financial contribution to participants	Contr acts	Particip ations	EC financial contribution to participants	Contr acts	Particip ations	EC financial contribution to participants	Contr acts	Particip ations	EC financial contribution to participants				
		No	. No.	'000 Euros	No.	No.	'000 Euros	No.	No.	'000 Euros	No.	No.	'000 Euros				
	IP - Integrated Projects	1	1		16	29	7.246	6	7	257	3	7	1.605				
	NOE - Networks of Excellence				3	4	1.784	1	1	306	2	2	133				
	STREP - Specific Targeted Research Projects	Э	3	66	40	62	7.115	5	6	51	7	9	955				
	CA - Coordination Actions	1	1	29	7	21	853	4	5	850	3	7	685				
	SSA - Specific Support Actions				14	24	1.312	7	8	206	8	12	788				
	CLR - Collective Research Projects																
	CRAFT - Co-operative Research Projects																
	MCA - Marie Curie Actions	1	1		2	2	29	67	68	130							
	13 - Specific Actions to Promote Research Infrastructures																
Total		6	6	95	82	142	18.338	90	95	1.800	23	37	4.167				

Table 3e: FP6 Contracts signed in 2005						Participation &	Contribution	by Type of Benefic	ciary & Count	ry				
	EU25 - M	lember States	BE -	Belgium	CY	- Cyprus	CZ - Cze	ech Republic	DK -	Denmark	DE -	Germany	EL	Greece
Type of Beneficiary	Participation s	EC financial contribution to participants	Participation s	EC financia contribution to participants	Participation s	EC financia contribution to participants	Participation s	EC financial contribution to participants	Participation s	EC financial contribution to participants	Participation s	EC financia contribution to participants	Participation s	EC financial contribution to participants
	No. %	- 1000 Euros - %	6 No. %	- 1000 Euros - 🕺	6 No. %	- 1000 Euros - 🕺	6 No. %	- '000 Euros - %	No. %	- 1000 Euros – %	No. %	- 1000 Euros - %	6 No. %	- '000 Euros – %
HES - Higher Education	5.625 33,2%	1.469.581 35,5%	255 32,1%	65.586 32,5%	18 31,0%	3.644 47,12	. 81 27,6%	11.852 33,4%	149 36,1%	44.888 43,8%	826 30,3%	254.321 30,4%	185 32,2%	35.795 32,3%
IND - Industry (*)	3.288 19,4%	761.302 18,4%	115 14,5%	30.635 15,2%	8 13,8%	857 11,12	47 16,0%	4.948 13,3%	71 17,2%	14.140 13,8%	672 24,7%	180.694 21,6%	75 13,1%	12.468 11,3%
REC - Research	4.223 25,0%	1.228.083 29,7%	170 21,4%	56.503 28,0%	5 8,6%	520 6,7%	. 86 29,4%	11.007 31,0%	88 21,3%	22.504 21,9%	752 27,6%	301.206 36,0%	177 30,8%.	41.974 37,3%
OTH - Others	3.789 22,4%	675.347 16,3%	254 32,0%	48.942 24,3%	27 46,6%	2.715 35,12	. 79 27,0%.	7.728 21,7%	105 25,4%	21.053 20,5%	473 17,4%	99.980 12,0%	137 23,3%	20.529 18,5%
Total	#### 100,0%	4.134.312 100.0%	. 794 100,0%	201.666 100,0%	58 100,0%	7.736 100,0%	· 293 100,0%	35.535 100,0%	413 100,0%	102.585 100,0%	2.723 100,0%	836.200 100,0%	574 100,0%	110.765 100,0%
Table 3e: FP6 Contracts signed in 2005						Participation &	& Contribution	by Type of Benefic	ciary & Count	ry				
	ES	- Spain	EE	- Estonia	FR	- France	HU -	Hungary	IE	- Ireland	ІТ	- Italy	LV	- Latvia
Type of Beneficiary	Participation s	EC financial contribution to participants	Participation s	EC financia contribution to participants	Participation s	EC financia contribution to participants	Participation	EC financial contribution to participants	Participation s	EC financial contribution to participants	Participation s	EC financia contribution to participants	Participation	EC financial contribution to participants
	No. %	'000 Euros 🛛 🕺	No. %	'000 Euros 🛛 🕺	5 No. %	'000 Euros 🛛 🕺	6 No. %	'000 Euros %	No. %	'000 Euros %	No. %	'000 Euros 🛛 🕺	6 No. %	'000 Euros 🛛 %
HES - Higher Education	316 24,8%	67.872 26,6%	38 30,6%	3.933 31,4%	342 16,7%	81.629 13,8%	. 105 32,8%.	14.024 33,1%	114 46,3%	36.944 67,6%	513 23,7%	113.215 28,4%	24 38,7%	2.615 50,2%
IND - Industry (*)	264 20,7%	48.960 13,2%	. 13 10,5%	1.683 13,5%	445 21,8%	135.200 22,8%	· 34 10,6%	3.892 10,8%	45 18,5%	8.385 15,3%	373 21,6%	89.368 22,4%	3 4,8%	133 2,6%
REC - Research	389 30.6%	82.436 32,3%	17 13,7%	2.169 17,3%	806 33,5%	280.270 47,2%	. 75 23,4%.	9.850 27.4%	21 8,6%	2.472 4,5%	439 25,4%	122.186 30,6%	15 24,2%	1.575 30,3%
OTH - Others	304 23,3%	55.764 21,9%	56 45,2%	4.725 37,8%	450 22,0%	96.488 16,3%	. 106 33,1%.	8.141 22,7%	63 25,3%	6.879 12,6%	403 23,3%	74.480 18,7%	20 32,3%	881 16,9%
Total	1.273 100,0%	255.032 100,0%	124 100,0%	12.511 100,0%	2.043 100,0%	593.588 100,0%	: 320 100,0%	35.907 100,0%	243 100,0%	54.680 100,0%	1.728 100,0%	399.249 100,0%	62 100,0%	5.205 100,0%
Table 3e: FP6 Contracts signed in 2005						Participation &	& Contribution	by Type of Benefic	ciary & Count	ry				
	LT - 1	Lithuania	LU - L	uxembourg	мт	- Malta	NL - N	letherlands	AT	- Austria	PL	- Poland	PT -	Portugal
Type of Beneficiary	Participation s	EC financial contribution to participants	Participation s	EC financia contribution to participants	Participation s	EC financia contribution to participants	Participation	EC financial contribution to participants	Participation s	EC financial contribution to participants	Participation s	EC financia contribution to participants	Participation	EC financial contribution to participants
	No. %	'000 Euros 🛛 🕺	No. %	'000 Euros 🛛 🕺	5 No. %	'000 Euros 🛛 🕺	6 No. %	'000 Euros %	No. %	'000 Euros %	No. %	'000 Euros 🛛 🕺	5 No. %	'000 Euros 🛛 %
HES - Higher Education	n 35 31,3%.	4.203 48,2%	. 1 3,4%.	15 0,4%	8 25,8%	1.141 40.12	. 361 35,7%.	108.887 39.1%	170 32,4%	46.906 35.6%	183 32,3%	24.147 42.12	78 29,7%	14.190 35,8%
IND - Industry (*)	11 3,8%.	730 8,4%	6 20,7%	975 24,2%	. 2 6,5%.	263 3,2%	. 203 20,1%.	53.061 13,1%	106 20,2%	25.824 19,6%	81 14,5%	6.041 10,5%	44 16,7%	7.055 17,8%
REC - Research	26 23,2%	1.930 22,1%	6 20,7%	1.246 30,3%	2 6,5%	202 7,12	243 24,0%	75.163 27.0%	120 22,3%	36.326 27.6%	141 25,3%	14.627 25,5%	79 30,0%	13.483 34.0%
OTH - Others	40 35,7%	1.859 21,3%	16 55,2%	1.793 44,5%	19 61,3%	1.244 43,62	. 205 20,3%.	41.377 14,3%	128 24,4%	22.670 17,2%	152 27,3%	12.531 21,3%	62 23,6%	4.874 12,3%
Total	112 100,0%	8.722 100,0%	29 100,0%	4.029 100,0%	31 100,0%	2.850 100,0%	1.012 100,0%	278.488 100,0%	524 100,0%	131.725 100,0%	557 100,0%	57.347 100,0%	. 263 100,0%	39.601 100,0%

T	able 3e: FP6 Contracts signed in 2005				Participation & Co								
		SK -	Slovakia	SI -	Slovenia	FI -	Finland	SE	- Sweden	UK - Uni	ited Kingdom		
	Type of Beneficiary	Participation s	EC financial contribution to participants	Participation s	EC financial contribution to participants	Participation s	EC financial contribution to participants	Participation	EC financial contribution to participants	Participation	EC financial contribution to participants		
		No. %	'000 Euros %	No. %	'000 Euros %	No. %	'000 Euros %	No. %		No. %	'000 Euros %		
	HES - Higher Education	51 32,3%	4.354 36,9%	53 27,3%	9.985 36,0%	135 35,3%	34.962 42,8%	348 50,1%	104.007 53,1%	1.236 53,2%	380.465 59,1%		
	IND - Industry (*)	15 9,7%	944 8,0%	27 13,3%	3.211 n.6%	75 19,6%	13.670 16,7%	121 17,4%	31.283 16,0%	432 18,6%	86.884 13,5%		
	REC - Research	39 25,2%	4.070 34,5%	52 26,8%	7.822 28,2%	92 24,1%	22.034 27,0%	84 12,1%	21.849 11,2%	299 12,3%	94.660 14,7%		
	OTH - Others	50 32,3%	2.428 20,6%	62 32,0%	6.732 24,3%	80 20,3%	11.070 13,5%	141 20,3%	38.679 19,8%	357 15,4%	81.784 12,7%		
То	otal	155 100,0%	11.797 100,0%	194 100,0%	27.750 100,0%	382 100,0%	81.735 100,0%	694 100,0%	195.818 100,0%	2.324 100,0%	643.793 100,0%		
T	able 3e: FP6 Contracts signed in 2005				Participation 8	Contribution	by Type of Benefi	ciary & Coun	try				
		Candida	ate Countries	BG -	Bulgaria	HB	- Croatia	RO	- Romania	TR	- Turkey		
	Type of Beneficiary	Participation s	EC financial contribution to participants	Participation s	EC financial contribution to participants	Participation s	EC financial contribution to participants	Participation s	EC financial contribution to participants	Participation	EC financial contribution to participants		
		No. %	'000 Euros %	No. %	'000 Euros %	No. %	'000 Euros 🛛 🕺	No. %	: 1000 Euros 1%	No. %	'000 Euros %		
	HES - Higher Education	148 30,0%	26.164 41,0%	39 24,7%	5.222 30,3%	12 37,5%	794 29,9%	44 23,5%	8.234 35,0%	53 45,3%	11.915 58,3%		
	IND - Industry (*)	74 15,0%	8.244 12,3%	26 16,5%	2.616 15,2%			30 16,0%	2.061 8,8%	18 15,4%	3.567 17,5%		
	REC - Research	131 26,5%	17.869 28,0%	51 32,3%	6.498 37,7%	9 28,1%	327 12,3%	45 24,1%	7.408 31,5%	26 22,2%	3.636 17,8%		
	OTH - Others	141 28,5%	11.573 18,1%	42 26,6%	2.898 16,8%	11 34,4%	1.534 57,8%	68 36,4%	5.840 24,8%	. 20 17,1%	1.301 6,4%		
То	otal	494 100,0%	63.851 100,0%	158 100,0%	17.233 100,0%	32 100,0%	2.655 100,0%	. 187 100,0%	23.543 100,0%	117 100,0%	20.420 100,0%		
T	able 3e: FP6 Contracts signed in 2005					Participatior	a & Contribution by	y Type of Ben	eficiary & Country				
		Associat	ed Countries	IS ·	lceland	LI - Lio	echtenstein	NO	- Norway	CH - 9	Switzerland	IL	- Israel
Type of Beneficiary		Participation s	EC financial contribution to participants	Participation s	EC financial contribution to participants	Participation s	EC financial contribution to participants	Participation	EC financial contribution to participants	Participation s	EC financial contribution to participants	Participation s	EC financial contribution to participants
		No. %	'000 Euros 🛛 %	No. %	'000 Euros %	No. %	'000 Euros 🛛 🕺	5 No. %	(1000 Euros 1%	No. %	'000 Euros 🛛 🕉	No. %	'000 Euros 🛛 %
	HES - Higher Education	377 37,3%.	117.328 44,7%	6 20,0%	804 14,3%			72 24,4%	21.275 31,37	. 225 45,7%	75.318 52,1%	74 38,7%	19.932 45.5%
	IND - Industry (*)	210 20,8%	46.968 17,9%	6 20,0%	511 9,1%	2 100,0%	245 100,0%	63 21,4%	. 11.975 17,6%	102 20,7%	23.894 16,5%	37 19,4%	10.343 23,6%
	REC - Research	219 21,7%	69.828 26,6%	8 26,7%	2.860 51,0%			90 30,5%	24.167 35,5%	80 16,3%	35.026 24,2%	41 21,5%	7.774 17.7%
	OTH - Others	204 20,2%	28.174 10,7%	10 33,3%	1.437 25,6%			70 23,7%	10.662 15,7%	. 85 17,3%	10.327 7,1%	39 20,4%	5.749 13,1%
То	otal	1.010 100,0%	262.297 100,0%	30 100,0%	5.611 100,0%	2 100,0%	245 100,0%	295 100,0%	68.078 100,0%	492 100,0%	144.565 100,0%	191 100,0%	43.798 100,0%

Table 3e: FP6 Contracts signed in 2005					Participation & Contribution by Type of Beneficiary & Country																					
		Third	Countries		AU -	Australia		BR	- Brazil		CA -	Canada			CN	- China			IN	- India			JP	Japan	apan	
Type of Beneficiary	Partici	pation s	EC financia contribution to participants		Participation s	EC financia contribution to participants		articipation s	EC financial contribution to participants		Participation s		EC fin contribu partici	ancial tion to ipants	Participation		EC financia contribution to participants		Partici	ipation s	EC fir contribu partic	nancial ution to cipants	Partici	pation s	EC financial contribution to participants	
	No.	%	'000 Euros	%	No. %	'000 Euros	%	No. %	'000 Euros	%	No.	%	'000 Euros	%	No.	%	000 Euros	%	No.	. %	000 Euros	s %	No.	%	'000 Euros	%
HES - Higher Education	301	29,6%	29.780	33,0%	14 38,3%	404 30),2%	11 26,8%	1.109	28,3%	11	36,7%	361	37,1%	27	34,2%	3.540	46,0%	7	26,3%	1.233	44,0%	2	33,3%	29 30,	,s%
IND - Industry (*)	48	4,7%	2.606	2,3%	2 5,6%			2 4,3%	304	7,3%					10	12,7%	230	3,0%	2	7,7%	159	5,7%				
REC - Research	377	37,0%	40.516	44,9%	5 13,9%	44 9	8%.	14 34,1%	1.435	37,4%	12	40,0%	291	29,8%	25	31,6%	2.486	32,3%	13	50,0%	1. 116	39,9%				
OTH - Others	292	28,7%	17.404	19,3%	15 41,7%			14 34,1%	990	25,8%	7	23,3%	322	33,1%	17	21,5%	1.444	18,8%	4	15,4%	292	10,4%	- 4	66,7%	66 69	9,1%
Total	1.018	100,0%	90.306	100,0%	36 100,0%	448 100	0,0%	41 100,0%	3.837	100,0%	30	100,0%	974	100,0%	79	100,0%	7.699	100,0%	26	100,0%	2.800	100,0%	6	100,0%	95 100,	0%
Table 3e: FP6 Contracts signed in 2005		1 1	Participa	tion &	Contribution	by Type of Ben	eficia	ry & Countr	У																	
	RU	- Russ	ian Federal	ion	US - Ui	nited States		ZA - So	outh Africa																	
Type of Beneficiary	Participation s entribution to participants				Participation s s participation s participants			Participation s EC financial contribution to participants																		
	No.	%	'000 Euros	%	No. %	'000 Euros	%	No. %	'000 Euros	%																
HES - Higher Education	31	21,8%	3.827	20,3%	18 18,9%	1.151 63	3,3%	12 32,4%	1.188	28,5%																
IND - Industry (*)	10	7,0%	817	4,5%	2 2,1%			2 5,4%																		
REC - Research	83	58,5%	10.982	53,3%	8 8,4%	519 28	3,8%	13 35,1%	2.105	50,5%																
OTH - Others	18	12,7%	2.712	14,8%	67 70,5%	130 7	27.	10 27,0%	874	21,0%																
lotal	142	100,0%	18.338	100,0%	95 100,0%	1.800 100	0,0%	37 100,0%	4. lb7	100,0%																
																										_
(7 As 'industry' in various European cou the forms which the participants fill out	7.4s industry in various European countries refers only to manufacturing activity, many participating private enterprises do not classify themselves under the industry label in he forms which the participants III out. This explains the high percentage of participants which appear under the 'other' category in many research/folds.																									

														Tab	le 4: (Collab	orati	ve Lir	ıks wi	ithin	contra	icts s	igned	l in 20	005															
													Me	mber	Stat	es												Candidate & Associated Countries										C III		
Country		BE	CY	cz	DK	DE	EL	ES	EE	FR	HU	IE	п	LV	LT	LU	мт	NL	AT	PL	PT	зκ	SI	FI	SE	UK	UE	BG	HB	RO	TR	IS	Ц	NO	сн	IL	C + A	LOL	uniay	
	BE	487	24	198	302	1.797	319	763	76	1.475	206	163	1.141	30	38	35	6	792	305	285	153	83	117	224	545	1.494	11.058	87	16	70	65	19	0	230	316	86	889	BE		
	CY	24	1	18	17	77	69	48	15	48	23	11	72	12	16	5	8	40	15	35	17	15	21	10	15	66	698	14	5	16	20	3	0	11	11	10	90	CY		
	DV	198	18	106	106	074	100	263	39	41/ E96	112	44	401	30	45	4	12	270	158	134	57	20	57	202	151	548	4.033	63 F0	3	30	23	10	1	025	101	27	345	DV	1	
	DE	1797	77	674	886	3.861	1 120	9 7 7 9	14.1	4 937	667	410	A 17A	78	128	55	43	2 384	1309	1 120	580	236	387	912	1753	5 113	35.621	279	28	271	175	42	3	680	1000	408	3 108	DE		
	FL	319	63	100	173	1.120	315	536	33	847	128	118	883	16	30	16	17	415	171	192	168	45	66	166	294	318	7 161	108	18	120	73	42	0	135	171	88	732	FL	4 and 1 a	
	ES	763	48	263	437	2,779	536	1.174	97	2.074	311	275	1.891	43	74	19	26	1.068	450	520	313	35	176	374	709	2.342	16,863	114	20	173	35	31	ŏ	336	431	160	1.360	ES	1	
	EE	76	15	39	52	141	33	97	30	33	55	23	130	31	51	5	11	63	43	75	17	37	27	66	115	184	1.515	25	6	33	18	3	0	44	21	13	163	EE	1	
	FR	1.475	48	417	596	4.937	847	2.074	99	2.243	426	362	2.993	66	92	43	33	1.670	604	658	410	165	283	526	1.238	3.873	26.178	124	27	167	110	40	2	523	861	275	2.129	FR		
ĕ	HU	206	23	112	132	667	128	311	55	426	103	60	419	29	56	6	19	277	175	172	67	85	100	98	161	517	4.404	71	э	56	43	6	0	65	89	33	372	HU	ĕ	
ŏ	IE	163	11	44	60	410	118	275	23	362	60	66	282	14	13	8	6	185	88	85	63	23	35	71	115	496	3.076	33	2	32	20	14	0	64	83	24	272	IE	j ti	
ហី	Π	1.141	72	401	512	4.174	889	1.891	130	2.993	419	282	1.798	42	89	45	28	1.350	502	660	426	183	258	453	1.077	2.992	22.807	223	26	210	135	34	4	390	666	229	1.917	п	ហី	
	LV	30	12	30	17	78	16	43	31	66	29	14	42	4	45	2	9	45	23	47	16	25	22	28	28	85	787	18	5	26	15	6	0	18	20	7	115	LV		
e e	LT	38	16	45	32	128	30	74	51	92	56	13	89	45	40	0	11	58	40	89	21	36	44	33	35	172	1.288	30	3	36	22	2	0	14	20	8	135	LT	- N	
Ē	LU	35	5	4	2	55	16	19	5	43	6	8	45	2	0	7	0	15	11	17	8	3	7	8	15	31	367	2	1	6	4	1	0	6	12	3	35	LU	i El	
<u>-</u>	MI	5	8	12	3	43	17	26	11	33	19	405	28	9	11	0	10	10	15	18	11	14	14	2	700	24	347	11	1	12	12	3	0	4	3	6	52	MI	<u> </u>	
Σ	NL	732	40	270	435	2.304	415	1.068	63	1.670	475	105	1.350	45	50	15	10	402	423	401	220	100	140	332	075	2.173	14.242	107	20	104	15	31	1	305	412	136	1.133	NL AT	-Σ	
	DI	305	10	124	16.4	1.303	199	450	4.3	650	170	00	660	47	40	17	10	420	200	222	16	100	417	14.4	215	007	6.776	10	14	96	40	14	0	125	204	13	619	DI DI		
	PL	153	17	67	78	580	168	313	17	410	67	63	426	16	21	8	11	220	57	114	79	31	40	68	170	492	3.686	52	13	4.9	30	13	0	111	81	47	396	PT		
	SK	83	15	71	32	236	45	35	37	165	85	23	183	25	36	3	14	88	100	115	31	46	48	46	53	191	1872	4.9	.0	41	26	4	ů	22	31	14	136	SK	1	
	SI	117	21	57	73	387	66	176	27	283	100	35	258	22	44	7	14	140	36	117	40	48	55	42	76	238	2,539	61	19	38	26	5	0	43	73	21	286	SI	1 (a)	
	FI	224	10	89	202	912	166	374	66	526	98	71	453	28	33	8	2	332	172	14.4	68	46	42	207	341	718	5.332	62	5	36	24	9	0	14.9	133	37	455	FI	1	
	SE	545	15	151	339	1.753	294	703	115	1.238	161	115	1.077	28	35	15	6	733	275	276	170	59	76	341	451	1.446	10.423	61	14	65	48	11	0	271	318	63	857	SE	1 - C	
	UK	1.494	66	548	898	5.113	918	2.342	184	3.873	517	496	2.992	85	172	31	24	2.173	771	887	492	191	238	718	1.446	2.515	29,184	252	33	224	170	56	1	673	884	296	2.589	UK	1	
	UE	11.058	698	4.099	5.866	35.621	7.161	16.863	1.515	26.178	4.404	3.076	*****	787	1.288	367	347	14.242	6.433	6.776	3.686	1.872	2.539	5.332	10.423	23,184	118.751	2.074	327	2.035	1.348	407	12 -	4.623	6.500	2.181	19.507	UE	1	
	BG	87	14	63	58	279	108	114	25	124	71	33	223	18	30	2	11	107	73	91	52	49	61	62	61	252	2.074	52	12	63	45	5	0	42	41	19	279	BG		
دة م	HR	16	5	9	8	28	18	20	6	27	э	2	26	5	3	1	1	20	16	14	13	э	19	5	14	33	327	12	2	5	10	0	0	5	6	5	45	HR	о б тт.,	
008	RO	70	16	30	41	271	120	173	33	167	56	32	210	26	36	6	12	104	83	96	49	41	38	36	65	224	2.035	63	5	57	42	6	0	42	52	34	301	RO	ပပိုင်မ	
5 6 5	TR	65	20	29	24	175	73	35	18	110	43	20	135	15	22	4	12	77	45	42	30	26	26	24	48	170	1.348	45	10	42	21	7	1	30	27	15	198	TR	5.5.5	
민정원	18	19	3	6	18	42	19	31	3	40	6	14	34	6	2	1	3	31	14	17	13	4	5	9	11	56	407	5	0	6	7	4	0	20	10	2	54	18	민정법	
고 있 것	NO	220		74	025	690	125	226		E02	45	64	290	10	- 14	6		205	0	125		- 22	42	149	071	672	4 6 9 2	40	5	40	20	- 20	0	19.4	0	- 20	422	NO	고양고	
្រ ខ្ញុំស៊	CH	230	11	101	172	1 2 2 2	135	335	44	361	89	94	550	10	20	10	4	412	204	165	21	22	4.3	14-3	211	894	4.623	42	с 6	42	30	20	0	134	170	20	4-30	CH	- 5 ខ្ញុំសំ	
U < ⊂		86	10	27	46	408	88	160	13	275	33	24	229	20	20	3	6	136	204	59	47	14	21	37	69	296	2 181	19	5	34	15	2	0	20	77	60	232	U U	U < ⊂	
	C+A	883	30	346	602	3.108	732	1.360	163	2,123	372	272	1.917	115	135	35	52	1.193	533	613	336	196	286	455	857	2,583	13,507	273	45	301	198	54	1	438	468	232	1.288	C + A	1	
		BE	CY.	67	DK	DE	FL	FS	FF	FR	нц	IE	п	1.7	17		мт	NI	AT	PI	PT	SK	81	FI	SE	UK	UE	BG	HR	BO	TR	18		NO	CH		C+A			
Cou	intry				- U.V								All	Instr	umer	nts						0.1			02	0.1	UL		Ca	ndida	te & .	Asso	ciated	d Cou	untrie	s	2.0	Соц	intry	